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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 9th Annual General Meeting of the members of Harish Textile Engineers
Limited (CIN: U29119MH2010PLC201521) will be held on Monday, 30th Day of September, 2019 at 9.30
A.M., at 2nd Floor, 19 Parsi Panchayat Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400069, to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2019, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon;

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Hitendra Desai (Din: 00452481), who retires from the office of 
director by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To re-appoint M/s. K M Swadia & Company, Statutory Auditors from the conclusion of this Annual 
General Meeting until the conclusion of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting and to fix their 
remuneration:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the said Act and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 made 
thereunder and other applicable rules, if any, under the said Act (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) M/s. K M Swadia & Company, Chartered 
Accountants (Registration No. 110740W), be and is hereby re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
Fourteenth Annual General Meeting at a remuneration to be fixed by the Audit Committee and/or Board 
of Directors of the Company, in addition to the re-imbursement of applicable taxes and actual out of 
pocket and travelling expenses incurred.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Appointment of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi (DIN No. : 00941665) as Managing Director:

To consider and if thought fit to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198, 203 read with Schedule V and 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modifications or re­

enactments) (including corresponding provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 1956) and the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and subject to such other 

consent(s), approval(s), permission(s) as may be necessary in this regard, and as per Article 59 of the 

Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such conditions as may be imposed by any authority 

while granting such consent(s), approval(s), permission(s) as may be agreed to by Board of 

Directors(hereinafter referred as board , which term shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning 

thereof, be deemed to include any committee thereof and any person authorized by the Board in this 

behalf), consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi 

(Din no. 00941665), as Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 5 (Five) years with effect from 

December 30,2018, on the terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in the Explanatory 

Statement annexed to the Notice convening this meeting.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to alter or vary the scope 

of remuneration of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi, as Managing Director including the monetary value thereof, to the 

extent recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time as may be 

considered appropriate, subject to the overall limits specified by this resolution and the Companies Act, 

2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company be and are 

hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds and things, which may be necessary, expedient or proper 

to give effect to the above resolution."

5. Appointment of Mr. Hitendra Desai (Din no.: 00452481) as Whole-time Director:

To consider and if thought fit to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198, 203 read with Schedule V and 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modifications or re- 

enactment(s) (including corresponding provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 1956) and the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, or any other law and subject to 

such other consent(s), approval(s), permission(s) as may be necessary in this regard and as per Article 59 

of the Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such conditions as may be imposed by any 

authority while granting such consent(s), approval(s), permission(s) as may be agreed to by Board of 

Directors (hereinafter referred as board, which term shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning 

thereof, be deemed to include any committee thereof and any person authorized by the Board in this 

behalf), consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Hitendra Desai (Din. 

No. 00452481), as Whole Time Director of the Company, for a period of 5 (Five) years with effect from 

December 30,2018, on the terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in the Explanatory 

Statement annexed to the Notice convening this meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to alter or vary the scope 

of remuneration of Mr. Hitendra Desai, as Whole Time Director including the monetary value thereof, to the 

extent recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time as may be 

considered appropriate, subject to the overall limits specified by this resolution and the Companies Act, 

2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company be and are 

hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds and things, which may be necessary, expedient or proper 

to give effect to the above resolution."

6. Appointment of Ms. Ratna Jhaveri (Din no.: 07732263) as an Independent Director:

To consider and if thought fit to pass, the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution

"RESOLVED that MS. RATNA VIKRAM JHAVERI (DIN 07732263) who was appointed by the Board of

Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from December 10, 2018 and who holds
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office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company but who is eligible 

for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member 

under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and 

is hereby appointed as Director of the Company."

"RESOLVED FURTHER that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Act, the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, read 

with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 17 and other applicable regulations of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing 

Regulations"), as amended from time to time, the appointment of MS. RATNA VIKRAM JHAVERI (DIN 

07732263) who meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act along with 

the rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(l)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and who has submitted a 

declaration to that effect, and who is eligible for appointment as an Independent Director of the Company, 

not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of five years commencing December 12, 2018 to December 11, 

2023, be and is hereby approved."

7. Appointment of Mr. Abhinav Anand (Din no.: 07732241) as an Independent Director:

To consider and if thought fit to pass, the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Abhinav Anand (DIN07732241) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as 

an Additional Director of the Company with effect from December 10, 2018 and who holds office up to the 

date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

("Act") and Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company but who is eligible for appointment and 

in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of 

the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as 

Director of the Company."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Act, the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, read 

with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 17 and other applicable regulations of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing 

Regulations"), as amended from time to time, the appointment of Mr. Abhinav Anand (DIN-07732241) 

who meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act along with the rules 

framed thereunder and Regulation 16(l)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and who has submitted a declaration 

to that effect, and who is eligible for appointment as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to 

retire by rotation, for a term of five years commencing December 12, 2018 to December 11, 2023, be and is 

hereby approved."
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8. Borrowing Powers:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier resolution passed with approval of members in general 

meeting and pursuant to Section 180(1) (c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013, (hereinafter referred to as the "Act"), read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 

Rules, 2014, including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force, 

and the Articles of Association of the Company, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the 

Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Board" which term shall be deemed to 

include any Committee of the Board) or its Committee as may be authorized by the Board of Directors to 

borrow for the purpose of the business of Company any sum or sums of moneys for and on behalf of the 

Company in Indian Rupees and/or in any foreign currency by way of availing of long/short term loans, 

commercial papers, by way of issue of bonds/notes and all kinds of financial assistance, secured/unsecured 

from banking companies, financial institutions, bodies corporate, by way of issue of redeemable non- 

convertible debentures, subordinated debentures or any other security or instrument(s) on private 

placement basis as well as by way of public issue by all permissible methods including shelf-disclosure 

documents, prospectus, shelf-prospectus, information memorandum, offering circular or otherwise, from 

persons, institutional investors, foreign institutional investors, qualified institutional buyers, resident public 

financial institutions, statutory corporations, provident funds, pension funds, superannuation funds, gratuity 

funds, alternative investments funds, insurance companies, mutual funds, national investment fund, 

insurance funds, non-institutional investors, companies, bodies corporate, societies, educational institutions 

and association of persons, trusts, scientific and/or industrial research organizations, partnership firms, 

Limited Liability Partnerships, Resident Individuals, High Net worth Individuals (HNIs), Hindu Undivided 

Families (HUFs), retail individual investors, by way of acceptance of deposits from public, shareholders, 

directors, relatives of directors, HUF, resident individuals, Non-resident Indians (through NRO accounts), 

trusts, firms, corporates or issuance of commercial papers, bonds, any other permissible instruments or 

methods of borrowing whether unsecured or secured by mortgage, charge, hypothecation or lien or pledge 

or otherwise of the Company's assets and properties, whether movable or immovable notwithstanding that 

the monies to be borrowed together with the monies already borrowed by the Company, apart from 

temporary loans obtained and/or to be obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of 

business, will or may exceed the aggregate of the paid up share capital of the Company and its free 

reserves (that is to say reserves not set apart for any specific purpose), provided that the total amount 

borrowed and outstanding at any point of time shall not exceed Rs. 100 Crores (Rupees Hundred Crores 

Only).
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or such Committee/ or person/(s) as authorized by the Board of 

Directors be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it/they may 

consider necessary, expedient, usual or proper to give full effect to the aforesaid resolution, including but 

not limited to settle any questions or resolve difficulties that may arise in this regard, if any, as it may, in its 

absolute discretion, deem fit, without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the 

Members of the Company to the intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 

expressly by the authority of this resolution."

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Harish Textile Engineers Ltd.

Hitendra Desai 
Executive Director 
DIN No.: 0045248

Date: September 05, 2019 

Place: Mumbai 

Registered Office

2nd Floor, 19 Parsi Panchayat Road,

Andheri (East),

Mumbai-400069

Sandeep Gandhi 
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 00941665
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NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") setting out
material facts concerning the business under Item Nos. 3 & 4 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. The 
relevant details as required under Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations") 
and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 
in respect of Directors seeking appointment/reappointment at the Annual General Meeting for Item no. 
3 to 8 is furnished as annexure to the Notice.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) IS 

ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF 

AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY 

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING (50) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN 

10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY. IN CASE A PROXY IS PROPOSED TO BE 

APPOINTED BY A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE 

COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS, THEN SUCH PROXY SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY 

OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A PROXY IN ORDER TO BE 

EFFECTIVE, SHOULD BE DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED AND MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE OFFICE OF 

THE REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT 

HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FOR COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

3. At the 4th AGM held on September 30, 2014 the members approved appointment of M/s. K. M. Swadia 

& Co., Chartered Accountants Firm (Firm Registration No. 110740W) as Statutory Auditors of the 

Company to hold office from the conclusion of 4th AGM till the conclusion of the 9th AGM, subject to 

ratification of their appointment by Members at every AGM. The statutory auditors are completing its 

term as statutory auditors and they are eligible for the Re appointment for the further term of 5 years.

4. SEBI in its press release dated December 03, 2018 had decided that securities of listed companies can 

be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 01, 2019. In view of the above and to 

avail the benefits of dematerialization and ease portfolio management, Members are requested to 

consider dematerialize shares held by them in physical form.

5. Members / Proxies should bring the enclosed attendance slip duly filled in, mentioning details of their 

DP ID and Client ID/Folio No. for attending the meeting, along with the Annual Report.

6. The proxy holder shall provide his identity proof at the time of attending the meeting. The proxies shall

be available for inspection during the period beginning twenty-four hours before the time fixed for the 

commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting.

7. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant 

to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of
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the Board Resolution authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote in their behalf at the 

Meeting.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members and 

Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Monday, the 23rd day of September, 

2019 to Sunday, the 29th day of September, 2019. (both days inclusive).

9. The Members holding the shares in physical form may obtain the nomination form from the Company's 

Registrar & Share transfer agent- Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. (BSPL) and are requested to consider 

converting their holdings to dematerialized form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares 

and for ease of portfolio management. Members can contact the Company or BSPL for assistance in 

this regard.

10. Members desirous of getting any information in respect of the content of the annual report are 

requested to forward the queries to the Company at least 10 days prior to the annual general meeting 

so that the required information can be made available at the Company.

11. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are 

requested to send to the Company or BSPL, the details of such folios together with the share 

certificates for consolidating their holdings in one folio. A consolidated share certificate will be issued to 

such Members after making requisite changes.

12. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the 

order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

13. Pursuant to Rule 18(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Members 

are requested to provide their e-mail id to the Company or Registrar and Share Transfer Agent in order 

to facilitate easy and faster dispatch of Notices of the general meetings and other communication by 

electronic mode from time to time.

14. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email 

address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, 

power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, 

MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and to 

the Company's Registrars and Transfer Agents, BSPL in case the shares are held by them in physical 

form.

15. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their DP ID and Client ID 

numbers for easy identification of attendance at the meeting.
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16. The Equity Shares of the Company are mandated for trading in the compulsory demat mode. The ISIN 

Number allotted for the Company's shares is INE417B01040.

17. Annual Listing fees for the year 2019-20 has been paid to all stock exchange wherein shares of the 

Company are listed.

18. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the 

Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination 

are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. Members holding shares in physical 

form may submit the same to BSPL. Members holding shares in electronic form may submit the same 

to their respective depository participant.

19. The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2018-19 is being sent by electronic mode to 

those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories, unless any 

Member has requested for a physical copy of the same. For Members who have not registered their e- 

mail addresses, physical copies are being sent by the permitted mode. Members may note that this 

Notice and the Annual Report 2018-19 will also be available on the Company's website viz. 

www.harishtextile.com.

17. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, as 

amended from time to time, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote 

electronically, through e-voting services provided by NSDL, on all the resolutions set forth in this 

Notice. The instructions for e-voting are given herein below. Resolution(s) passed by Members through 

e-voting is/are deemed to have been passed as if they have been passed at the AGM.

18. A Route Map showing directions to reach the venue of 9th Annual General Meeting is annexed in the 
last page.

19. Voting through electronic means:

I. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and regulation 44 of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing 

Regulations), the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on 

resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and 

the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services as provided by National Securities Depository 

Limited (NSDL).

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members 

attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at 

the meeting through ballot paper.
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III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM 

but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

IV. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

A. How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Votina system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of "Two Steps" which are mentioned 

below:

Step 1 : Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available 

under 'Shareholders' section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code 

as shown on the screen. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL services i.e. IDEAS, you can log­

in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 

after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. cast your vote

electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in Demat 

account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is

12****** then your user ID is in300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in Demat 

account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 

Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 

with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 

101456 then user ID is 101456001***

5. Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast 

your vote.
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b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password' 

which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password', you need to enter the 'initial 

password' and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your 'initial password'?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your Demat account or with the company, your 'initial password' is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 

Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 

.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 

number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 'User ID' and your 'initial password'.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, your 'initial password' is communicated to you on your postal address.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the "Initial password" or have forgotten your 

password:

a) Click on "Forgot User Details/Password?"(If you are holding shares in your Demat account with NSDL or 

CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your Demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and 

your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting 

system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on "Login" button.

9. After you click on the "Login" button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. 

Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

3. Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit" and also "Confirm" when prompted.

6. Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully" will be displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page.

8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG format) of the relevant Board Resolution/Authority letter, etc., together with attested 

specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer 

through e-mail to csshrutishah@gmail.com, with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 

keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 

attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the "Forgot User 

Details/Password?" or "Physical User Reset Password?" option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 

reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) - Shareholders and 

remote e-voting user manual for members, available at the downloads Section of www.evoting.nsdl.com 

or toll free no. 1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM (for Members whose email addresses are 

not registered with the Company/Depositories) or requesting physical copy]:

i. Initial password is provided as below/at the bottom of the Attendance Slip for the AGM:

EVEN ('Remote e-votino Event Number) USER ID PASSWORD/PIN

ii. Please follow all steps from point A above, to cast vote.

C. Other Instructions:

i. The remote e-voting period commences on September 24, 2019 (9:00 am 1ST) and ends on September 

28, 2019 (5:00 pm 1ST). During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in 

physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of September 23, 2019, may cast their 

vote by remote e-voting. The e-voting module shall also be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once 

the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently.

ii. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may 

be used for sending future communication(s).

iii. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch 

of the Notice of AGM and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. September 23, 2019, may obtain the 

login ID and password by sending a request at www.evoting@nsdl.co.in.

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing 

user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password 

by using "Forgot User Details/Password" option available on www.evoting@nsdl.com or contact NSDL at 

the following toll free no. 1800-222-990.

iv. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of 

the Company as on the cut-off date of September 23, 2019.

v. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the acility of remote 

e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.
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vi. Ms. Shruti H. Shah, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS No.8852) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer 

for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting 

process in a fair and transparent manner and she has consented to act as a scrutinizer.

vii. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be 

held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of "Ballot Paper" for all those members who 

are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

viii. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast

at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at

least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than forty eight 

hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or 

against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the 

same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

ix. A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by Ballot. If a Member

casts votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated as 

invalid.

x. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website 

www.harishtextile.com and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com within two days of the 

passing of the resolutions at the 9th AGM of the Company on September 30, 2019 and communicated to 

the BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

Date: September 05, 2019 
Place: Mumbai 
Registered Office
2nd Floor, 19 Parsi Panchayat Road, 
Andheri (East),
Mumbai-400069

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Harish Textile Engineers Ltd.

Sandeep Gandhi 
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 00941665

Hitendra Desai 
Executive Director 
DIN No.: 0045248
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), the following explanatory statement sets out 
all material facts relating to business mentioned under Item Nos.3 to8 of the accompanying Notice

Item No. 3:

In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014, made thereunder, the present Statutory Auditors of the Company, M/s. K M Swadia & Company, 

Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 110740W), term expires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

M/s. K M Swadia & Company, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 110740W), being eligible for re­

appointment have offered themselves for re-appointment.

The Board of Directors after considering the recommendations of the Audit Committee had re- appointment of 

M/s. K M Swadia & Company, Chartered Accountants, (Registration No. 110740W), as the Statutory Auditors of 

the Company, subject to the approval of the members. The Board has proposed remuneration of Rs. 10,00,000 

per annum and re-imbursement of applicable taxes, and actual out of pocket and travelling expenses and such 

other cost incurred, as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the 

Auditors. The quantum of the annual increase will be decided by the Board of Directors. The proposed Auditors 

shall hold office for a period of five consecutive terms from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the 

conclusion of Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2024.

M/s. K M Swadia & Company, Chartered Accountants, have consented to the aforesaid appointment and 

confirmed that their appointment, if made, will be within the limits specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. They have further confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as the 

Statutory Auditors in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

The Board considered various parameters like capability to serve a diverse and complex business landscape, 

audit experience in the Company's operating segments, market standing of the firm, clientele served, technical 

knowledge etc., and found M/s. K M Swadia & Company to be best suited to handle the scale, diversity and 

complexity associated with the audit of the financial statements of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the members is required for appointment of 

the Statutory Auditors and fixing their remuneration by means of an ordinary resolution. Accordingly, approval of 

the members is sought for appointment of M/s. K M Swadia & Company, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, is interested in this 

Resolution
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The Board recommends the resolution at item No. 3 for approval by member.

ITEM NO. 4

Mr. Sandeep Gandhi, who was appointed as Managing Director by Board of Directors at the Board meeting held 

on 30th day of December, 2018 for a period of 5 (Five) Years with effect from30/12/2018.

Mr. Sandeep Gandhi is Master of Business Administration from USA and having handsome experience of more 

than 3 decades.

The remuneration package of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi, as determined by the Remuneration Committee at its 

meeting held on 10.12.2018 and approved by the Board of Directors at the Board Meeting held on December 

30,2018, is forming the part of Item no. 4 of the Agenda for this Meeting.

The Board of directors will also be at liberty to alter, vary and revise the remuneration from time to time within 

the limit prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, or any amendment or statutory modifications 

thereto.

In the terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of shareholders is required for the appointment 

of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi as the Managing Director. The Board recommends the resolution for the approval of the 

members as a Special resolution. The copy of the Board resolution and the letter issued to Mr. Sandeep Gandhi, 

Managing Director will be available for inspection between 11.00 A.M. to 1.00 P.M. on all working days (Monday 

to Friday) at the corporate office of the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company except Mr. Sandeep Gandhi is concerned or interested in the proposed 

resolution.

The broad particulars of the Remuneration payable to and the terms of appointment of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi are 

as under:

Period of Agreement: From 30.12.2018 to 29-12-2023

1. Salary : Rs. 14,00,000/- per month (Rupees Fourteen Lakhs Only)

2. Commission : No Commission

3. Perquisites : In addition to the above, the Managing Director shall be entitled to the all the perquisites listed 

herein below:

1. The Managing Director shall be entitled to use the company's car, all the expenses for 
maintenance and running of the same including salary of the driver to be borne by the 
company;

2. The Managing Director shall be entitled to participate in provident fund, gratuity fund or such 
other schemes for the employees, which the company may establish from time to time.

3. Leave Travel Allowance for the Managing Director and his family once in a year in accordance 
with the Company policy.

4. Bonus for the financial year, at the discretion of the board.
5. Reimbursement of expenses incurred by him on account of business of the Company in 

accordance with the Company policy.
6. Reimbursement of any other expenses properly incurred by him in accordance with the rules 

and policies of the Company.
7. The Managing Director shall be entitled to such increment from time to time as the Board may 

by its discretion determine.
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Other terms and conditions:

a. In the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure of the 
Chairman, salary and perquisites as determined by the Board of Directors, subject to the limits 
stipulated under Part II Section II of Schedule V read with Section 196 and 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, subject to maximum remuneration to be paid, as might be decided by the 
Board of Directors.

b. In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure, the 
Company would pay Mr. Sandeep Gandhi remuneration, perquisites not exceeding the ceiling 
laid down in Part II Section II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, as might be decided 
by the Board of Directors.

c. "Family" means the spouse and dependent children of the Managing Director.
d. Leave with full pay and allowances shall be allowed as per the Company's rules.
e. Reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually and properly incurred in the course of 

business of the Company shall be allowed.
f. No sitting fees shall be paid to the Managing Director for attending the meetings of the Board of 

Directors or Committees thereof.
g. The Managing Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

The Company entered into separate agreement with Mr. Sandeep Gandhi, which contained inter 
alia, the above terms and conditions.

The information below is in relation to the proposal contained in item No.4 of the Notice relating to re­
appointment of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi as Managing Director of the Company.

I. General Information
(1) Nature of Industry:

The Company is in the business of Manufacturing of Textile Processing and Finishing Machineries.

(2) Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production:
The Company has been in business for the past 9 Years.

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities:
Not applicable, as the Company is an existing Company.

(4) Financial performance based on given ndicators: (in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Sales(Gross) 3932.74 3934.35 4184.73

Profit before Tax 133.06 82.18 118.95

Profit after Tax 94.87 57.60 82.39

Shareholders fund 805.96 698.59 560.99

Rate of dividend on equity shares (%) -

(5) Foreign investments or collaborators, if any: N. A.

II. Information about the appointee:

(i) Background details:

Mr. Sandeep Gandhi is Master of Business Administration from USA and having handsome experience of more 

than 3 decades.

(ii) Past Remuneration:

17



For the financial year 2017-2018, Mr. Sandeep Gandhi has total remuneration was Rs. 52,20,000/-.

(iii) Recognition or awards/ Job profile and his suitability:

Mr. Sandeep Gandhi has managed the Company ably since inception. In the opinion of the Board, he is 

eminently suited for the position he holds.

(iv) Remuneration proposed:

The remuneration of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi is set out in point no.l.

(v) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of the position and 

person.:

The remuneration of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi is in tune with the remuneration in similar sized companies in similar 

segment of business.

(vi) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with managerial personnel, if 

any:

Mr. Sandeep Gandhi is the promoter of the Company and founder of the Company. He has equity holdings in the 

Company. He has no other pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or any of its directors 

other than Mr. Kirti Gandhi, Non-Executive director of the Company

(III) Other Information

Reasons of inadequate profits: Overall Liquidity crunch in the market and general industry has affected the 

operational capacity utilization of the company. These has resulted in higher Cost in terms of production and 

hence inadequate profits during the year.

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvements:

The Company has taken various steps to improve efficiency and reduce costs including right sizing of manpower. 

The agreement also sets out the duties and various obligations of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi. The appointment of Mr. 

Sandeep Gandhi by way of a special resolution, as Managing Director and minimum remuneration payable to 

him are required to be approved by the Members at this Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Sandeep Gandhi is concerned and interested in this resolution, as it relates to his relative's reappointment 

and payment of remuneration. No other director is directly or indirectly concerned or interested.

The Board recommends the resolution at item No. 4 for approval by member.

ITEM NO. 5

Mr. Hitendra Desai Director of the Company (DIN: 00452481) who retires by rotation in the ensuing annual 

general meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Subject to the approval of Members in the -  Annual General Meeting to be held on 30th September, 2019, the 

Board of Directors of the Company (the Board), at its meeting, held on December 30, 2018, appointed Mr. 

Hitendra Desai (DIN: 00452481) as Whole Time Director (Executive Director) of the Company, for a period of 5 

(Five) years with effect from December 30,2018, on the terms and conditions including remuneration as set out 

in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this meeting.
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Subject to the approval of Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, Mr. Hitendra Desai Director of the 

Company (DIN: 00452481) to be appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) 

years with effect from December 30, 2018 on the remuneration determined by the Remuneration Committee of 

the Board (the Remuneration Committee) at its meeting held on 10.12.2018.

A brief profile of Mr. Hitendra Desai, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas and names of 

companies in which they hold Directorship and membership/chairmanship of Board Committee's as stipulated 

under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges in 

India, are annexed hereto.

The remuneration package of Mr. Hitendra Desai, as determined by the Remuneration Committee dated 

10.12.2018 and approved by the Board of Directors at the Board Meeting held on December 30, 2018 is 

forming the part of the Resolution under Item no. 5 of the Agenda for this Meeting.

Mr. Hitendra Desai appointment as a Whole-time director on the Board of the Company was on the basis of 

them being liable to retire by rotation. They will continue to be the Whole-time director of the Company till his 

term comes for retirement by rotation. They are eligible to seek re-election at the Annual General Meeting in 

which they retire by rotation.

The Board of directors will also be at liberty to alter, vary and revise the remuneration from time to time within 

the limit prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, or any amendment or statutory modifications 

thereto.

The broad particulars of the Remuneration payable to and the terms of the respective appointment of Mr. 

Hitendra Desai are as under:

Period of Agreement: From 30.12.2018 to 29.12.2024

1. Salary : Rs. 14,00,000/- per month (Rupees Fourteen Lakhs Only)

2. Perquisites : In addition to the above, the Whole Time Director shall be entitled to the all the perquisites 

listed herein below:

i. The Whole Time Director shall be entitled to use the company's car, all the expenses for maintenance
and running of the same including salary of the driver to be borne by the company;

ii. The Whole Time Director shall be entitled to participate in provident fund, gratuity fund or such other
schemes for the employees, which the company may establish from time to time.

iii. Leave Travel Allowance for the Whole Time Director and his family once in a year in accordance with the
Company policy.

iv. Bonus for the financial year, at the discretion of the board.
v. Reimbursement of expenses incurred by him on account of business of the Company in accordance with

the Company policy.
vi. Reimbursement of any other expenses properly incurred by him in accordance with the rules and

policies of the Company.
vii. The Whole Time Director shall be entitled to such increment from time to time as the Board may by its

discretion determine.

Other terms and conditions:
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a. In the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure of the Whole Time 

Director, salary and perquisites as determined by the Board of Directors, subject to the limits stipulated under 

Part II Section II Schedule V read with Section 196 and 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, subject to maximum 

remuneration to be paid, as might be decided by the Board of Directors.

b. In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure, the Company would pay 

Mr. Hitendra Desai, remuneration, perquisites not exceeding the ceiling laid down under Part II Section II of 

Schedule V read with Section 196 and 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, as might be decided by the Board of 

Directors.

c. "Family" means the spouse and dependent children of the Whole Time Director.

d. Leave with full pay and allowances shall be allowed as per the Company's rules.

e. Reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually and properly incurred in the course of business of the 

Company shall be allowed.

f. No sitting fees shall be paid to the Whole Time Director for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors 

or Committees thereof.

g. The Whole Time Director shall be liable to retire by rotation.

The Company has entered into separate agreement with Mr. Hitendra Desai which contains inter alia, the above 

terms and conditions.

Mr. Hitendra Desai is concerned and interested in this resolution, as it relates to his / relatives appointment and 

payment of remuneration.

No other director is directly or indirectly concerned or interested.

The information below is in relation to the proposal contained in item No.5 of the Notice relating to re­

appointment of Mr. Hitendra Desai as Whole-Time Directors of the Company.

I. General Information

I. General Information
(1) Nature of Industry:

The Company is in the business of Manufacturing of Textile Processing and Finishing Machineries.

(2) Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production:
The Company has been in business for the past 9 Years.

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities:
Not applicable, as the Company is an existing Company.
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(4) Financial performance based on given indicators: (in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Sales(Gross) 3932.74 3934.35 4184.73

Profit before Tax 133.06 82.18 118.95

Profit after Tax 94.87 57.60 82.39

Shareholders fund 805.96 698.59 560.99

Rate of dividend on equity shares (%) - - -

(5) Foreign investments or collaborators, if any: N. A.

II. Information about the appointee:

(i) Background details:
Mr. Hitendra Desai is Commerce Graduate with over 3 decades of Experience in Accounts and Legal.

(ii) Past Remuneration:
Remuneration for the Financial Year 2017-18 
Mr. Hitendra Desai: Rs. 16,80,000/-

(iii) Recognition or awards/ Job profile and his suitability:
Mr. Hitendra Desai have managed the affairs of the Company ably since inception. In the opinion of the Board, 
they are eminently suited for the position they holds.

(iv) Remuneration proposed:
The remuneration of Mr. Hitendra Desai is set out in point no.l.

(v) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of the position and 
person. The remuneration of Mr. Hitendra Desai is in tune with the remuneration in similar sized companies in 
similar segment of business.

(vi) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with managerial personnel, if 
any.

Mr. Hitendra Desai has no other pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or any of its 
directors.

(Ill) Other Information

Reasons of inadequate profits: Overall Liquidity crunch in the market and general industry has affected the 

operational capacity utilization of the company. These has resulted in higher Cost in terms of production and 

hence inadequate profits during the year.

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvements:

The Company has taken various steps to improve efficiency and reduce costs including right sizing of manpower.

The agreement also sets out the duties and various obligations of Mr. Hitendra Desai
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The appointment of Mr. Hitendra Desai, by way of a special resolution, as Whole time Director and minimum 

remuneration payable to them are required to be approved by the Members at this Annual General meeting.

In the terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 consent of shareholders is required for the appointment 

of Mr. Hitendra Desai as the Whole Time Director of the Company. The Board recommends the resolution for the 

approval of the members as a Special resolution. The copy of the Board resolution and the letters issued to Mr. 

Hitendra Desai, Whole Time Director will be available for inspection between 11.00 A.M. to 1.00 P.M. on all 

working days (Monday to Friday) at the corporate office of the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company except Mr. Hitendra Desai is concerned or interested in the proposed 

resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution at item No. 5 for approval by member.

Item No. 6

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013(The Act), which came into effect from April 1, 

2014, the Independent Directors are not liable to retire by rotation.

Ms. Ratna Jhaveri, Non-executive Director of the Company, has given a declaration to the board that she meets 

the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the board, the 

director fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and rules framed thereunder for appointment as an 

Independent Director. The board has recommended the appointment of Ms. Ratna Jhaveri, as an Independent, 

Non-Executive Director of the Company till the conclusion of the 9th Annual General Meeting of the Company to 

be held in the year 2024.

In compliance with the provision of Section 149 of the act, the appointment of Ms. Ratna Jhaveri, as an 

independent director is now being placed before the members for their approval.

A brief profile of Ms. Ratna Jhaveri, nature of his expertise in specific functional areas and names of companies 

in which she hold Directorship and membership/chairmanship of Board Committee's as stipulated under SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges in India, is 

annexed hereto.

The Board recommends the resolution at item No. 6 for approval by member.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interested in item No. 6 of 

the Notice except Ms. Ratna Jhaveri.
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ITEM NO. 7

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of Companies Act, 20l3(The Act), which came into effect from April 1, 

2014, the Independent Directors are not liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. Abhinav Anand, Non-executive Director of the Company, has given a declaration to the board that he meets 

the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the board, the 

director fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and rules framed thereunder for appointment as an 

Independent Director. The board has recommended the appointment of Mr. Abhinav Anand, as an Independent, 

Non-Executive Director of the Company till the conclusion of the 9th Annual General Meeting of the Company to 

be held in the year 2024.

In compliance with the provision of Section 149 of the act, the appointment of Mr. Abhinav Anand, as an 

independent director is now being placed before the members for their approval.

A brief profile of Mr. Abhinav Anand, nature of his expertise in specific functional areas and names of companies 

in which he hold Directorship and membership/chairmanship of Board Committee's as stipulated under SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges in India, is 

annexed hereto.

The Board recommends the resolution at item No. 7 for approval by member.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interested in item No. 7 of 

the Notice except Mr. Abhinav Anand.

Item No. 8

Section 180(1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, provides that the Board of Directors of a public company shall 
not, except with the consent of the Company in General Meeting, borrow monies in excess of the Company's 
paid up share capital and free reserves (apart from temporary loans obtained and/or to be obtained from the 
Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business). Directors are of the view that the business would 
steadily grow in future as well and as a result of which, the mobilization of funds may substantially increase.

Therefore, it is considered desirable to enhance the limit of borrowings to Rs. 100 Crores (Rupees Hundred 
Crores Only) apart from temporary loans obtained/to be obtained by the Company from its bankers in the 
ordinary course of business.

The said proposal for borrowing is only an enabling sanction for creation of charges/mortgages and the 
Management shall seek approval of the Board as and when the actual borrowings are to be made.
Your consent is required under the provisions of Sections 180(1) (c) and 180(l)(a) of the Act, to increase the 
borrowing
limits and to mortgage and / or create a charge on any of the moveable and / or immovable properties and / or 
the whole or any part of the undertaking(s) of your Company to secure its borrowings.

23



The Board of Directors commend passing of the resolution set out in item no. 8 of the Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company nor their relatives are concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the proposed resolution.

Date: September 05, 2019 
Place: Mumbai 
Registered Office
2nd Floor, 19 Parsi Panchayat Road, 
Andheri (East),
Mumbai-400069

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Harish Textile Engineers Ltd.

Sandeep Gandhi 
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 00941665

Hitendra Desai 
Executive Director 
DIN No.: 0045248
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Details of Directors appointment/re-appointment/retiring by rotation, as required to be provided 
pursuant to the provisions of (i) Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General Meetings ("SS-2"), 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government 
are provided herein 
below:

Particulars Mr. Sandeep 
Gandhi

Mr. Hitendra 
Desai

Mr. Abhinav Anand Ms. Ratna Jhaveri

Director 
Identification 
Number (DIN)

00941665 00452481 07732241 07732263

Date of Birth 04/07/1962 25/05/1991 19/11/1987
Date of First 
Appointment on 
the Board

31/03/2010 12/02/2013 10/12/2018 10/12/2018

Experience in 
functional Area

Mr. Sandeep, has 
lead the 
diversification of 
the group. Under 
his leadership the 
group has 
diversified into 
polyester staple 
fibres, nonwoven 
and technical textile 
fabrics and auto 
interiors

Professional 
Director And 
Management 
Graduate Looking 
After
Administration 
And Having 
Experience Since 
Past Three 
Decades.

Qualified LLB and 
having experience 
in various areas of 
Corporate Law, 
Trademark,
Contract Law, 
Constitutional Law

Post Graduate in 
finance and 
having experience 
in Accounts, Audit 
and Taxation. 
Wide experience 
in the financial 
service and 
insurance industry

Qualification MBA Commerce
Graduate

LLB Post Graduate in 
Finance

Directorship in 
other Companies 
(Public Limited 
Companies)

1 1 0 0

Membership of 
Committees of 
other public limited 
companies 
(Audit Committee 
and
Shareholder's/Inve 
stor's Grievance 
Committee only)

0 0 2 2

No. of Shares held 
in the Company

23,83,344 shares Nil NIL NIL

The number of 
Meetings of the 
Board attended 
during the F.Y. 
2018-19

14 14 4 4

Remuneration
Proposed

Rs. 14,00,000 per 
month

Rs. 14,00,000 per 
month

N.A. N.A.

Remuneration Paid Rs. 4,35,000 per 
month

Rs. 1,65,000 per 
month

Sitting Fees will be 
paid to independent 
Directors

Sitting Fees will 
be paid to 
independent 
Directors

Disclosure of 
relationship 
with other 
Directors, Manager 
and other Key

The Directors, Mr. 
Kirtikumar Gandhi 
8i Mr. Sandeep 
Gandhi having 
father and son

There are no 
inter-se 
relationships 
between the 
Directors

There are no inter- 
se relationships 
between the 
Directors
mentioned above,

There are no 
inter-se 
relationships 
between the 
Directors
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Managerial 
Personnel of 
the Company

relationship are 
related to each 
other within the 
meaning of the 
term "relative" as 
per Section 2(77) of 
the Act and per 
SEBI(Listing 
Obligations and 
Disclosure 
Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

mentioned above, 
and Manager and 
other Key 
Managerial 
Personnel of the 
Company.

and Manager and 
other Key 
Managerial 
Personnel of the 
Company.

mentioned above, 
and Manager and 
other Key 
Managerial 
Personnel of the 
Company.

Terms and 
conditions of re­
appointment 
alongwith details of 
remuneration 
sought to be paid

The re-appointment 
is for a term of 
5(five) years 
commencing from 
December 30, 
2018.
Details of 
remuneration 
sought to be paid is 
provided in 
Explanatory 
Statement for Item 
No. 4 annexed to 
the notice.

The re­
appointment is for 
a term of 5(five) 
years
commencing from 
December 30, 
2018.
Details of 
remuneration 
sought to be paid 
is provided in 
Explanatory 
Statement for 
Item No. 5 
annexed to the 
notice.

The re-appointment 
is for a term of 
5(five) years 
commencing from 
ensuing 9th AGM. 
Sitting Fees will be 
paid to independent 
Directors

The re­
appointment is for 
a term of 5(five) 
years
commencing from 
ensuing 9th AGM. 
Sitting Fees will 
be paid to 
independent 
Directors

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Harish Textile Engineers Ltd.

Sandeep Gandhi 
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 00941665

Hitendra Desai 
Executive Director 
DIN No.: 00452481

Date : September 05, 2019 

Place: Mumbai

Registered Office

2nd Floor, 19 Parsi Panchayat Road, 

Andheri (East),

Mumbai-400069

CIN No: U29119MH2010PLC201521
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Directors Report

Your Directors are pleased to present the Ninth Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company for the year ended March 31, 2019.

1. Financial Highlights
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31/03/2019

Year ended 
31/03/2018

Gross Income 3932.74 3934.35
Profit Before Interest and 
Depreciation 316.50 313.49
Finance Charqes 105.12 114.80
Gross Profit 211.38 198.69
Provision for Depreciation 78.32 116.51
Net Profit Before Tax 133.06 82.18
Provision for Tax 38.19 24.58
Net Profit After Tax 94.87 57.60
Balance of Retained 
earninqs brouqht forward 458.59 510.99
Balance of Retained 
Earninqs carried Forward 553.46 568.59

2. Management Analysis and Discussions 

Company performance:

Your Company delivered yet another year of strong performance for the year in report i.e. FY: 2018-19, 
with total revenues of Rs. 3932.74 Lakhs as compared with Rs. 3934.35 Lakhs during the previous year. 
The profit before tax stood at Rs. 133.06 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 82.18 Lakhs in the previous year. The 
Company has made a provision of tax totaling to Rs. 38.19 Lakhs and the profit after tax stood at Rs. 
94.87 Lakhs for the year in report, showing an increase of 64.70 % over the previous year.

Despite economic slow- down and severe liquidity constraints, Your Company posted another year of 
strong performance in FY: 2018-19 and continued to maintain its growth momentum.

Brief Introduction of Your Company

This being the first communication from the Company of the Public shareholders, the Board is pleased to 
give a brief introduction of your company. Your Company is one of the leading producers of textile 
processing and finishing machinery in India. The Machinery produced by your company has found 
acceptance by reputed clients in India and abroad. Your company has also exported its products to over 
25 countries, including to a prestigious market like U.K.

Your company has manufacturing facilities spread over 120,000 square feet in Umbergam, Gujarat and 
another 65,000 square feet in Bhilad Gujarat.

With effect from 1/4/2019, the Businesses of Non-Woven Fabrics, Technical Textiles, Auto Interiors and 
Recycled Polyester Staple Fiber (which is a eco-friendly project) have also started contributing handsomely 
to the top-line and bottom line of your company. With all the business segments contributing from 
1/4/2019, the Board is very hopeful of attaining substantially higher top-line and bottom-line for the 
current FY: 2019-20.
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Review of operations

Despite economic slow- down and severe liquidity constraints, Your Company posted another year of 
strong performance in FY: 2018-19 and continued to maintain its growth momentum.

Strengths

Over the years your company has acquired Product and Domain Expertise in all the products 
manufactured. Your Company also has excellent technical and design team that can take up special tailor 
made projects even for non-textile applications. Your company has best in class infrastructure and plant 
and machinery in this business.

Quality

Harish Machines are known and well respected for its Quality and productivity and command a premium 
valuation.

Outlook

With all three business segments contributing from 1/4/2019, the Board is very hopeful of attaining 
substantially higher top-line and bottom-line for the current FY: 2019-20.

Opportunities and threats

Opportunities:
Export markets offer exciting opportunities. Specialised, tailor made non textile customers also offer 
excellent growth prospects.

Threats:
The threats are in relation to the economic slow-down, liquidity issues and any adverse government 
policies. However, since textile industry is one of the top-three employment generators, the government 
policies are expected to be conducive and supportive.

Risks and Concerns
The recent liquidity crunch and economic down turn are the risks and concerns being faced by the 
industry.

Internal Financial control systems and their adequacy
The company has adequate systems for Internal Financial Control Systems. The company has also 
appointed a CA firm as independent Internal Auditors.

3. Dividend

With a view to plough back the profits of the Company and keeping in mind the expansion of business 
activities, the Board of Directors consider it prudent and recommend not declaring any dividend for the 
year ended March 31, 2019.

4. Transfer To Reserves

The entire balance in Retained Earnings is proposed to be carried forward

5. Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund:

The Provisions of Sec. 125 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared 
and paid last year.
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6. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of the report

On and with effect from April 01, 2019 the Non-Woven and PSF businesses have been integrated with the 
Company. These businesses will strengthen the Financial Position of the Company and will expand its 
Balance Sheet Size.

The National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench on August 09, 2018 passed an order for approving 
the Scheme of Arrangement for the Demerger under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 
between Corporate Courier and Cargo Limited("CCCL" or the Transferor Company) and Harish Textile 
Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee Company" No. 
1) and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or "Transferee 
Company" No. 2) their respective shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme"). The Company announced 
September 05, 2018 as effective date for the said Scheme.

The Company had allotted 9,36,000 equity shares on October 29,2018 pursuant to the Scheme of 
Amalgamation between Corporate Courier and Cargo Limitedf'CCCL" or the Transferor Company) and 
Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee 
Company" No. 1) and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or 
"Transferee Company" No. 2) their respective shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme") and Trading 
approval for the same had been received from BSE Limited on June 06, 2019.

7. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and company's operations in future, except for the order passed by National 
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench on August 09, 2018 for approving the Scheme of Arrangement for 
the Demerger under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 between Corporate Courier and 
Cargo Limited("CCCL" or the Transferor Company) and Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now 
Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee Company" No. 1) and Mahesh Developers 
Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or "Transferee Company" No. 2) their respective 
shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme"). The Company announced September 05, 2018 as effective 
date for the said Scheme.

The Company had allotted 9,36,000 equity shares on October 29, 2018 pursuant to the Scheme of 
Amalgamation between Corporate Courier and Cargo Limited("CCCL" or the Transferor Company) and 
Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee 
Company" No. 1) and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or 
"Transferee Company" No. 2) their respective shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme") and Trading 
approval for the same had been received from BSE Limited on June 06, 2019.

• There was no change in the nature of business of the Company.

8. Details of Holding/Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies:

The Company does not have any Holding/Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies.

9. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions 
with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission and reimbursement of expenses, if any, incurred by 
them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Company.
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The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Sandeep Gandhi as Managing Director and Mr. Hitendra Desai as 
Whole-Time Director, subject to approval of members at the ensuing 9th AGM.

The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Pinkesh Upadhyay as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. December 30, 
2018.

Mr. Kirtikumar Gandhi resigned from the post of directorship w.e.f. June 21, 2019

Mr. Darshit Parikh resigned from the post of directorship w.e.f. June 15, 2019

Mr. Rajesh Sahu and Mr. Sunil Bhirud resigned from the post of directorship w.e.f. February 11, 2019

All the above appointments/re-appointments by the Board of Directors are based on the recommendation 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The resolutions for aforementioned appointment/re- 
appointments and for payment of remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time- Director together with 
requisite disclosures are set out in the Notice of the ensuing 9th AGM. The Board recommends all the 
resolutions for your approval.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial personnel of the Company are - 
Mr. Sandeep Gandhi, Managing Director, Mr. Hitendra Desai, Whole Time Director and Mr. Pinkesh 
Upadhyay, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

10. Remuneration to Director and Employees

Details/Disclosures of ratio of remuneration to each Director to median employee's remuneration as 
required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and details of remuneration paid to 
Employees vide Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 is given as Annexure- IV

11. Nomination Remuneration Committee

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for 
selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.

Nomination remuneration and compensation committee policy (NRC Committee)

The NRC Committee of the Company shall be formed by the Board of Directors of the Company out of its 
Board members. The NRC Committee shall consist of minimum three non-executive directors out of which 
two shall be independent directors. The chairperson of the company may be appointed as a member of 
the NRC Committee but shall not chair the NRC Committee. The Chairman of the NRC Committee shall be 
an independent director. No member of the NRC Committee shall have a relationship that may interfere 
with his independence from management and the Company or with the exercise of his duties as a NRC 
committee member. The NRC Committee may invite such of the executives of the Company, as it 
considers appropriate (and particularly the Managing Director) to be present at the meetings of the NRC 
committee, but on occasions it may also meet without the presence of any executives of the company. The 
Company Secretary shall act as the secretary to the NRC Committee.

The Nomination Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Abhinav Anand. The Committee comprises of 
#Mr. Darshit Parikh, Non-Executive, Independent Director, Mr. Abhinav Anand, Non-Executive , 
Independent Director, *Mr. Hitendra Desai, Executive Director and Ms. Ratna Jhaveri Non-Executive , 
Independent Director composition of the committee constituted and details of the meetings attended by 
the Directors are given below:

Note #Mr. Darshit Parikh has resigned from the post of Independent director and as a member of Audit 
committee, Nomination and Remuneration committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee w.e.f. 15th 
June, 2019.
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*Mr. Hitendra Desai Chimanlal has been inducted as a member of Nomination and Remuneration 
committee w.e.f. 15th June, 2019.

The Company has not issued any Stock options to the Directors. Independent Directors of the Company 
have disclosed that they do not hold any Equity Shares of the Company. There has been no pecuniary 
relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company during the year under 
review.

12. Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder, M/s. K.M. Swadia & 
Co. Chartered Accountants, (ICAI Firm Registration No. 110740W), hold the office till the conclusion of 9th 
AGM of the Company. The Board had recommended re-appointment of M/s. K.M. Swadia & Co. Chartered 
Accountants, (ICAI Firm Registration No. 110740W) as the statutory auditors of the Company, for a further 
period of five years, at the ensuing 9th AGM.

Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified to act as Auditors and are eligible to hold office as 
Auditors of your Company. They have also confirmed that they hold a valid peer review certificate as 
prescribed under Listing Regulations.

13. Auditors' Report

The Auditors' Report contains one Qualification regarding non provision of Gratuity Liability on actuarial 
basis as required by Ind AS 19. The company is in the process of getting the liability ascertained on 
actuarial basis and in the current year hopes to provide for the same. Notes to Accounts and Auditors 
remarks in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

14. Corporate Governance

Non-applicability of Corporate Governance provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements! Regulations, 2015:

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, compliance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance are not applicable to 

the Companies having paid up equity share capital not exceeding Rs. 10 Crore and Net Worth 

not exceeding Rs. 25 Crore, as on the last day o f previous financial year ox on the Companies 

listed on SME Exchange.

In view of above, as per the latest Audited Financial Statement of the Company as at 31st March 2018, the 

paid-up Equity Share Capital and the Net Worth of the Company does not exceed the respective threshold 

limit of Rs. 10 Crore and Rs. 25 Crore, as aforesaid; hence compliance with the provisions of the Corporate 

Governance are not applicable to the Company.

15. Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management

The Directors and members of Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for 
Directors and Senior Management of the Company. The copies of Code of Conduct as applicable to the 
Executive Directors (including Senior Management of the Company) and Non-Executive Directors are 
uploaded on the website of the Company.
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16. Familiarization Program for Independent Directors

The Company has practice of conducting familiarization program of the Independent directors.

17. Relationship Between Directors Inter-Se

The Directors *Mr. Kirti Gandhi and Mr. Sandeep Gandhi are related to each other within the meaning of 
the term "relative" as per Section 2(77) of the Act and per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Other than these, none of the Directors are related.

*Mr. Kirti Gandhi resigned from the post of directorship w.e.f. June 21, 2019

18. Particulars of the Employees

The information as required under Section 197 of the Act and rules made there-under is not applicable as 
none of the employees are in receipt of remuneration which exceeds the limits specified under the said 
rules.

19. Documents placed on the Website of the Company:

The following documents have been placed on the website in compliance with the Act:

• Financial statements of the Company and consolidated financial statements along with 
relevant documents as per third proviso to Section 136(1).

• Details of Vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns as per 
proviso to Section 177(10).

• The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors as per Schedule IV to the 
act.

• Latest Announcements
• Annual Reports
• Shareholding Pattern
• Code of Conduct
• Nomination and Remuneration Policy

20. Human Resource Management (Material developments in Human Resources / 
Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed)

The Company offers a growth environment along with monetary benefits in line with industry standards. 
The Company has a number of employee initiatives to attract, retain and develop talent in the 
organization. The industrial relations during the year were cordial on all the fronts. The number of people 
employed in the year of report were 53.

21. Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had appointed, H B Upasani & Co, 
Practicing Company Secretary as its Secretarial Auditor to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for 
the F.Y. 2018-19. The Company has provided all the assistance and facilities to the Secretarial Auditor for 
conducting their audit. Report of Secretarial Auditors for the F.Y 2018-19 in Form MR-3 is annexed to this 
report as Annexure-II.

22. Explanation or comments on Qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by 
Auditors and the Practicing Company Secretary in their Reports:

The Auditors' Report contains one Qualification regarding non provision of Gratuity Liability on actuarial 
basis as required by Ind AS 19. The company is in the process of getting the liability ascertained on 
actuarial basis and in the current year hopes to provide for the same. Notes to Accounts and Auditors 
remarks in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.
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The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any Qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks.

23. Share Capital

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2018 was Rs. 2,40,00,000 divided into 24,00,000 
shares of Rs.10/- each which has increased as on 31st March, 2019 to Rs. 3,33,60,000 divided into 
33,36,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each. The increase in capital was due to allotment of 936,000 Equity 
shares of Rs. 10/- each pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement for the Demerger under Sections 230 to 232 
of the Companies Act, 2013 between Corporate Courier and Cargo Limited("CCCL" or the Transferor 
Company) and Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" 
or "Transferee Company" No. 1) and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers 
Limited) ("MDL" or "Transferee Company" No. 2) their respective shareholders and creditors (The 
"Scheme").

24. Shares:

a. Buyback of Securities: The Company has not bought back any of the securities during the year under 
review.

b. Sweat Equity: The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review.
c. Employee Stock Option Plan: The Company has not provided any stock options to the employees.

25. Credit Rating

The company is in the process of obtaining credit rating for its Bank Finances from Care Ratings.

26. Fixed Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits and, as such, no amount of principal or interest was 
outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

27. Directors Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 
along with no material departures;

(b) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that 
period;

(c) They have taken proper and sufficient care, to the best of their knowledge and ability, for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

(d) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
(e) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively
(f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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28. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Research 81 Development and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8(3) the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 forming part of Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2019 is as under:

Conservation of Energy: The Company's operations involve low energy consumption. However efforts to 
conserve and optimize the use of energy through improved operational methods and other means will 
continue.

Technology Absorption: The Technology available and utilized is continuously being upgraded to improve 
overall performance and productivity.

Research 8i Development: Your Company believes that research 8i development is a continuous process for 
sustained corporate excellence. Our research 8i development activities help us in product and service 
improvement, effective time management and are focused to provide unique benefits to our customers. 
Such methods do not involve any specific cost burden to the Company.

Foreign Exchange Earnings : Rs. 4,35,53,025/- (previous year 1,97,86,861/-)
Foreign Exchange Outgo : Rs. 7,86,52,297/- (previous year 68,65,305/-)

29. Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance 
evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its 
Audit, Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

Criteria for Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors includes:
1. Attendance and Participation.
2. Maintaining confidentiality.
3. Acting in good faith and in the interest of the company as a whole.
4. Exercising duties with due diligence and reasonable care.
5. Complying with legislations and regulations in letter and spirit.
6. Openness to ideas, perspectives and opinions and ability to challenge old practices and throwing up new 

ideas for discussion.
7. Capacity to effectively examine financial and other information on operations of the company and the 

ability to make positive contribution thereon.

30. Number of Meetings of the Board

During the year, 14 Board Meetings were held.

The dates on which the Board Meetings were held alongwith attendance are as follows:

Sr.
No.

Board Meeting Date Directors Present

1. 01-04-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Kirtikumar Gandhi, Rajesh Sahu, Sunil 
Bhirud

2. 10-05-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Kirtikumar Gandhi, Sunil Bhirud
3. 29-06-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Kirtikumar Gandhi, Rajesh Sahu, Sunil 

Bhirud
4. 30-07-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Kirtikumar Gandhi, Sunil Bhirud
5. 31-08-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Kirtikumar Gandhi, Sunil Bhirud
6. 03-09-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Kirtikumar Gandhi, Rajesh Sahu, Sunil 

Bhirud
7. 10-09-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Kirtikumar Gandhi, Rajesh Sahu, Sunil 

Bhirud
8. 29-09-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Kirtikumar Gandhi, Sunil Bhirud
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9. 29-10-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Kirtikumar Gandhi, Sunil Bhirud
10. 15-11-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Kirtikumar Gandhi, Rajesh Sahu, Sunil 

Bhirud
11. 10-12-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Abhinav Anand, Ratna Jhaveri, Darshit 

Parikh
12. 30-12-2018 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Abhinav Anand, Ratna Jhaveri, Darshit 

Parikh
13. 11-02-2019 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Abhinav Anand, Ratna Jhaveri, Darshit 

Parikh
14. 22-02-2019 Hitendra Desai, Sandeep Gandhi, Abhinav Anand, Ratna Jhaveri, Darshit 

Parikh

31. Declaration by an Independent Director(s)

The Board has received the declaration from all the Independent Directors as per the Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is satisfied that all the Independent Directors meet the criterion of 
independence as mentioned in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

32. Internal Financial Control System

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, which is a part of this report.

33. Composition of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of *Mr. Darshit Parikh, Independent Director #Mr. Abhinav Anand, 
Independent Director, Ms. Ratna Jhaveri, Independent Director and Mr. Hitendra Desai, Whole-Time 
Director. The Audit Committee is chaired by Ms. Ratna Jhaveri

*Mr. Darshit Parikh has resigned from the post of Independent director and as a member of Audit 
committee, Nomination and Remuneration committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee w.e.f. 15th 
June, 2019.

#Mr. Abhinav Anand has been inducted as a member of Audit committee, w.e.f. 15th June, 2019

34. Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

The stakeholders' relationship committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI 
Listing Regulations read with Section 178 of the Act.

Terms of reference

The Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in the Board's overall responsibilities 
relating to attending and redressal of the grievances of the security holders of the Company.

Functions

The Shareholders Relationship Committee is chaired by Mr. Abhinav Anand. The Committee comprises of 
#Mr. Darshit Parikh, Non-Executive, Independent Director, Mr. Abhinav Anand, Non-Executive, 
Independent Director, Mr. Hitendra Desai, Executive Director and *Ms. Ratna Jhaveri Non-Executive, 
Independent Director composition of the committee constituted and details of the meetings attended by 
the Directors are given below:

Note #Mr. Darshit Parikh has resigned from the post of Independent director and as a member of Audit 
committee, Nomination and Remuneration committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee w.e.f. 15th 
June, 2019.
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*Ms. Ratna Vikram Jhaveri has been inducted as a member of Stakeholder Relationship Committee w.e.f. 
15th June, 2019.

The Committee in particular looks into:
1. To oversee and review redressal of shareholder and investor grievances, on matters relating to transfer 
of securities, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of dividends/interests.
2. To issue duplicate share/debenture certificate(s) reported lost, defaced or destroyed as per the laid 
down procedure and to resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company, if any.
3. Attending to complaints of security holders routed by SEBI (SCORES)/Stock Exchanges/RBI or any other 
Regulatory Authorities.
4. Taking decision on waiver of requirement of obtaining the Succession Certificate/Probate of Will on case 
to case basis within the parameters set out by the Board of Directors.
5. To monitor transfer of the amounts/shares transferable to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
6. To list the securities of the Company on Stock Exchanges.
7. Any other matters that can facilitate better investor services and relations.

During the year under review, no queries/complaint were received from shareholders/investors. The 
numbers of pending share transfers as on March 31, 2019 were Nil.

35. Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy):

Your Company has established a mechanism called 'Vigil Mechanism' for directors and employees to report 
the unethical behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or ethics 
policy and provides safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. The Vigil 
Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company.

36. Risk Management Policy:

Risk Management Policy identifies, communicate and manage material risks across the organization. The 
policy also ensures that responsibilities have been appropriately delegated for risk management. Key Risk 
and mitigation measures are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis annexed to the Annual 
Report.

37. Corporate Social Responsibility:

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as it does not fall 
within the purview of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence it is not required to formulate 
policy on corporate social responsibility.

38. Extract of Annual Return:

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT-9 as a part of this 
Annual Report annexed as Annexure-I. The same is also available on the website of the company at the 
website- www.harishtextile.com

39. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or investments:

The company has not given any Loans or Guarantees and not made any Investments covered under the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

40. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length 
transactions under third proviso thereto have been disclosed in Form No. AOC-2 as Annexure-III.
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Your Directors thank the Company's Investors, Clients, Vendors, Bankers, Business and various 
governmental as well as regulatory agencies for their continued support and confidence in the 
management.

Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation of the dedicated and sincere 
services rendered by employees at all levels during the year. Your Company's consistent growth was made 
possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support.

41. Acknowledgements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sandeep Gandhi 
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 00941665

Hitendra Desai 
Executive Director 
DIN No.: 00452481

Date: 05.09.2019 
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure I

FORM NO. MGT 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2019

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 . CIN U29119MH2010PLC201521
2. Registration Date 31/03/2010
3. Name of the Company HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED
4. Category/Sub-category of 

the Company
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES/ INDIAN NON-GOVERNMENT 
COMPANY

5. Address of the Registered 
office & contact details

2nd FLOOR, 19 PARSI PANCHAYAT ROAD, ANDHERI (EAST), 
MUMBAI- 400069

6. Whether listed company Yes
7. Name, Address & contact 

details of the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent, if any.

1st FLOOR BHARAT TIN WORKS BUILDING, OPP. VASANT 
OASIS, MAKWANA ROAD, MAROL,ANDHERI EAST, MUMBAI- 
400059

8. E-mail Id skg2664@gmail.com
9. Telephone number +91-22-40373000

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % 
or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sr. No. Name and Description 
products / services

of main NIC Code of the 
Product/service

% to total turnover of the 
company

1 Textile Processing and 
Machineries

Finishing 1313 78.68%

2 Non Ferrous Metal 4662 21.31%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES [No. of 
Companies for which information is being filled]

Sr. NO
NAME AND ADDRESS OF 
THE COMPANY CIN/GLN

HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY / 
ASSOCIATE

1 N.A. N.A. N.A.
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 
A) Category-wise Share Holding

Category
of
Sharehold
ers

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year[As on 31-March-2018]

No. of Shares held at the end of the 
year[As on 31-March-2019]

%
Change
during
the
year

Demat Physical Total % of
Total
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of
Total
Shares

A.
Promoter
s
( i)
Indian
a)
Individual/
HUF

239998 2 2400000 100 239998 2 24000
00

71.94 (28.06)

b) Central 
Govt

- - - - - - - - “

c) State 
Govt(s)

- - - - - - - -

d) Bodies 
Corp.

- - - " - - ■ “

e) Banks / 
FI

- - - - - - - - “

f) Any 
other

- - - - - - - - “

Total 
sharehol 
ding of 
Promoter
(A)

2400000 2400000 100 2400000 24000
00

71.94 (28.06)

(2)

Foreign

a)
Individuals
(Non-
Resident
Individuals
/Foreign
Individuals
)

671519 264481 93600
0

28.06 28.06

b) Bodies 
Corporate

- - - - - - - - -

c)
Institution
s
d) Any 
Other

- - - - - - - - -
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(Specify)

Sub Total 

A2

671519 264481 93600
0

28.06 28.06

Total
Shareholdi 
ng of 
Promoter 
Group 
A(l+2)

239998 2 2400000 100 3336000 33360
00

100 0.00

B. Public
Sharehol
ding
1.
Institution
s
a) Mutual 
Funds

- - - - - - - - -

b) Banks / 
FI

- - - - - - - - -

c) Central 
Govt

- - - - - - - - -

d) State 
Govt(s)

- - - - - - - - -

e) Venture
Capital
Funds
f)
Insurance
Companie
s
g) fiis - - - - - - - - -
h) Foreign 
Venture 
Capital 
Funds

i) Others 
(specify)

- ■ ■ " - ~ ■ ■

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

- - - - - - - - -

2. Non- 
Institutio 
ns
a) Bodies 
Corp.
i) Indian - - - - - - - - -

ii)
Overseas

- - - - - - - - -

b)
Individuals

- - - - - - - - -

i)
Individual
sharehold
ers
holding
nominal
share
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capital up 
to Rs. 1 
lakh

ii)
Individual
sharehold
ers
holding 
nominal 
share 
capital in 
excess of 
Rs 1 lakh
c) Others 
(specify)

- - - - - - - -

Non
Resident
Indians
Overseas
Corporate
Bodies
Foreign
Nationals

- - - - - - - -

Clearing
Members

- - - - - - - -

Trusts - - - - - - - - -
Foreign 
Bodies - D 
R
Sub-total
(B)(2):-

- - - - - - - -

Total
Public
Shareholdi
ng
(B)=(B)(1) 
+ (B)(2)
C. Shares 
held by 
Custodia 
n for 
GDRs & 
ADRs

Grand
Total
(A+B+C)

239998
2 240000

0
100 333600

0
3336

000
100 0.00

Note- The Company had allotted 9,36,000 equity shares on October 29,2018 pursuant to the Scheme of 
Amalgamation between Corporate Courier and Cargo Limited("CCCL" or the Transferor Company) and 
Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee 
Company" No. 1) and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or 
"Transferee Company" No. 2) their respective shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme") and Trading 
approval for the same had been received from BSE Limited on June 06, 2019.
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B) Shareholding of Promoter (including Promoter Group):

Sr.
No.

Shareholder's
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 01.04.2018

Shareholding at the end of the year 
31.03.2019

% change 
in
sharehold 
ing during 
the year

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compan
y

%of
Shares
Pledged/
encumber
ed to total
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compan
y

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Mr. Sandeep 
Gandhi

23,83,344 99.31 0.00 23,83,344
71.44

0.00 (27.87)

2 *Mr. Kirti 
Gandhi

16,650 0.69 0.00 16,650

0.50

0.00 (0.19)

3 Sandeep Gandhi 
(HUF)

1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00

4 Kirtikumar 
Gandhi (HUF)

1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 Mr. Shovan 
Gandhi

1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00

6 Mr. Shaiv 
Gandhi

1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 Mrs. Saher 
Shovan Gandhi

1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00

8 Mrs. Shaila 
Gandhi

1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total
24,00,000 100.00 0 24,00,000 71.94 0

(28.06)

Note- The Company had allotted 9,36,000 equity shares on October 29,2018 pursuant to the Scheme of 
Amalgamation between Corporate Courier and Cargo Limited("CCCL" or the Transferor Company) and 
Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee 
Company" No. 1) and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or 
"Transferee Company" No. 2) their respective shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme") and Trading 
approval for the same had been received from BSE Limited on June 06, 2019.

*Mr. Kirtikumar Gandhi resigned from the post of directorship w.e.f. June 21, 2019
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C) Change in Promoters' (including Promoter Group) Shareholding:

SN Name of 
Promoter

Particulars Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of 
the
company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 
company

1 Mr. Sandeep 
Gandhi

At the beginning of 
the year

23,83,344 99.31 23,83,344 99.31

Increase/Decrease 0 (27.87) 0 (27.87)
At the end of the 
year

23,83,344 71.44 23,83,344 71.44

2 *Mr. Kirti 
Gandhi

At the beginning of 
the year

16,650 0.69 16,650 0.69

Increase/Decrease 0 (0.19) 0 (0.19)
At the end of the 
year

16,650 0.50 16,650 0.50

3 Sandeep Gandhi 
(HUF)

At the beginning of 
the year

1 0.00 1 0.00

Increase /Decrease 0 0 0 0
At the end of the 
year

1 0.00
1

0.00

4 Kirtikumar 
Gandhi (HUF)

At the beginning of 
the year

1 0.00 1 0.00

Increase/Decrease 0 0 0
At the end of the 
year

1 0.00 1 0.00

5 Mr. Shovan 
Gandhi

At the beginning of 
the year

1 0.00 1 0.00

Increase/Decrease 0 0 0
At the end of the 
year

1 0.00 1 0.00

6 Mr. Shaiv 
Gandhi

At the beginning of 
the year

1 0.00 1 0.00

Increase/Decrease 0 0 0
At the end of the 
year

1 0.00 1 0.00

7 Mrs. Saher 
Gandhi

At the beginning of 
the year

1 0.00 1 0.00

Increase/Decrease 0 0 0
At the end of the 
year

1 0.00 1 0.00

8 Mrs. Shaila 
Gandhi

At the beginning of 
the year

1 0.00 1 0.00

Increase/Decrease 0 0 0
At the end of the 
year

1 0.00 1 0.00

Note- The Company had allotted 9,36,000 equity shares on October 29,2018 pursuant to the Scheme of 
Amalgamation between Corporate Courier and Cargo LimitedfCCCL" or the Transferor Company) and 
Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee 
Company" No. 1) and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or
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"Transferee Company" No. 2) their respective shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme") and Trading 
approval for the same had been received from BSE Limited on June 06, 2019.

*Mr. Kirtikumar Gandhi resigned from the post of directorship w.e.f. June 21, 2019

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: -
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr.
No.

Name of top ten 
shareholder

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the 

year as on 1.4.2018

Change in Share- 
Holding during 
the year

Shareholding at the end of 
the year as on 31.3.2019

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of 
the company

'Jo. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of 

the
company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of 

the company

1 Dineshbhai 
Ambalal Patel

“ 66950 2.01 66950 2.01

2 Renaud Infracons 
Limited Liability 
Partnership

56069 1.68 56069 1.68

3 Priya Prakash - - 26466 0.79 26466 0.79
4 Anilkumar - - 20956 0.63 20956 0.63
5 Ketankumar V 

Patel
- 18460 0.55 18460 0.55

6 Patel Mayur 
Rajendrabhai

- 17171 0.51 17171 0.51

7 Vijay Gadhia - - 16237 0.49 16237 0.49
8 N B Trivedi HUF - - 14170 0.42 14170 0.42
9 Jayshreeben

Rajendrabhai
Patel

14055 0.42 14055 0.42

10 Kushal Sanjaybhai 
Patel

13256 0.40 13256 0.40

Note- The Company had allotted 9,36,000 equity shares on October 29,2018 pursuant to the Scheme of 
Amalgamation between Corporate Courier and Cargo Limited("CCCL" or the Transferor Company) and 
Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee 
Company" No. 1) and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or 
"Transferee Company" No. 2) their respective shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme") and Trading 
approval for the same had been received from BSE Limited on June 06, 2019.
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E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr.
No.

Name of the 
shareholder

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the 
year as on 1.4.2018

Change in Share- 
Holding during 
the year

Shareholding at the end of 
the year as on 31.3.2019

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of 

the company

Mo. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of 

the
company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of 

the company

1 Hitendra Desai
_ _

“ “
_ _

2 ♦ Kirtikumar Gandhi
16,650 0.69

0 (0.19)
16,650 0.50

3 Sandeep Gandhi
23,83,344 99.31

0 (27.87) 23,83,34
4 71.44

4 #Darshit Parikh - - - -

5 Abhinav Anand - - “ “ ■ -

6 Ratna Jhaveri - - - - - -

7 Pinkesh Upadhyay - - - “ - -

8 sRajesh Sahu - - - - -

9 sSunil Bhirud - - - “ - -

Note- The Company had allotted 9,36,000 equity shares on October 29,2018 pursuant to the Scheme of 
Amalgamation between Corporate Courier and Cargo Limited("CCCL" or the Transferor Company) and 
Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee 
Company" No. 1) and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or 
"Transferee Company" No. 2) their respective shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme") and Trading 
approval for the same had been received from BSE Limited on June 06, 2019.

*Mr. Kirtikumar Gandhi resigned from the post of directorship w.e.f. June 21, 2019

#Mr. Darshit Parikh resigned from the post of directorship w.e.f. June 15, 2019

$Mr. Rajesh Sahu and Mr. Sunil Bhirud resigned from the post of directorship w.e.f. February 11, 2019
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F) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due 
for payment.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans Deposits Total

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 74875288 12948138 - 87823426
ii) Interest due but not paid 559703 - - 559703
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 75434991 12948138 88383129

Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year
* Addition 1967005 60156527 - 62123532
* Reduction 15161896 19574537 - 34736433
Net Change 15402687 40581990 - 55984677

Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year
i) Principal Amount 61680397 53530128 - 115210525
ii) Interest due but not paid 318912 - - 318912
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 61999309 53530128 - 115529437
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V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of Director Total

Sandeep Gandhi Hitendra Desai

1 Gross salary 52,20,000 19,80,000 72,00,000
(a) Salary as per 
provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites 
u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of 
salary under section 
17(3) Income- tax Act, 
1961

2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission
as % of profit 

- others, specify...

5 Others, please specify
Total (A) 52,20,000 19,80,000 72,00,000
Ceiling as per the Act 84,00,000 84,00,000 1,68,00,000

Note- Salary includes professional fees taken by Directors till December, 2018 

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS- Sitting fees -N.A.

47



C. REMUNERATION TO KEY M ANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN M D/MANAGER/W TD

SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CEO cs CFO# Total

1 Gross salary - 25,000 1,50,000 1,75,000

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961

- ■ -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 
1961

2 Stock Option - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - - - -

- as % of profit - - - -
others, specify... - - - -

5 Others, please specify - - - -
Total - 25,000 1,50,000 1,75,000

# Note- Mr. Pinkesh Upadhyay were appointed as CFO of the Company w.e.f December 30, 2018 and Ms. 
Khushboo Desai resigned w.e.f. April 11, 2019

VI. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL
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Annexure II to the Directors' Reports 

Form No. MR-3

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019 

To,
The Members,
HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED 
CIN: U29119MH2010PLC201521
2nd FLOOR, 19 PARSI PANCHAYAT ROAD,
ANDHERI (EAST),
MUMBAI 400069

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED (hereinafter called the 
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our 
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- 
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:

The secretarial audit is carried out for financial year ending 31/03/2019, the company is Listed on BSE
w.e.f 06th day of June, 2019 therefore the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015 were not 
applicable during the period under Audit. However, the Company is complying with requirements of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 from the date of the listing.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 fSCRA') and the rules made thereunder.
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 
of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment. During the audit period, there were no 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowing.
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India

Act, 1992 CSEBI Act'): -
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999. (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period);
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 
[Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:
1. Factory Act, 1948.
2. Employees Compensation Act,1923.
3. Payment of Wages Act, 1936
4. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
5. Minimum Wages Act,1948.
6. Payment of Bonus Act,1965.
7. The Employees Provident Funds 8i Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
8. Employees State Insurance Act, 1948
9. Maharashtra State Tax on Professions / Trades Act, 1975

10. Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017
11. Sexual Flarassment Act,2013
12. Income Tax Act, 1961
13. Industrial Employment (Standing Order Act)1946
14. Environmental Management and Pollution Control Act, 1994

We have examined compliance of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) 
Regulation 2015 for the financial year ended 31/03/2019.

We have examined compliance with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India as notified by the Central Government and applicable from 01/07/2015.

We have not examined compliance by the Company with the applicable financial laws, like direct 
and indirect tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and 
other designated professionals.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted as follows:

1. Mr. Sandeep Kirtikumar Gandhi -Executive -Managing Director.
2. Mr. Hitendra Desai Chimanlal - Executive -Whole Time Director
3. Mr. Abhinav Anand -Non-Executive -Independent Director
4. Ms. Ratna Vikram Jhaveri- Non-Executive Woman & Independent Director
5. Mr. Pinkesh Fiasmukhlal Upadhyay- Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
6. Ms. Khushboo Desai (Company Secretary)*

* Ms. Khushboo Desai has resigned from the post of Company secretary w.e.f. 11.04.2019.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Audit Committee, Nomination 8i Remuneration Committee, and Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee the Company are constituted as follows:

7. i) Members of Audit Committee:

1. Ms. Ratna Vikram Jhaveri -Non-Executive- Independent Director
2. Mr. Darshit Parikh -  Non Executive -  Independent Director **
3. Mr. Abhinav Anand -Non-Executive -Independent Director ***
4. Mr. Hitendra Desai Chimanlal - Executive -Whole Time Director *****
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ii) Members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
1. Mr. Abhinav Anand -Non-Executive -Independent Director ***
2. Mr. Darshit Parikh -  Non Executive -  Independent Director**
3. Mrs. Ratna Vikram Jhaveri -Non-Executive- Independent Director ****
4. Mr. Hitendra Desai Chimanlal - Executive -Whole Time Director

iii) Members of Stakeholder Relationship Committee:
1. Mr. Abhinav Anand -Non-Executive -Independent Director ***
2. Mr. Darshit Parikh -  Non Executive -  Independent Director**
3. Mrs. Ratna Vikram Jhaveri -Non-Executive- Independent Director
4. Mr. Hitendra Desai Chimanlal - Executive -Whole Time Director

**Mr. Darshit Parikh has resigned from the post of Independent director and as a member 
of Audit committee, Nomination and Remuneration committee and Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee w.e.f. 15th June, 2019.

*** Mr. Abhinav Anand has been inducted as a member of Audit committee, w.e.f. 15th 
June, 2019.

****Mrs. Ratna Vikram Jhaveri has been inducted as a member of Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee w.e.f. 15th June, 2019.

*****Mr. Hitendra Desai Chimanlal has been inducted as a member of Nomination and 
Remuneration committee w.e.f. 15th June, 2019.

The Board Directors of the Company should be constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors and committee members to schedule the Board Meetings, 
and committee meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in 
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on 
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of 
the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that:

i) During the year under audit the company has increased the authorized share capital from 
5 crore to 10 crores.

ii) The Company had allotted 9,36,000 equity shares on October 29,2018 pursuant to the 
Scheme of Amalgamation between Corporate Courier and Cargo Limited("CCCL" or the 
Transferor Company) and Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish Textile 
Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee Company" No. 1) and Mahesh Developers 
Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or "Transferee Company" No. 2) 
their respective shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme") and Trading approval for the 
same had been received from BSE Limited on June 06, 2019.
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iii) The Company has filed the forms and returns with register of Companies, Regional 
Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or other authorities within the time 
prescribed under the Act and rules made there under. Wherever the forms were not filed 
within prescribed time, had been filed along with the additional fee.

For H B Upasani & Co. 
Company Secretaries

H B Upasani
Proprietor
Membership No. FCS 4891 COP-5966
Place: Mumbai
Date : 5th September, 2019

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ANNEXURE-A- and forms 
an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A to the Secretarial Audit Report

TO,
The Members,
HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 

done on the random test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We 

believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on the random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company.

For H B Upasani& Co.
Company Secretaries

H B Upasani 
Proprietor
Membership No. FCS-4891 COP-5966

Place: Mumbai
Date : 5th September, 2019
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Annexure III to the Directors' Reports 

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's 
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis.

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to during the year ended March 
31, 2019, which were not at arm's length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis.

There were no material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis for the year 
ended March 31, 2019.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sandeep Gandhi 
Managing Director 
DIN No.: 00941665

Hitendra Desai 
Executive Director 

DIN No.: 0045248
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ANNEXURE IV to the Directors' Reports 

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION

The information required under Section 197 of the Act and the Rules made there-under, in respect of 
employees of the Company, is follows:-

(a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the financial year;

Executive Directors Ratio to Median Remuneration

Mr. Sandeep Gandhi 7.07:1

Mr. Hitendra Desai 2.68:1

(b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year;

% Increase in 
remuneration

Mr. Sandeep Gandhi -

Mr. Hitendra Desai 17.85%

(c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 
10%

Note: Percentage in bracket represents negative percentage.

(d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 53

(e) The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and 
company performance;

On an average, employees received an increase of 10%. The increase in remuneration is in line with the 
market trends. In order to ensure that remuneration reflects company performance, the performance pay 
is linked to organization performance.

(f) Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance 
of the Company:

Particulars Rs. In lakhs
Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during financial year 2018- 
19 (aqqregated) 73.50

Revenue from operations 3754.37

Remuneration (as % of revenue) 1.96%

Profit before tax (PBT) 118.99

Remuneration (as % of PBT) 61.77%
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(g) variations in the market capitalization of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the 
closing date of the current financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase 
over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the 
rate at which the Company came out with the last public offer in case of listed companies, 
and in case of unlisted companies, the variations in the net worth of the Company as at the 
close of the current financial year and previous financial year;-

Not Applicable to the Company as the Company got listed on June 06,2019 pursuant to the Scheme of 
Arrangement for the Demerger under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 between Corporate 
Courier and Cargo Limited("CCCL" or the Transferor Company) and Harish Textile Engineers Private 
Limited (Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited) ("HTEPL" or "Transferee Company" No. 1) and Mahesh 
Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) ("MDL" or "Transferee Company" No. 2) 
their respective shareholders and creditors (The "Scheme").

(h) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration

The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2017-18 was 10%. 
Percentage increase in the managerial remuneration for the year was 4.35%.

(i) Comparison of each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the
performance of the Company__________________ _______________ _____________
Particulars Chief Executive 

Officer
Chief Financial 
Officer

Company
Secretary

Rs. /Lac Rs./Lac Rs./Lac

Remuneration “ 1.50 0.25

Revenue from operations 3754.37 3754.37

Remuneration (as % of 
revenue)

0.039% 0.006%

Profit before Tax (PBT) 118.99 118.99

Remuneration (as % of PBT) - 1.26% 0.21%

(j) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors;

No Variable Component in the Remuneration availed by Directors

(k) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who 
are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the 
year;

Not applicable.

(l) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company

The Company's remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual employees 
and the Company. Through its compensation package, the Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop 
and motivate a high performance staff. The Company follows a compensation mix of fixed pay, benefits 
and performance based variable pay. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance
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and the performance of the individuals measured through the annual appraisal process. The Company 
affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

(2)The statement to the board's report shall include a statement showing the name of every employee of
the company-.
who-
(i) if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the 
aggregate, was not less than one crore two lakh rupees;- Not Applicable to the Company

(ii) if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at 
a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh fifty thousand rupees per month;- Not 
Applicable to the Company

(iii) if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year 
which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that 
drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his 
spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company.- Not 
Applicable to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sandeep Gandhi 
Managing Director

Hitendra Desai 
Executive Director 
DIN No.: 0045248DIN No.: 00941665

Date: 05.09.2019 
Place: Mumbai
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of Harish Textile Engineers Limited.

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial Statements of Harish Textile Engineers Limited ("the 
Company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 

statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our 
report, the aforesaid financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conform ity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 

2019, the profit and total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
The Company has not provided for gratuity liability of employees as required by Ind AS 19 on 
"Employee Benefits" (Refer Note No. 28.1). The impact of the same could not be quantified in 

the absence of actuarial valuation/management estimate. Our audit opinion on the financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 is qualified in respect of the said matter.

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 

with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 
the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial Statements under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our qualified opinion on the Financial Statements.

Report on Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. We have determ ined that there are
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no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in Board's Report including Annexure to 
Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherw ise appears to be 

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material m isstatement of 

this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial Statements 

that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind 

AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material m isstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so.
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The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of financial statement
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material m isstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
m isstatement when it exists. M isstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
econom ic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material m isstatement of the financial Statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material m isstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
m isrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial Statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial Statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial Statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and tim ing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determ ine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial Statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determ ine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013, we give in the Annexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
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Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) W ith respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in Annexure "B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 

operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting.

g) W ith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of the section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to 
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 

with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) W ith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its financial Statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for 

material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 

31, 2019.

For K. M. Swadia and Company

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm's Registration No. 110740W)

Place: Vadodara 
Date: 5th September 2019

Arch it Antani

Partner
(Membership No. 149221)
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ANNEXURE-ATOTHE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report of even date)

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b. The Company has a regular program of physical verification of fixed assets by the 
management in a phased periodical manner, which, in our opinion is reasonable having 

regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this 
program, certain assets were verified by the management during the year and no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties 

are held in the name of the Company except for the follow ing properties.

Sr. No. D e s c r ip t io n  P ro p e r ty A m o u n t  in Rs.

01 F re e h o ld  A g r ic u ltu ra l Land* Rs. 6 ,5 0 ,0 0 ,0 0 0 /-

* The said land is presently registered in the name of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi, Director of 
the Company.

ii. As explanations given to us, the management has conducted physical verification of 
inventories at reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were 

noticed on such physical verification.

iii. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liabilities Partnerships or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the 

provisions of Para 3 (iii) [(a) to (c)] of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not 
applicable to the company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no loans or 
guarantees or securities have been given as per the provision of section 185 and 186 of the 
Act. However, the company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act to 

the extent applicable in respect of investments made.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 

any deposits during the year from the public within the meaning of provisions o f section 73
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to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under and therefore, 
reporting under clause (V) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to 
the order of the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) 
of the Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the 

prescribed records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a 
detailed examination of the records with a view to determ ining whether they are accurate 
or complete.

vii.
a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales- 

tax, GST, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and 
any other statutory dues applicable to it and there are no such outstanding dues as at 
the year end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable;

b. According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues 
outstanding of Income-tax, Sales-tax, GST, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise 

Duty, Value Added Tax on account of any dispute.

viii. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to 
us by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in the 
repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions. The Company does not have any 

loans or borrowings from any government or debenture holders.

ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term 

loans have been applied for the purpose for which raised. The Company has not raised any 
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year.

x. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material 

fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

xi. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has 
complied with the provisions of section 197 read with schedule 5 to the Companies Act, 
2013 with respect to managerial remuneration.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
is not a Nidhi Company and therefore, reporting under clause (xii) of the order is not 
applicable to the Company.
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xiii. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us the Company's 
transactions with its related party are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year under review.

xv. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has 

not entered in to any non cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause (XV) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not required to 
register under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For K. M. Swadia and Company
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 110740W)

Place: Vadodara
Date: 5th September 2019

Archit Antani
Partner

Membership No. 149221)
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under "Report on the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Harish Textile Engineers 

Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

1. Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants o f India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 

Note") and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statement of the Company were established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial 

controls with reference to Financial Statement of the Company and the ir operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the
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risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material m isstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting.

3. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

perm it preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 

use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements.

4. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent lim itations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

m isstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

5. Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the Company has, in all material respects, an internal financial controls with reference to 

Financial Statements of the Company and such internal financial controls over financial
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reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K. M. Swadia and Company
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 110740W)

Archit Antani
Place: Vadodara Partner
Date:5th September 2019 (Membership No. 149221)
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HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019

(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
Note
No.

As at 31st March 
2019

As at 31st March 
2018

As at 1st April 2017

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 4 17,29,84,940 13,58,24,383 12,12,00,463
Capital work-in-progress 
Financial assets

5 2,99,39,717 2,92,71,625 2,89,14,044

Investments 6 - 6,46,79,225 6,23,41,987
Other Financial assets 7 6,49,43,341 4,29,10,501 3,51,02,315

Other Non Currrent Assets 8 1,18,28,416 1,51,43,309 1,89,87,374
Total Non-Current Assets 27,96,96,414 28,78,29,043 26,65,46,184

Current assets
Inventories 
Financial Assets

9 9,29,08,701 8,84,71,057 5,35,37,248

Trade receivables 10 3,74,82,622 3,99,18,153 5,04,55,702
Cash and cash equivalents 11 33,01,678 6,36,509 33,57,666

Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 - - 20,00,000
Other current assets 13 2,74,38,771 4,67,40,783 3,51,34,159

Total Current Assets 16,11,31,772 17,57,66,502 14,44,84,776
TOTAL ASSETS 44,08,28,186 46,35,95,545 41,10,30,959

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity

Equity Share Capital 14 3,33,60,000 2,40,00,000 50,00,000
Other Equity 15 4,72,36,174 4,58,59,275 5,10,99,220

Total Equity 8,05,96,174 6,98,59,275 5,60,99,220

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 4,69,30,661 1,73,58,136 1,57,88,328

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 17 1,08,83,490 1,09,21,128 1,00,12,785
Total Non-Current Liabilities 5,78,14,151 2,82,79,264 2,58,01,113

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 18 6,85,98,774 7,08,79,596 7,11,55,628
Trade payables 19

Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises - - -
and Small enterprises.
Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than Micro enterprises and Small

17,33,24,867 18,86,55,663 17,43,09,184

Other current liabilities 20 5,53,68,044 10,41,05,345 7,84,47,875
Short term Provisions 21 22,72,630 25,69,084 27,25,768
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 28,53,545 (7,52,682) 24,92,171

Total Current Liabilities 30,24,17,860 36,54,57,006 32,91,30,626
Total liabilities 36,02,32,011 39,37,36,270 35,49,31,740

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 44,08,28,186 46,35,95,545 41,10,30,959

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report attached
For K M Swadia & Co. For HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED
FRN - 110740W 
Chartered Accountants

CA. Archit D Antani 
Partner

M. No. -149221

M r.Sandeep Gandhi 

DIN : 00941665 

M anaging D irector

M r. H itendra Desai 

DIN :00452481 

W ho le Time D irector

M r. Pinkesh Upadhyay 

Chief Finanical O fficer

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 5th September, 2019

P la ce : Mumbai
Date : 5th September, 2019
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HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2019

(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
Note
No.

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

For the Year ended 
31st March 2018

Revenue
Revenue from Operations 23 37,71,63,921 37,28,14,331
Other income 24 1,61,09,692 2,06,21,123

Total Income 39,32,73,613 39,34,35,454
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 25 15,92,19,564 24,55,40,013
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-
progress and Stock in Trade 26 (31,99,145) (3,57,72,705)
Purchase of stock in trade 27 8,27,50,417 58,29,884
Employee Benefits Expenses 28 3,50,52,550 2,60,99,801
Finance Costs 29 1,05,12,048 1,14,80,308
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 4 78,32,318 1,16,50,569
Other Expenses 30 8,77,99,804 12,03,89,186

Total Expenses 37,99,67,555 38,52,17,056
Profit Before Tax 1,33,06,057 82,18,398
Tax expense:

Current Tax 31 38,56,796 15,50,000
Adjustment for earlier tax expense 31 - -

Deffered Tax 31 (37,638) 9,08,343
Profit for the year 94,86,899 57,60,055
Other comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 94,86,899 57,60,055

Earnings per equity share of FV of Rs. 10 each 25,56,000 15,38,630
Basic 32 3.39 3.74
Diluted 32 3.39 3.74

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report attached

For K M Swadia & Co. For HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIM ITED

FRN - 110740W 
Chartered Accountants

CA. Archit D Antani 
Partner
M. No. -149221

Mr.Sandeep Gandhi 
DIN : 00941665 

Managing Director

M r. Hitendra Desai 
DIN :00452481 

Whole Time Director

Mr. Pinkesh Upadhyay 
Chief Finanical Officer

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 5th September, 2019

HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2019

(Amounts in Rs.)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 5th September, 2019
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Particulars
For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March 2019 31st March 2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Tax 
Adjustments for:

1,33,06,057 82,18,398

Depreciation and amortisation 78,32,318 1,16,50,569
(Profit) /  Loss on sale of Fixed assets 16,915 14,24,783
Interest Income (36,75,213) (33,69,710)
Interest Paid 97,51,997 1,13,34,911

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 
Adjustments for changes in Working Capital

2,72,32,074 2,92,58,951

(lncrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 36,85,531 1,05,37,549
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other - Non Current Assets 33,14,893 38,44,065
(lncrease)/Decrease in Non Current financial assets (2,20,32,840) (78,08,185)
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 1,93,02,012 (1,16,06,624)
(lncrease)/Decrease in Inventories (44,37,644) (3,49,33,809)

Changes in Trade and Other Receivables (1,68,048) (3,99,67,004)
Increase/fDecrease) in Trade Payables (1,53,30,796) 1,43,46,479
Increase/fDecrease) in Other current Liabilities (4,87,37,301) 2,56,57,470

Increase/fDecrease) in Short-term provisions (2,96,454) (1,56,684)
Changes in Trade and Other Payables (6,43,64,551) 3,98,47,265
Cash Generated from Operations (3,73,00,525) 2,91,39,212

Income tax paid ( Net of refunds) 2,50,569 47,94,853
Net Cash from Operating Activities (3,75,51,094) 2,43,44,359

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase/fDecrease) in Investments 6,46,79,225 (23,37,238)
Proceeds from sale of Assets 2,53,36,990 18,53,000
Purchase of Assets. (7,03,46,780) (2,95,52,272)
Capital Work-in-process (6,68,092) (3,57,581)
Interest Received 36,75,213 33,69,710

Net Cash used in Investing Activities 2,26,76,556 (2,70,24,381)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of equity shares 80,00,000

Proceeds from  Long-term borrowings (incl. current maturities of 

long term  borrowing)
5,53,55,922 2,33,82,713

Repayment of Long term  loans borrowings (incl. current maturities 

o f long term  borrowing)
(2,78,23,426) (2,33,33,294)

Change in Short-term borrowings (2,40,791) 12,44,357

Interest Paid (97,51,997) (1,13,34,911)
Net Cash from Financing Activities 1,75,39,707 (20,41,135)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
26,65,169 (47,21,157)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,36,509 53,57,666

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 33,01,678 6,36,509

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise:
Cash in hand 1,99,216 6,17,152
Balances with Scheduled Banks 
Balance in Current and Savings Account 31,02,462 19,357
Total 33,01,678 6,36,509

Notes to Cash Flow Statement:
Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of: 
Cash on Hands 1,99,216 6,17,152
Deposit In TMB Bank - -
Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts 31,02,462 19,357
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 33,01,678 6,36,509
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting 
Standard 3(AS-3)" Cash Flow Statement).
Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our report attached

For K M Swadia & Co. For HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIM ITED
FRN - 110740W 
Chartered Accountants

Mr.Sandeep Gandhi
CA. Archit D Antani DIN : 00941665
Partner Managing Director
M. No. -149221 
Place : Mumbai
Date : 5th September, 2019 j *j

M r. Hitendra Desai 
DIN :00452481 

Whole Time Director

Mr. Pinkesh Upadhyay 
Chief Finanical Officer



Notes to financial statements for the year edned 31st March 2019

Note 6
Non- current Financial Assets : Investments____________________________________________________________________________________________(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

Non- current Investments.
Investment in Partnership Firm (Agratha Enterprise) 
Share in profit /loss 65% (Refer Note -6.1)

6,46,79,225 6,23,41,987

Total - 6,46,79,225.00 6,23,41,987.00
Note -6.1
The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on December 10, 2018 has considered and approved a draft deed of reconstitution 

to be entered into between the existing partners of M/s Agartha Enterprises and the Company for retirement of the Company from the 

partnership with effect from December 31, 2018.

Pursuant to the deed of reconstitution entered into on January 01, 2019, the Company has retired from the Partnership Firm with effect from 

December 31, 2018 and received the Agricultural land admeasuirng approximately 23815 Square meter in lieu of the Company's Capital 

Account Balance in partnership firm. The Company will initiate the process of converting the said land from Agricutural into Non Agricultural 

Land and transfer of title deeds in the name of the Company. The said land is presently registered in the name of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi, 

Director of the Company.

Note 7
Other Non- current Financial Assets____________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

Rent Deposit (To Related Parties) 6,49,43,341 4,29,10,501 3,51,02,315

Total 6,49,43,341 4,29,10,501 3,51,02,315

Note 8
Non- current other assets_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

Other Deposits, Balance with Governement 
Prepaid Expenses

4,17,307
1,14,11,109

4,14,877
1,47,28,432

13,97,875
1,75,89,499

Total 1,18,28,416 1,51,43,309 1,89,87,374

Note 9
Inventories__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
As at As at As at

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
(At lower of cost and net realisable value) - - -
Work in Process 7,99,84,500 7,67,85,355 4,10,12,650
Raw Materials 1,29,24,201 1,16,85,702 1,25,24,598

Total 9,29,08,701 8,84,71,057 5,35,37,248

Note 10
Trade receivables__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

Unsecured, Considered Good 
Outstanding for a period less than Six Months 2,38,83,134 1,53,10,127 4,17,30,925
Others 1,47,79,887 2,60,09,465 1,46,92,521

3,86,63,021 4,13,19,592 5,64,23,446
Less: Provision for Doubtful Receivables 

(Including Expected credit loss allowance) 11,80,399 14,01,439 59,67,744
Total 3,74,82,622 3,99,18,153 5,04,55,702
Note 10.1 - - -

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a 
Provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking 
informations. The expeted credit loss allowance is based on ageing of the days the receivables are over/past due and the rates as 
given in the provision matrix.

Provision for Adjusted Expected Credit Loss Allowance:_________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
As at As at

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Opening Balance
Additions/(Reversal) during the year 
Closing Balance

14,01,439
(2,21,040)
11,80,399

59,67,744
(45,66,305)

14,01,439
Note : The fair value of Trade Receivables is not materially different f r ^  the carrying value presented.



Note 11
Cash and cash equivalents_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
As at As at As at

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
Bank Balances: Current accounts 31,02,462 19,357 32,58,448
Cash on hand 1,99,216 6,17,152 99,218

Total 33,01,678 6,36,509 33,57,666

Note 12
Bank Balances (Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents)_______________________________________________________________________________(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

Deposits with maturity less than 12 months from reporting date ■ ■ 20,00,000

Total - - 20,00,000
Note 12.1
The fair value of Bank Balances (Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents) is not materially different from the carrying value presented.

Note 13
Other Current assets_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

(Unsecured and Considered Good) 
Advance to suppliers 1,49,58,756 1,23,42,628 1,83,60,684
Advance recoverable in cash or kind 74,37,195 2,51,47,618 96,41,456
Balance with government authority 13,91,392 56,74,745 36,39,324
Prepaid Expenses 36,01,426 35,18,086 34,50,650
Security Deposit 50,002 57,706 42,045

2,74,38,771 4,67,40,783 3,51,34,159
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Note 16
Non- current financial liabilities : Borrowings
Particulars As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018

Non-Current Current* Non-Current
Secured
Term Loan from Banks ( Refer Note No. 16.1) 40,97,336 40,97,336
Vehicle Loans ( Refer Note No. 16.2) 12,27,882 4,52,514 94,37,060

Total secured borrowing [A] 12,27,882 45,49,850 1,35,34,396
Unsecured
From Bank and NBFC( Refer Note No. 16.3) 55,25,479 37,30,012 16,73,740
Unsecured from Related Party
From Director Interest free 3,65,77,300 50,000
Inter Corporate Loan interest free 36,00,000 - 21,00,000

Total unsecured borrowing [B] 4,57,02,779 37,30,012 38,23,740
TOTAL [A+B] 4,69,30,661 82,79,862 1,73,58,136

* Amount disclosed under the head "Current financial liabilities : Others" (Note 18)
The Company does not have any continuing defaults in repayment of loans and interest as at the reporting date.

Note 16.1
Primary Security: The term loan is secured way of Mortgage of Kolkatta Office - 2nd Floor, Sikara.
Rate of interest is 12%.
Repayable in 120 equal instalments.
Note 16.2

Term loans (vehicle Loans) for acquisition of vehicles are secured only by the hypothecation of the respective Vehicle financed. Rate of 
interest is 9%.

Term loan are repayable in 60 Equal Installment.
Note 16.3
Repayable within 3 years
Rate of interest is in the range of 15% to 18%

Note 18
Current financial liabilities : Borrowings________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

Short Term Loan From Bank
Overdraft Loan (Refer Note 18.1) 6,03,18,912 6,05,59,703 5,93,15,346

Current maturities of long term borrowings - (Please refer Note 
18):-

a. Term Loan from Banks
Vehicle Loan 4,52,514 54,38,228 40,54,437
Term Loan 40,97,336 1,52,495 1,18,967

b. Unsecured
Term Loan 37,30,012 47,29,170 76,66,878

Total 6,85,98,774 7,08,79,596 7,11,55,628

Note 18.1
Mortgage Bank Loan carries interest 11.85% p.a. repayable on demand consists of a Bank overdraft from Corporation Bank of Rs. 

6,00,00,000/- (P.Y. Rs. 6,00,00,000/-) which is secured by hypothecation of stocks and debtors and mortgage of factory building situated at 

Plot No. 1 2 ,1 3 ,1 4 ,1 9 , 20 and 21 at Daga Udyognagar, bhilad and Personal guarantee of Director.

Note 19
Trade payables_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises - Trade payables others (Refer Note 19.1) 
Other trade payables

- - -

a. Trade payables for goods 15,47,26,734 17,36,76,633 16,05,79,570
b. Trade payables for Expenses 1,75,04,205 1,45,62,714 1,37,29,614
c. Trade payables for Capital goods 10,93,928 4,16,316 -

Total 17,33,24,867 18,86,55,663 17,43,09,184
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The Company is in the process of determining the list of undertaking covered under MSMED. Therefore, the required information could not 
be furnished.

Note 19.1

Note 20
Other Current liabilities___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

Advance from Customers 5,19,79,235 10,34,04,221 6,27,12,361
Statutory Dues 33,88,809 7,01,124 1,57,35,514
Total 5,53,68,044 10,41,05,345 7,84,47,875

Note 21
Current provisions (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

Employee benefits 8,74,417 22,39,604 17,17,853
Provision for Expenses 13,98,213 3,29,480 10,07,915

Total 22,72,630 25,69,084 27,25,768

Note 22
Details of Income tax assets and income tax liabilities (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
As at As at As at

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
Current Tax Liabilities (Net off Advance Tax and TDS) 28,53,545 (7,52,682) 24,92,171

Note 23
Revenue from Operations (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Revenue from Operations
Sale of products (Refer Note 23.1) 28,79,14,476 36,53,75,889
Sales of Traded Goods Sold 8,38,45,068 58,04,728
Sale of Service 54,04,377 16,33,714

Total 37,71,63,921 37,28,14,331

Note 23.1
The Government of India has implemented Goods and Service Tax ("GST") from July 01, 2017 replacing Excise 
Duty, Service Tax and various other indirect taxes. Revenue for the period upto June 30, 2017 are inclusive of 
excise duty of Rs. 95,14,927 / - , however, revenue for the period July 01, 2017 to March 31, 2018 and for ther 
period ended March 31, 2019 are shown net of GST.

Note 24
Other Income________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

Interest 36,75,213 33,69,710
Discount Received /Sundry Bal w.back 13,69,458 1,23,22,676
Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 2,46,446 -
Expected Credit Loss Reversal 2,21,040 45,66,305
Duty Draw Back /  Export Incentive 27,58,938 3,62,432
Forfeiture of Advances against orders 78,28,597
Miscellaneous Income 10,000 -

Total 1,61,09,692 2,06,21,123
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Note 25
Cost of materials consumed___________________________________________________________________________(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

Raw Material and Packing Material
Opening Stock Raw Material 
Add : Purchase Raw Material

1,16,85,702
16,04,58,063

1,25,24,598
24,47,01,117

Less: Closing Stock Raw Material
17,21,43,765

1,29,24,201
25,72,25,715

1,16,85,702
Total 15,92,19,564 24,55,40,013

Note 26
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock in Trade_____________  (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Work in Process 
sub total (a)
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 
Work in Process 
sub total (b)

7,67,85,355 4,10,12,650
7,67,85,355 4,10,12,650

7,99,84,500 7,67,85,355
7,99,84,500 7,67,85,355

Total (31,99,145) (3,57,72,705)

Note 27
Purchase of stock in trade__________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

Purchases 8,27,50,417 58,29,884
Total 8,27,50,417 58,29,884

Note 28
Employee benefits expense________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Allowances 1,80,64,941 1,02,82,026
Contribution to Provident Fund 5,28,121 2,89,157
Directors' Professional Fees 1,53,36,000 1,41,08,000
Welfare Expenses 11,23,488 14,20,618
Total 3,50,52,550 2,60,99,801
Note 28.1
The company has not made provision for gratuity liability as per requirement of IndAS -19 " Employee
Benefits".

Note 29
Finance Costs (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Bank Interest 97,51,997 1,13,34,911
Other Interest 1,56,887 -
Bank Processing Fees and Documentation Fees 6,03,164 1,45,397
Total 1,05,12,048 1,14,80,308
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Note 30
Other Expenses________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

Other Manufacturing Expenses

Job w ork Charges 2,33,89,669 4,06,71,260

Excise Duty on Sale of goods - 95,14,927

Pow er and Fuel 18,30,000 22,44,600

Factory Rent 12,00,000 12,00,000

Loading & Unloading Expenses 49,090 19,585

Repairs to Buildings 4,47,917 5,19,237

Repairs to Plant and M achinery - 40,432

Hire Charges 3,14,411 2,55,542

Excise Expenses - 35,365

Testing Expenses 8,810 7,490

Administrative & Other Expenses
2,72,39,897 5,45,08,438

Rates & Taxes 8,79,927 1,49,915

Auditor's Rem uneration 3,75,000 4,00,000

Insurance 10,97,570 6,86,758

Professional Fees /  M anpow er Expenses 3,13,09,803 3,15,08,637

Printing & Stationery 3,89,163 8,58,306

Rent 39,44,330 37,50,890

Donation 76,000 43,702

M em bership & Subscription Fees 2,01,246 -

Tours and Travelling expense 23,85,364 19,13,518

Conveyance 3,74,147 5,01,691

Vehicle expenses 27,78,907 38,56,882

Com puter Expenses 2,08,475 2,80,376

Security Charges 19,50,049 28,95,619

Postage & Telephone Charges 6,68,514 4,43,115

Sales Tax /  Service Tax /  GST Exp 2,78,692 5,55,973

Incom e Tax w .o ff - -

Loss on Sale of DEPB Licence 22,534 -

W ate r Charges 94,000 1,04,000

General Expenses 5,49,021 23,15,741

E lectricity  charges 1,84,176 7,52,685

Car/ Bus Hire Charges 3,36,760 17,54,393

Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations 2,37,663 1,92,849

Repairs and M aintenance 25,97,278 32,50,422

Am ortization of Goodwill - -

Dem erger Expenses 9,50,000 -

Bank Charges 8,26,355 8,06,977

Depository and listing Expenses 62,080 -

Loss on Sale of Asset 16,915 14,24,783

Marketing, Selling & Distribution 

Selling Expenses

5,27,93,969 5,84,47,232

Advertisem ent & Sales Prom otion Expenses 1,06,077 42,040

Comm ission and Brokerage 7,68,947 15,45,020

Exhibition cum Sem inar Expenses 45,229 4,24,712

O utward Freight, Fo rw ard in g ,Transport, Octroi etc. (Net) 61,72,051 44,24,450

Lodging and Boarding expenses 6,73,634 9,97,294

77,65,938 74,33,516
Total 8,77,99,804 12,03,89,186
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Note 31 
Tax expense
(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2019
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
Current Tax
(a) Current income tax
(b) Deferred Tax
(b) Short/(Excess) provision of income tax in respect of 
previous years

38,56,796
(37,638)

15,50,000
9,08,343

Tax expense for the year ( a+b) 38,19,158 24,58,343

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
The following is a reconciliation of the Comapany's effective tax rates for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 
March 2018

(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit before income tax as per Statement of Proit and Loss 1,33,06,057 82,18,398
Enacted tax rate in india in Percentage 27.82% 25.75%
Computed expected tax expense 37,01,745 21,16,237
Other difference On account of:

Difference in depreciation between books and income (38,338) 2,33,019
tax purpose

Others (42,942) 1,09,086
Expesnes o f increase in authorised Capital 1,98,693

Income Tax Expense 38,19,158 24,58,343
Effective tax rate 28.70% 29.91%

Note 32
Earning per Share -(EPS)
Earnings per equity share of FV of Rs. 10 each
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of 
Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars
For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

Profit for the year (Profit attributable to equity shareholders) 94,86,899 57,60,055
Weighted average number of ordinary equity shares for Basic EPS (in 27,94,915 15,38,630
Nos.)

Weighted average number of ordinary equity shares for Diluted EPS 27,94,915 15,38,630
(in Nos.)
Face Value of equity share ( RS) 10 10
Basic EPS ( RS.) 3.39 3.74
Diluted EPS ( RS) 3.39 3.74
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HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIM ITED 

Notes to financial statem ents fo r the year edned 31st M arch 2019

(a) Equity share capital (Am ounts in Rs.)

Equity share capital
As at 31st M arch 2019 As at 31st M arch 2018 As at 1 April 2017

Am ount Am ount Am ount

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 2,40 ,00,000 50,00,000 50,00,000

Additions/fReductions) 93,60,000 1,90,00,000 -

Additions/fReductions) -

Balance at the end of the reporting period 3,33 ,60,000 2,40 ,00,000 50,00,000

(b) O ther equity (Am ounts in Rs.)

O ther equity Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

Retained earings Total O ther Equity

Balance at April 01 , 2017 5,10 ,99 ,220 5,10 ,99,220

Add: Profit during the Period 57,60,055 57,60,055

L e s s : Issue of Shares (1 ,10,00,000) (1 ,10,00,000)

Balance at M arch 31, 2018 4,58 ,59,275 4,58 ,59,275

Add: Profit during the Period 94,86,899 94,86,899

L e s s : Transfer on account of Demerger (Refer Note 34 C) (81,10,000) (81,10,000)

Balance at M arch 31, 2019 4,72 ,36 ,174 4,72 ,36 ,174

As per our report attached 

For K M Swadia & Co.

For HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED

FRN - 110740W 
Chartered Accountants

Mr.Sandeep Gandhi M r. Hitendra Desai

DIN : 00941665 DIN :00452481

Managing Director W hole Tim e Director

CA. Archit D Antani

Partner M r. Pinkesh Upadhyay

M. N o .-149221 - Chief Finanical Officer

P la c e : Mumbai P la c e : Mumbai

Date : 5th September, 2019 Date : 5th September, 2019

79



HARISH TE X T ILE  EN G IN EERS LIM ITED

N otes to  Ind  AS F in a n c ia l s ta te m e n ts  fo r  th e  y e a r  ended 31st M arch  2019 .

A u th o riza tio n  o f f in a n c ia l s ta te m e n ts : |

The Financia l S ta tem ents w e re  auth o rized  fo r issue in acco rd an ce  w ith  a reso lu tio n  passed in m eeting  o f Board  o f th e  D irec to rs held  on 5th Sep tem b er, 2019 .

N ote 1 C o rp o ra te  In fo rm atio n

H arish  Te xtile  Eng ineers L im ited  ("C o m p any") is a public lim ited  co m p any d om iciled  in India and inco rp o rated  u nd er the  p rov is ions o f th e  C om pan ies A ct, 1956. Th e  reg iste red  o ffice  o f 

the  C om pany is located  2nd F lo o r 19, Parsi P anchayat Road , A ndheri (E a st) , M um bai- 4 0 0 0 6 9 , India .

H arish  Te xtile  Eng ineers L im ited  (" th e  C o m pany") is m anufactu ring  o rgan iza tion  engaged in m anufactu ring  o f Te x tile  P rocess ing  and Fin ish ing  M ach in e ries . Th e  C om pany is a lso  

engaged in trad ing  o f non fe rro u s  m eta ls .

N ote 2 S ta tem e n t o f C o m pliance  w ith  Ind AS

The finan cia l s ta tem en ts has been p repared  in acco rd an ce and co m p ly in a ll m ate ria l a sp ec ts  w ith  Indian A ccounting  Standards (Ind AS) notified  u nd er Section  133 o f th e  C om pan ies 

A ct, 2013 (the A ct) [C om pan ies (Ind ian  A ccounting  Stand ard s) Ru les, 2015] and o th e r re le van t p rov is ions o f th e  Act and read  w ith  Rule 3 o f th e  C o m pan ies (Ind ian A ccounting  

Standards) Ru les, 2015 and C om pan ies (Ind ian A ccounting  Stand ard s) A m en dm ent Ru les, 2016 .

The finan cia l sta tem en ts fo r a ll th e  periods up to  ye a r ended 31 M arch  2018  w e re  p rep ared  in acco rd an ce w ith  th e  accounting  stand ard s notified  u nd er Section  133 o f the  C om pan ies 

A ct, 2013 (th e  A ct) [Com pan ies (Ind ian  A ccounting  Stand ard s) Ru les, 2015] and o th e r re le van t p rov is ions o f th e  A ct and read  w ith  Rule 7 o f the  C o m pan ies (A ccounts) Ru les, 2014 

(P rev io vus GAAP) and o th e r re le van t p rov is ions.

N ote 3 B a s is  o f P rep a ratio n  o f F in a n c ia l S ta tem e n ts

3 .01 S ig n ifican t A ccounting  Po lic ie s

Th is  note p rov id es a lis t o f the  sign ifican t accounting  p o lic ie s adopted in the  p rep aratio n  o f th e se  finan cia l s ta tem en ts . Th ese  polic ies have  been  co n s iste n tly  applied  to  all the  yea rs  

p resen ted , u n less o th e rw ise  sta ted .

3 .02 F irst-t im e  A do p tion  o f Ind AS

The co m p any has adopted a ll the  Ind AS stand ard s and th e  adoptions w as carried  o u t in acco rd an ce w ith  Ind AS 101 F irs t tim e  adoption  o f Indian A ccounting  Standards including 

c la rif ica tio n  issued by Ind AS T ran sit io n  Fac ility  G roup (ITFG ) on va rio u s issu es . Th e  tran s it io n  w as carried  o u t fro m  Indian A ccounting  P rin c ip les g en era lly  accepted  in India as 

p rescribed  u nd er Sec . 133 o f the  A ct, read  w ith  Rule7 o f the  C om pan ies (A cco unts) R u les,2014  (IG A AP), w h ich  w a s the  p rev io us GAAP.

These  finan cia l s ta tem en ts fo r  the  ye a r ended 31 M arch  2019  a re  th e  firs t  finan cia l s ta tem en ts o f the  C om pany u nd er Ind A S. Th e  date o f tran s it io n  to  Ind AS is 1st A pril 2017. 

R eco nc ilia tio ns and d escrip tion s o f the  e ffe c t o f th e  tran s it io n  has been sum m arized  in note 34 e fo r  an  exp lan ation  o f how  th e  tran s it io n  fro m  Ind ian  GAAP (IGAAP) to  Ind AS has
. X X . . * .  J iL  .  r __________ •- X:______1 _______ ______X:________1 _____ -X_________________ 1 ----- L. X I . . . . .

All asse ts  and liab ilit ie s  have been  classified  as cu rre n t o r non -cu rren t as per the  C om pany's norm al operating  cycle .

A ccounting  p o lic ie s have  been co n s iste n tly  applied  excep t w h e re  a new ly  issued accounting  standard  is in it ia lly  adopted o r a rev is ion  to  an  existing  accounting  standard  req u ires a 

change in the  accounting  policy h ithe rto  in use .

3 .03 H is to rica l C ost Co nven tio n

These  finan cia l s ta tem en ts have been p repared  and p resented  u nd er the  h isto rica l cost co nve n tio n , on th e  a ccru a l basis o f accounting  excep t fo r  ce rta in  finan cia l asse ts  and financia l 

liab ilit ie s  th a t a re  m easured  a t  fa ir  va lu es a t the  end o f each  reporting  p eriod , as sta ted  in the  accounting  p o lic ie s se t o u t be lo w . Th e  accounting  p o lic ie s have  been  applied  co nsisten tly  

o ve r a ll the  periods p resented  in th e se  finan cia l sta tem en ts .

3 .04 U se o f E st im a te s  and Jud g em ents

The p resentatio n  o f th e  fin an c ia l sta tem en ts a re  in co n fo rm ity  w ith  the  Ind AS w h ich  req u ires the  m anag em ent to  m ake e s tim a te s , jud g m ents and assum p tio n s tha t a ffe c t the 

rep orted  am o unts o f asse ts  and liab ilit ie s , reven ues and exp en ses and th e  accom pany ing  d isc lo su res and the  d isc lo su re  o f contingen t liab ilit ie s . Such e st im a te s  and assum p tio n s a re  

based on m anag em ent's eva lu ation  o f re le van t fa c ts  and c ircu m stan ces as on the  date  o f finan cia l sta tem en ts . The actu a l o utco m e m ay d iffe r fro m  these  estim ates .

E stim ate s and underly ing  assum p tio n s a re  rev iew ed  on an ongoing b asis . R ev is ions to  th e  accounting  e s tim a te s a re  recognised  in the  period  in w h ich  the  e s tim a te s a re  rev ised  and in 

a ny  fu tu re  p eriods a ffe cted .

Th is  note p rov id es an  o ve rv ie w  o f th e  a rea s  tha t involved a h igher degree o f ju d g em en t o r co m p lex ity , and o f item s w h ich  a re  m o re  like ly  to  be m a te ria lly  ad justed  due to  estim ates 

and assum p tio n s tu rn ing  out to  be d iffe ren t than  tho se  o rig ina lly  a ssessed . D eta iled  in fo rm ation  ab out each  o f th e se  e st im a te s  and jud g em ents is included in re le van t no tes tog ether 

w ith  in fo rm ation  about the  basis o f ca lcu la tio n  fo r each  a ffe cted  line item  in the  finan cia l sta tem ents .

In fo rm atio n  ab out assum p tio n s and estim atio n  u nce rta in tie s  th a t have a s ign ifican t r isk  o f resu lting  in a m ate ria l ad ju stm en t w ith in  the  n ext finan cia l ye a r a re  included in the  fo llow ing  

notes :

N ote 17 :- C u rren t/d e fe rred  ta x  expense 

N ote 34 (d) :- C ontingent liab ilit ie s  and assets 

N ote 33 & 10 :- E xpected  c red it loss fo r  rece ivab les

3 .05 P ro p e rty , P la n t and  Equ ip m ent

An item  o f P ro p erty , p lant and equ ip m ent tha t q ua lifie s as an asse ts  is m easured  a t th e ir  co st. Fo llow ing  in itia l reco g n ition , item s o f p rop erty , p lant and equ ip m ent a re  ca rried  a t cost 

less accu m u lated  d ep rec ia tio n  and accum u lated  im p a irm en t lo sses , if any .

The C om pany id en tifie s  and d ete rm in es the  co st o f each  p art o f an  item  o f p rop erty , p lant and equ ip m ent se p ara te ly , if th e  p art has a cost w h ich  is s ign ifican t to  the  to ta l cost o f tha t 

item  o f p ro p erty , p lant and equ ip m ent and has u sefu l life  tha t is m a te ria lly  d iffe ren t fro m  th a t o f th e  rem ain ing  item .

The cost o f an item  o f p ro p erty , p lant and equ ip m ent co m p rises o f its  purchase  p rice  including im p o rt duties and o th e r non-refundab le purchase  ta xe s o r le v ie s , d irectly  a ttribu tab le  

cost o f bringing th e  a sset to  its w orking  cond ition  fo r its  in tended  use and the  in itia l e s tim ate  o f decom m ission ing , resto ra tio n  and sim ila r  liab ilit ie s , if any . A ny trade d iscoun ts and 

reb a tes a re  deducted  in a rriv ing  a t th e  purchase  p rice . Cost in cludes co st o f rep lacing  a p art o f a p lant and equ ip m ent if th e  recognition  c rite ria  a re  m et. E xpend itu re  re la ted  to  p lans, 

designs and d raw ings o f build ings o r p lant and m ach in ery  is cap ita lized  u nd er re le van t heads o f p rop erty , p lant and eq u ip m en t if  th e  recognition  c rite ria  a re  m et.

Item s such  as spare p a rts , stand-by eq u ip m en t and se rv ic ing  eq u ip m en t tha t m ee t th e  d efin ition  o f p rop erty , p lant and equ ip m ent a re  cap ita lized  a t  co st and d ep rec ia ted  o ve r th e ir 

u sefu l life .
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Subsequent exp en d itu re s , including rep lacem ent co sts w h e re  ap p licab le , in cu rred  fo r an item  o f P ro p e rty  p lant and equ ip m ent a re  added to  its  book va lu e  on ly if th e y  in crease  the  

fu tu re  b en efits fro m  the  existing  asse t beyond its p rev io usly  a ssessed  standard  o f pe rfo rm ance  and th e  co st o f th e  item  can be m easured  re liab ly . The carry in g  am o un t o f any 

co m p onent accounted  fo r as a sep ara te  a sse t is de-recognised  w h en  rep laced .

Costs in n atu re  o f rep a irs and m a in ten an ce  a re  recognized  in the  S ta tem e nt o f P ro fit and Loss as and w h en  in cu rred .

A ny item  o f p rop erty , p lant and eq u ip m en t and any sign ifican t part in it ia lly  recognised  is derecogn ised  upon d isposa l o r w h en  no fu tu re  econom ic b en efits a re  exp ected  fro m  its use or 

d isposa l. A ny gain o r loss aris ing  on d erecogn ition  o f th e  a sse t (ca lcu la ted  as the  d iffe ren ce  b etw een  the  net d isposa l p roceeds and th e  carry in g  am o un t o f th e  asse t) is charged to  

reven ue  in th e  incom e sta tem en t w h en  th e  a sse t is derecogn ised .

The co st and re lated  accum u lated  d ep rec ia tio n  a re  e lim in ated  fro m  th e  fin an c ia l s ta tem en ts upon sa le  o r re tire m e n t o f the  asse t.

3 .06  C ap ita l w o rk-in -p rog ress

Cap ita l w ork-in-p rogress rep re se n ts  exp en d itu re  incu rred  in resp ect o f cap ita l p ro je cts and a re  carried  a t co st. C ost in cludes re la ted  acq u isition  exp en ses, d eve lo p m en t/ constructio n  

co sts , borrow ing  co sts and o th er d ire ct exp en d itu re .

3 .07  D ep rec ia tio n  and a m o rtisa tio n  m eth o d s , e s tim ated  u se fu l liv e s  and  re s id u a l va lu es

D ep rec ia tion  is recognised  so as to  w r ite  o ff th e  cost o f asse ts  (o the r than  freeho ld  land and Cap ita l w ork-in- progress) le ss th e ir  resid ua l va lu es on stra igh t-line m ethod o ve r th e ir 

u sefu l lives o f the  a sse ts .

The e stim ate  o f the  usefu l life  o f the  a sse ts  has been assessed  based on tech n ica l ad v ice  w h ich  co nsid ers th e  natu re  o f th e  asse t, the  usage o f the  a sse t, exp ected  physical w e a r  and 

te a r , th e  operating  co nd ition s o f th e  a sse t, antic ip ated  techno log ica l changes, m an u fac tu re rs  w a rra n t ie s  and m a in ten an ce  su p p ort, e tc . Th e  m anag em ent be lieves tha t th e se  useful 

lives a re  rea lis t ic  and re fle c t fa ir  ap pro x im atio n  o f the  period  o ve r w h ich  th e  asse ts  a re  like ly  to  be used . The usefu l lives a re  rev iew ed  by th e  m anag em ent a t  each  finan cia l ye a r end 

and rev ised , if ap p ro p ria te . In case  o f a rev is io n , th e  unam o rtised  d ep rec iab le  am o un t (rem ain in g  net va lu e  o f a sse ts) is charged o ve r th e  rev ised  rem ain ing  usefu l lives.

The resid ua l va lu es , u sefu l lives and m ethods o f d ep rec ia tio n  o f p ro p erty , p lant and equ ip m ent a re  rev iew ed  a t the  end o f each  finan cia l ye a r and ad justed  p rospective ly  if ap pro p riate .

C om ponent accounting  o f a sse ts : If s ign ifican t p arts  o f an  item  o f p rop erty , p lant and equ ip m ent have  d iffe ren t u sefu l live s, then  th e y  a re  accounted  fo r as se p ara te  item s (m a jo r 

co m p onents) o f p rop erty , p lant and equ ip m ent and acco rd ing ly d ep rec ia ted  a t the  usefu l lives.

3 .08  Im p a irm e n t o f n o n -fin anc ia l asse ts

A t the  b a lance sh ee t d a te , non-financia l asse ts  a re  rev iew ed  fo r im p a irm en t lo sses w h en eve r even ts  o r changes in c ircu m stan ces ind icate  th a t th e  carry in g  am ount m ay not be 

re co ve rab le . For the  purpose o f assess ing  im p a irm en t, the  sm alle s t id en tifiab le  group o f asse ts  th a t g en erates cash in flo w s fro m  co ntinu ing  use  tha t a re  largely ind ep end ent o f the  

cash in flo w s fro m  o th e r asse ts  o r groups o f a sse ts , is co nsid ered  as a cash  generating  u n it. If  a ny  such ind ication  ex is ts , an  e s tim a te  o f th e  reco verab le  am o un t o f the  a sset/cash  

generating  un it is m ade . The reco verab le  am o un t o f an a sse t is th e  g rea te r o f its fa ir  va lu e  less cost to  se ll and va lu e  in use . To  ca lcu la te  va lu e  in use , th e  estim ated  fu tu re  cash flo w s 

a re  d iscounted  to  th e ir p resent va lu e  using a pre-tax d iscount ra te  th a t re fle c ts  cu rre n t m arke t ra te s and th e  r isk  specific  to  the  asse t. For an a sse t tha t does not g en erate  largely 

independent cash in flo w s , the  reco verab le  am o un t is d e te rm in ed  fo r the  CGU to w h ich  th e  a sse t belongs. Fa ir va lu e  le ss co st to  se ll is th e  best e s tim ate  o f the  am o un t obta inab le  from  

th e  sa le  o f an a sset in an a rm 's  length transac tio n  b etw een  kno w led geab le , w illing  p a rtie s , less th e  co st o f d ispo sa l. A sse ts w h o se  carry in g  va lue  exceed s th e ir  reco verab le  am o un t a re  

w ritte n  dow n to  th e  reco verab le  am o un t. R eco verab le  am o un t is h igher o f an a sse t's  o r cash generating  un it 's  net se lling  p rice  and its  va lu e  in use.

A sse ssm en t is a lso  done a t each  Ba lance  Sheet date  as to  w h e th e r th e re  is a ny  ind ica tio n  th a t an  im p a irm en t loss recognized  fo r an a sse t in p rio r accounting  periods m ay no longer 

ex ist o r  m ay have d ecreased . If  th e  am o un t o f im p a irm en t loss sub sequen tly  d ecreases and th e  d ecrease  can be re la ted  o b jective ly  to  an  even t occu rring  a fte r  the  im p a irm en t w as 

recognised , then  the  p rev io usly  recognised  im p a irm en t loss is reversed  through p ro fit o r  loss.

Im p airm ent lo sses o f co ntinu ing  o pe ra tio n s, including im p a irm en t on in ven to ries , a re  recognised  in the  sta tem en t o f p ro fit and lo ss , e xce p t fo r  p ro p ertie s  p rev io usly  reva lued  w ith  the  

reva lu a tio n  su rp lus taken  to  O th er C om preh en sive  Incom e (O CI). For such  p ro p ertie s , th e  im p a irm en t is recognised  in OCI up to  th e  am o un t o f a ny  p rev io us reva lu a tio n  su rp lus .

3 .09  R even u e  recogn ition

R evenue is recognized  w h en  it  is p robab le tha t econom ic b en efits assoc ia ted  w ith  a tra n sac tio n  flo w s to  the  C om pany in the  o rd in a ry  co urse  o f its  ac tiv it ie s  and the  am ount o f revenue 

can be m easured  re liab ly . R evenue is m easured  a t the  fa ir  va lu e  o f the  co nsid era tio n  rece ived  o r rece ivab le , net o f re tu rn s , trad e  d iscoun ts and vo lum e reb a te s a llo w ed  by the  

Com pany. Th e  C om pany b ases its e s tim a te s on h isto rica l re su lts , taking  into co nsid era tio n  th e  type o f cu sto m er, the  typ e  o f transac tio n  and the  sp ecifics o f each  a rran g em en t.

R evenue includes o n ly  th e  gross in flo w s o f eco nom ic b en efits net o ff ta xe s co llected  on b eh a lf o f th ird  p a rtie s , if any .

R evenue fro m  sa le  o f p rod ucts is recognized  w h en  th e  C om pany tra n s fe rs  a ll th e  sign ifican t risks and rew a rd s o f o w ne rsh ip  to  th e  buyer, w h ile  th e  co m p any re ta in s n e ith e r continu ing  

m anageria l in vo lvem en t no r e ffe ctive  co n tro l o ve r th e  p roducts so ld . No sig n ifican t u n ce rta in ty  e x is ts  regarding  th e  am o un t o f th e  co nsid era tio n  th a t w ill be derived  fro m  th e  sa le  o f 

goods, am o un t o f sa le  can be m easured  re liab ly , and th e  co st in cu rred  and to  be incu rred  can be m easured  re liab ly . Sa les figu re a re  inc lu sive  o f exc ise  d uty and fre igh t in case  of 

landed ra te s , but a re  o f net o f sa les  re tu rn s , and ra te  o r q uan tity  ad ju stm en ts.

Exp o rt b en efits ava ilab le  under the  p reva len t schem es a re  recognized  w h en  th e re  e x is ts  no sign ifican t u n ce rta in ty  regards to  its rea lisa tio n .

In te re st is recognised  on tim e  p roportion  basis taking  in to  accco u nt th e  am o un t outstand ing  and th e  E ffec tive  In te re s t R ate app licab le .

D ividend incom e is reco g n ised , w h en  th e  right to  rece ive  paym ent is estab lished .

O th er o perating  incom e and m isc . in co m e a re  accounted  on accru a l basis as and w h en  the  right to  rece ive  a rise s .

3.10 B o rro w in g

Bo rro w ing s a re  in it ia lly  recognised  a t fa ir  va lu e , net o f transac tio n  co sts  in cu rred . Bo rro w ing s - in te re s t  bearing  loans a re  sub sequen tly  m easured  a t am o rtised  co st by using the 

e ffective  in te re st m ethod  (E IR  m eth o d ). A ny d iffe ren ce  b e tw een  th e  p roceed s (n e t o f transac tio n  co sts) and the  red em p tio n  am o un t is recognised  in p ro fit  o r  loss o ve r the  period  o f 

bo rro w ing  using the  e ffective  in te rest m ethod (E IR ). The EIR A m ortiza tio n  is included as F inance Costs in th e  sta tem en t o f p ro fit and loss.

Fees paid on th e  estab lish m en t o f loan fac ilit ie s  a re  recognised  as transac tio n  co sts o f loan  to  the  ex ten t th a t it is p robab le tha t som e o r a ll th e  fa c ility  w ill be d ra w  d o w n . In th is case , 

th e  fe e  is d e fe rred  until the  d ra w  dow n o ccu rs . To  th e  e x ten t th e re  is no ev id ence tha t it is p robab le th a t som e o r a ll o f the  fa c ility  w ill be d raw n  d o w n , th e  fee  is d e fe rred  as a 

paym ent fo r  liqu id ity se rv ices and am o rtised  o ve r th e  period  o f the  fa c ility  to  w h ich  it  re la te s .

81



Bo rro w ing s a re  rem oved  fro m  the  b a lance sh ee t w h en  the  obligation  specified  in th e  co n tract is d ischarged , can ce lled  o r e xp ired . Th e  d iffe ren ce  b etw een  th e  carry ing  am o un t o f a 

finan cia l liab ility  tha t has been  extinguished  o r tra n s fe rred  to  an o th e r p arty  and th e  co nsid era tio n  paid , including a ny  non-cash asse ts  tra n s fe rred  o r liab ilit ie s  assum ed , is recognised  in
n rn fit r\r l*-»cc ac AtKor in rA m o  a r A t k o r  o v n a n r a r  a r  u r o l l  a r  ♦ K ra i m h t k a  P IP  a m A ftiyatiA n  nrA rocc

Bo rro w ing s a re  cla ssif ied  as cu rre n t liab ilit ie s  u n less th e  C om pany has an unco nditiona l right to  d e fe r se ttlem en t o f th e  liab ility  fo r  a t least 12 m o nth s a fte r  th e  rep orting  period . 

W h e re  th e re  is a b reach  o f a m a te r ia l p rovis ion  o f a long-term  loan  a rran g em en t on o r b efo re  the  end o f reporting  period  w ith  the  e ffect th a t th e  liab ility  b ecom es payab le on dem and 

on the  reporting  d a te , th e  C om pany does not c la ss ify  th e  liab ility  as cu rre n t, i f  th e  lend er ag reed , a fte r  th e  reporting  period  and b efo re  the  approval o f th e  finan cia l s ta tem en t fo r

3 .11 B o rro w in g  Cost

The C om pany is cap ita lis ing  genera l and sp ecific  borrow ing  co sts tha t a re  d ire c tly  a ttrib u tab le  to  th e  acqu isition  o r co nstru ctio n  o f qualify ing  asse t up to  th e  date o f com m ission ing . 

Q ualifying  asse ts  a re  asse ts  tha t n ecessa rily  take  a su b stan tia l period  o f tim e  to  get read y fo r th e ir  in tended  use o r sa le . Th e  Exp enses incu rred  in co nnection  w ith  th e  a rran g em en t of 

specific  b orro w ings a re  cap ita lized  o ve r th e  period  o f th e  bo rro w ing  and e ve ry  ye a r such  co st is apportioned  to  asse ts  based on the  actu a l am o un t b o rro w ed  during th e  ye a r. A ll o ther 

bo rro w ing  co sts  a re  recognized  as exp ense  in the  period  in w h ich  th e y  a re  incu rred  and charged to  th e  s ta tem en t o f p ro fit and loss.

Investm en t incom e earned  on the  te m p o ra ry  in vestm e nt o f specific  borrow ing  pending th e ir  exp en d itu re  on qualifying  asse ts  is deducted  from  the  borrow ing  co sts elig ib le fo r 

cap ita lisa tio n .

3 .12  F in a n c ia l In s tru m en ts

A fin an c ia l in strum en t is any co n tract tha t g ives rise  to  a finan cia l a sse t o f one en t ity  and a finan cia l liab ility  o r eq u ity  in strum en t o f ano th er en tity .

3 .13  F in a n c ia l A sse t

(i) In it ia l R ecogn ition

A financia l a sse t o r a finan cia l liab ility  is recognised  in the  b a lance sh ee t o n ly  w h en , th e  C om pany b ecom es p a rty  to  th e  co n tractu a l p rov is ions o f the  in strum en t.

(ii) In it ia l M e a su re m e n t

A t in itia l recogn ition , th e  C om pany m easu res a finan cia l a sse t o r finan cia l liab ility  a t its  fa ir  va lu e .

(iii) S u b seq u en t M ea su rem en t

For purpose o f sub sequen t m easu rem en t, finan cia l a sse ts  a re  classified  in to :

• F inancia l asse ts  m easured  a t  am o rtised  co st;

• F inancia l asse ts  m easured  a t  fa ir  va lu e  through  p ro fit o r loss (FV T P L); and

• F inancia l asse ts  m easured  a t  fa ir  va lu e  through  o th e r co m p rehensive  incom e (FVTO CI).

The C om pany c la ss if ie s  its  finan cia l a sse ts  in the  above m entio ned  ca teg o ries based on:

• Th e  C o m p a n /s  business m odel fo r  m anaging the  finan cia l a sse ts , and

• Th e  co ntractu a l cash flo w s ch a ra c te ris t ic s  o f the  finan cia l asset.

A finan cia l asse ts  is m easured  a t am o rtised  cost if both  o f the  fo llo w ing  co nd ition s a re  m et:

• Th e  finan cia l a sset is held w ith in  a business m odel w h o se  o b jective  is to  hold finan cia l a sse ts  in o rd e r to  co lle c t co ntractu a l cash  flo w s and

• Th e  co ntractu a l te rm s o f the  finan cia l asse ts  g ive rise on specified  d ates to  cash  flo w s th a t a re  so le ly  p aym ents o f p rinc ip a l and in te re st (SPP I) on th e  p rinc ipal am o un t outstand ing .

F inancia l asse ts  a re  sub sequen tly  m easu red  a t am o rtised  co st using th e  e ffective  in te re st ra te  (E IR ) m etho d . A m ortised  cost is ca lcu la ted  by taking  into acco un t any d iscount or 

p rem ium  on acq u isition  and fees o r co sts th a t a re  an  in teg ra l p art o f th e  EIR . Th e  EIR am o rtisa tio n  is included in finan ce  incom e in th e  p ro fit o r loss. Th e  lo sses aris ing  fro m  im p a irm en t 

a re  recognised  in th e  p ro fit o r loss.

A finan cia l a sse t is m easured  a t fa ir  va lue  through  o th e r co m p rehensive  incom e if both o f th e  fo llo w ing  cond itions a re  m et:

• Th e  finan cia l a sset is held w ith in  a business m odel w h o se  o b jective  is ach ieved  by both co llecting  the  co n tractu a l cash  flo w s and se lling  finan cia l asse ts  and

• Th e  asse ts  co n tractu a l cash  flo w s rep rese n t SPPI.

A finan cia l a sse t is m easured  a t fa ir  va lue  through p ro fit o r loss u n less it is m easured  a t am o rtised  cost o r  a t fa ir  va lu e  through  o th e r co m p rehens ive  incom e. In ad d itio n , th e  Com pany 

m ay e lect to  designate a finan cia l a sse t, w h ich  o th e rw ise  m ee ts am o rtized  cost o r FVTO CI c r ite r ia , as a t FVTPL. H o w ever, such  e lectio n  is a llo w ed  on ly if doing so red u ces o r e lim in a te s 

a m ea su rem ent o r recognition  inco ns isten cy  (re fe rre d  to  as 'acco un ting  m ism atch ') .

A ccounting  po licy re le van t to  each  typ e  o f finan cia l in strum en t is as fo llo w s :

Cash and Cash  eq u iva len ts  :

Cash and Cash  eq u iva len ts  co m p rises o f cash b a lance , b a lance w ith  bank in cu rre n t acco un ts and bank o ve rd ra fts . In sta tem en t o f finan cia l p ositio n , th e  bank o ve rd ra fts  a re  show n 

w ith in  bank b orro w ings u nd er cu rre n t liab ilit ie s .

A ccounts re ce ivab le s :

A ccounts rece ivab les a re  am o un ts due fro m  cu sto m ers to w a rd s sa le  o f goods o r in th e  o rd in a ry  co urse  o f business . A ccounts rece ivab les a re  recognised  in it ia lly  a t th e  transac tion  

p rice . Th ey  a re  su b sequ en tly  m easured  a t am o rtized  co st using the  e ffe ctive  in te re st m etho d , less re se rve s fo r  im p a irm en t o f acco un ts rece ivab les . A re se rve  fo r im p a irm en t of 

accoun ts rece ivab les is recognised  w h en  it is p robab le tha t th e  co m p any w ill n o t be ab le to  co lle ct a ll am o unts due acco rd ing  to  o rig ina l te rm s o f the  accounts rece ivab les .

A ccounts payab les :

A ccounts payab le rep re se n t ob ligations to w a rd s  purchase  o f goods in the  o rd in a ry  co urse  o f business . Sam e is fre e  o f in te rest and p ayab le a t th e  end o f c red it period  g ranted  by the 

sup p lie rs . A ccounts p ayab les a re  recognized  in it ia lly  a t  th e  transac tio n  p rice . Th ey  a re  su b sequ en tly  m easured  a t am o rtized  co st using the  E ffec tive  In te re st m ethod .

O th er finan cia l ASSETS:

O th er financia l ASSETS a re  recognised  in it ia lly  a t tra n sac tio n  va lu e  and sub sequen tly  m easured  a t am o rtised  co st using the  e ffe c t ive  in te rest m ethod less im p a irm en t. H o w ever, all 

O th er finan cia l ASSETS have a va lu e  on rea lization  in the  o rd in a ry  co urse  o f th e  co m p any 's business , w h ich  is a t least equal to  th e  am o unts a t w h ich  Th ey  a re  sta ted  in the  sta tem en t of

finan cia l position .

O th er F inancia l liab ilit ie s .

O th er finan cia l liab ilit ie s  includ ing  bo rro w ing  a re  in it ia lly  m easu red  a t transac tio n  va lu e , net o f transac tio n  co sts . Th ey  a re  sub sequen tly  m easured  a t am o rtised  cost using the 

E ffec tive  In te rest m ethod.

(iv) D e-recogn ition

A finan cia l a sse t (o r, w h e re  app licab le , a p art o f a fin an c ia l a sse t o r  p a rt o f a group o f s im ila r  finan cia l a sse ts) is p rim arily  derecogn ised  (i.e . rem oved  fro m  the  C o m pany’s balance

sh ee t) w h en :

1. Th e  co n tractu a l r ights to  th e  cash flo w s fro m  the  finan cia l a sse t have  exp ired , o r

2. Th e  C om pany h as tra n s fe rred  its rights to  rece ive  cash  flo w s fro m  the  a sse t o r has assum ed  an o bligation  to  pay the  rece ived  cash flo w s in fu ll w ith o u t m a te r ia l d e lay  to  a th ird  p arty

under a 'pass-th rough' a rran g em en t; and e ith e r . 82



(1 ) Th e  C om pany has tra n s fe rred  su b stan tia lly  a ll th e  r isks and rew a rd s o f the  a sse t, or

(2 ) Th e  C om pany has n e ith e r tra n s fe rred  no r re ta ined  su b stan tia lly  a ll th e  risks and rew a rd s o f th e  a sse t, but has tra n s fe rred  co n tro l o f the  asse t.

W hen  th e  C om pany has tra n s fe rred  its  rights to  rece ive  cash flo w s fro m  an asse t o r  has en te red  into a pass-through a rran g em en t, it eva lu a te s if and to  w h a t ex ten t it has re ta ined  the 

risks and rew a rd s o f o w ne rsh ip . W hen  it has n e ith e r tra n s fe rre d  no r re ta ined  su b stan tia lly  all o f the  r isks and rew a rd s o f the  a sse t, no r tra n s fe rre d  contro l o f the  a sse t, th e  Com pany 

co n tin u es to  recognise th e  tra n s fe rre d  asse t to  the  e x ten t o f the  C o m pany's co ntinu ing  in vo lvem en t. In tha t case , the  C om pany a lso  recogn ises an assoc ia ted  liab ility . The tran sfe rred  

asse t and the  assoc ia ted  liab ility  a re  m easured  on a basis th a t re fle c ts  the  rights and ob ligations th a t the  C om pany has re ta in ed .

Continuing  in vo lvem en t th a t ta ke s the  fo rm  o f a guaran tee  o ve r the  tra n s fe rred  asse t is m easured  a t the  lo w e r o f th e  o rig ina l ca rry in g  am o un t o f th e  a sse t and the  m axim um  am ount 

o f co nsid e ra tio n  th a t th e  C om pany could be req u ired  to  rep ay.

(v) Im p a irm e n t o f F in a n c ia l A sse ts

The C om pany assesses im p a irm en t based on exp ected  c red it loss (EC L) m odel to  th e  fo llo w ing :

• F inancia l asse ts  m easured  a t  am o rtised  cost

• F inancia l asse ts  m easured  a t  fa ir  va lue  through  o th e r co m p rehensive  incom e

Expected  c red it lo sses a re  m easured  through a lo ss a llo w an ce  a t an  am o un t equal to :

• Th e  12-m onths exp ected  c red it lo sses (exp ected  c red it lo sses th a t re su lt fro m  tho se  d e fau lt even ts on the  finan cia l in strum en t th a t a re  p ossib le  w ith in  12 m onths a fte r  the  reporting  

d ate ): o r

• Full tim e  expected  c red it lo sses (exp ected  c red it lo sses th a t resu lt fro m  a ll possib le  d e fau lt even ts  o ve r th e  life  o f th e  finan cia l in stru m en t).

The C om pany uses a p rovis ion  m a trix  to  d e te rm in e  im p a irm en t loss a llo w an ce  on th e  p o rtfo lio  o f trade re ce ivab le s . Th e  p rovis ion  m atrix  is based on its  h isto rica lly  observed  d efau lt 

ra te s o ve r th e  exp ected  life  o f th e  trad e  rece ivab le  and is ad ju sted  fo r fo rw ard  looking e s tim a te s . A t e ve ry  rep orting  d a te , the  h isto rica l o bserved  d efau lt ra te s a re  updated and 

changes in th e  fo rw ard-loo k ing  e s tim a te s a re  ana lysed .

ECL im p a irm en t lo ss a llo w an ce  (o r re ve rsa l) recognized  during th e  period  is recognized  as in co m e/ exp ense  in th e  sta tem en t o f p ro fit and loss. Th is  am o un t is re flected  under th e  head 

'o th e r exp en ses' in th e  sta tem en t o f P ro fit  and Loss. The b a lance sh ee t p resen ta tio n  fo r v a rio u s finan cia l in stru m en ts is described  b e lo w :

• F inancia l asse ts  m easured  as a t am o rtised  cost and co ntractu a l revenue rece ivab les - ECL is p resented  as an  a llo w a n ce , i .e ., as an in teg ra l part o f the  m easu rem ent o f tho se  a sse ts  in 

th e  b a lance sh ee t. The a llo w an ce  red u ces the  net ca rry in g  am o un t. U ntil the  a sse t m ee ts  w rite -o ff c r ite r ia , th e  co m p any does n o t red uce im p a irm en t a llo w an ce  fro m  the  gross 

carry in g  am o unt.

• F inancia l asse ts  m easured  a t FVTOCI - Since fin an c ia l asse ts  a re  a lrea d y  re flec ted  a t fa ir  va lu e , im p a irm en t a llo w an ce  is not fu rth e r reduced  fro m  its va lu e . R a ther, ECL am o un t is 

p resented  as accum u lated  im p a irm en t am o un t in th e  OCI.

For assess ing  in crease  in c red it r isk  and im p a irm en t lo ss , the  C om pany co m b ines finan cia l in strum en ts on the  basis o f shared  c red it r isk  ch a ra c te ris t ic s  w ith  the  ob jective  o f fac ilita ting  

an ana lys is  tha t is designed to  en ab le  sig n ifican t in crease s in c red it r isk  to  be iden tified  on a t im e ly  basis .

The C om pany does not have a ny  purchased o r o rig inated  cred it-im pa ired  (PO CI) fin an c ia l a sse ts , i .e ., finan cia l asse ts  w h ich  a re  c red it im p a ired  on p u rch ase / o rig ination .

3 .14  F in a n c ia l L ia b ilit ie s  

(i) In it ia l reco g n ition  and  m ea su rem en t

Financia l liab ilit ie s  a re  c la ss if ied , a t in itia l recogn ition , as finan cia l liab ilities a t fa ir  va lue  through p ro fit o r lo ss , loans and b o rro w ings , payab les , o r as d e riva tives designated  as hedging 

in strum en ts in an e ffe ctive  hedge, as ap pro p riate .

All finan cia l liab ilit ie s  a re  recognised  in it ia lly  a t  fa ir  va lu e  and , in case  o f loans and b orro w ings and payab les , net o f d ire c tly  a ttrib u tab le  transac tio n  co sts .
The C om pany’ s finan cia l liab ilities include trade and o th e r p ayab les , loan  and b orro w ings including bank o ve rd ra fts , finan cia l g uaran tee  co n tracts  and d e riva tive  finan cia l in strum en ts .

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

S u b seq u en t m ea su rem en t

• F inancia l liab ilit ie s  m easured  a t am o rtised  co st.

• F inancia l liab ilit ie s  sub sequen tly  m easured  a t fa ir  va lu e  through p ro fit o r  loss

Financia l liab ilit ie s  a t fa ir  va lu e  through  p ro fit o r  lo ss include finan cia l liab ilit ie s  held fo r trad ing  and finan cia l liab ilities designated  upon in itia l recognition  as a t fa ir  va lu e  through  p ro fit 

o r  loss. F inancia l liab ilit ie s  a re  classified  as held fo r trad ing  if th e y  a re  incu rred  fo r the  purpose o f rep urchasing  in the  near te rm . G ains o r lo sses on liab ilities held fo r trad ing  are 

recognised  in th e  p ro fit o r loss.

F inancia l liab ilit ie s  designated  upon in itia l recognition  a t fa ir  va lue  through p ro fit o r loss a re  d esignated  as such a t th e  in itia l date  o f recogn ition , and on ly if th e  c r ite r ia  in Ind AS 109 

a re  sa tis fied . For liab ilit ie s  designated  as FV TPL , fa ir  va lu e  ga in s/ lo sses a ttrib u tab le  to  changes in ow n  cred it r isk  a re  recognized  in OCI. Th ese  ga in s/ loss a re  not subsequen tly  

tra n s fe rred  to  P ro fit  and Loss. H o w ever, th e  C om pany m ay tra n s fe r  the  cu m u lative  gain o r lo ss w ith in  eq u ity . A ll o th e r changes in fa ir  va lu e  o f such  liab ility  a re  recognised  in the 

sta tem ent o f p ro fit o r  loss. Th e  C om pany h as not designated  a ny  finan cia l liab ility  as a t fa ir  va lu e  through p ro fit and loss.

F in a n c ia l G u a ra n te e  C o ntracts

Financia l guaran tee  co n tra cts  issued by th e  C om pany a re  tho se  co n tracts  tha t req u ire  a paym ent to  be m ade to  re im b urse  the  ho lder fo r  a loss it in cu rs  because  the  sp ecified  debtor 

fa ils  to  m ake a p aym en t w h en  due in acco rd an ce  w ith  the  te rm s o f a debt in stru m en t. F inancia l g uaran tee  co n tracts  a re  recognised  in it ia lly  as a liab ility  a t fa ir  va lu e , ad justed  fo r 

transac tio n  co sts th a t a re  d ire c tly  a ttrib u tab le  to  th e  issuance o f the  g ua ran te e . Sub seq uen tly , th e  liab ility  is m easured  a t the  h igher o f th e  am o un t o f loss a llo w an ce  d e te rm in ed  as per 

im p a irm en t req u irem en ts o f Ind AS 109 and the  am o un t recognised  le ss cu m u lative  am o rtisa tio n .

Loan and  B o rro w ing s

A fte r  in itia l reco g n ition , in terest-b earin g  loans and borrow ings a re  sub sequen tly  m easured  a t am o rtised  cost using the  E ffec tive  In te rest R ate (E IR ) m etho d . G ains and lo sses a re  

recognised  in p ro fit o r loss w h en  the  liab ilities a re  derecogn ised  as w e ll as through the  EIR am o rtisa tio n  p rocess. A m ortised  co st is ca lcu la ted  by taking  in to  acco un t any d iscoun t or 

p rem ium  on acq u isition  and fe e s o r co sts  th a t a re  an  in teg ra l p art o f the  EIR . Th e  EIR am o rtisa tio n  is included as finan ce  co sts in th e  sta tem en t o f p ro fit  and loss.

D erecogn ition

A finan cia l liab ility  is derecogn ised  w h en  the  obligation  u nd er th e  liab ility  is d ischarged o r can ce lled  o r e xp ire s . W hen  an existing  finan cia l liab ility  is rep laced  by an o th e r fro m  the  sam e 

lend er on su b stan tia lly  d iffe ren t te rm s , o r  the  te rm s o f an  existing  liab ility  a re  su b stan tia lly  m o d ified , such  an exchange o r m od ification  is trea ted  as th e  d erecogn ition  o f the  original 

liab ility  and th e  recognition  o f a new  liab ility . The d iffe ren ce  in th e  resp ective  carry ing  am o un ts is recognised  in th e  s ta tem en t o f p ro fit o r  loss.

O ffse tting  fin a n c ia l in stru m en ts

Financia l asse ts  and liab ilities a re  o ffse t and th e  net am o un t is rep orted  in th e  b a lance sh ee t w h e re  th e re  is a legally en fo rceab le  right to  o ffse t the  recognised  am o un ts and th e re  is an 

in ten tion  to  se ttle  on a net basis o r rea lise  th e  a sse t and se ttle  th e  liab ility  s im u ltan eo us ly . Th e  legally  en fo rceab le  right m ust not be contingen t on fu tu re  even ts  and m ust be 

en fo rceab le  in th e  n o rm al co urse  o f business and in th e  even t o f d e fau lt , in so lven cy  o r b ankrup tcy o f the  group o r th e  co un te rp a rty .

83



3.15 F a ir  V a lu e  m ea su rem en t

The C om pany m easu res ce rta in  finan cia l in stru m en ts a t fa ir  va lue  a t each b a lance sh ee t d ate .

Fa ir va lu e  is the  p rice  tha t w ould  be rece ived  to  se ll an  a sse t o r  paid to  tra n s fe r  a liab ility  in an o rd e rly  transac tio n  b e tw een  m arke t p artic ip an ts  a t the  m easu rem ent d a te . Th e  fa ir  

va lu e  m ea su rem ent is based on the  p resum ption  tha t the  tra n sac tio n  to  se ll the  a sse t o r tra n s fe r  th e  liab ility  ta ke s p lace  e ith e r:

• In th e  p rinc ipal m arke t fo r  the  a sse t o r lia b ility , or

• In th e  absence o f a p rinc ipal m arke t, in th e  m o st advantageous m arke t fo r  th e  a sse t o r  liab ility .

The p rinc ipal o r the  m o st advantag eo us m arke t m ust be accessib le  by th e  C o m pany. Th e  fa ir  va lu e  o f an  a sse t o r a liab ility  is m easured  using th e  assum p tio n s tha t m arke t p a rtic ip an ts 

w ould  use w h en  pricing the  a sse t o r liab ility , assum ing th a t m arke t p a rtic ip an ts ac t in th e ir  eco nom ic best in te re st.

The C om pany uses va lu atio n  tech n iq ues th a t a re  ap pro p riate  in th e  c ircu m stan ces and fo r w h ich  su ffic ien t data a re  ava ilab le  to  m easu re  fa ir  va lu e , m axim ising  th e  use o f re le van t 

observab le  inp uts and m in im ising  the  use o f u no b servab le  inputs.

All asse ts  and liab ilit ie s  fo r  w h ich  fa ir  va lue  is m easured  o r d isclo sed  in the  finan cia l s ta tem en ts a re  ca tegorised  w ith in  the  fa ir  va lu e  h ie ra rch y , described  as u nd er, based on the  lo w est 

leve l input tha t is sig n ifican t to  th e  fa ir  va lu e  m ea su rem ent as a w h o le :

• Leve l 1 - Q uoted (unad justed ) m arke t p rices in ac tive  m arke ts  fo r  iden tica l asse ts  o r liab ilities .

• Leve l 2 - V a lu ation  tech n iq ues fo r w h ich  th e  lo w est leve l input tha t is s ign ifican t to  th e  fa ir  va lu e  m ea su rem ent is d ire c tly  o r  in d ire ctly  o bservab le .

• Leve l 3 - V a lu ation  tech n iq ues fo r w h ich  th e  lo w est leve l input tha t is s ign ifican t to  th e  fa ir  va lu e  m ea su rem ent is unobservab le .

For a sse ts  and liab ilit ie s  th a t a re  recognised  in the  finan cia l s ta tem en ts on a recu rring  b asis , the  C om pany d ete rm in es w h e th e r tra n s fe rs  have o ccu rred  b etw een  leve ls in the  h ie ra rchy  

by re-assessing  categ o risa tio n  (based on th e  lo w est le ve l input th a t is s ign ifican t to  th e  fa ir  va lu e  m ea su rem ent as a w h o le ) a t the  end o f each  reporting  period .

The C om pany's m anagem ent d e te rm in es the  p o lic ie s and p roced ures fo r  both recu rring  fa ir  va lu e  m easu rem ent, such as unquoted finan cia l a sse ts  m easured  a t fa ir  va lu e , and fo r non­

recu rring  m easu rem en t, such as a sse ts  held fo r d istrib u tion  in d iscon tinued  o p e ra tio n s . Th e  m anag em ent co m p rises o f th e  M anag ing D irec to r and W h o le  D irecto r and C h ie f Finance 

O ffice r.

For th e  purpose o f fa ir  va lue  d isc lo su re s , the  C om pany has d e te rm in ed  classes o f a sse ts  and liab ilit ie s  on the  basis o f th e  n a tu re , ch a ra c te ris t ic s  and risks o f th e  a sse t o r liab ility  and 

th e  leve l o f the  fa ir  va lue  h ie ra rch y  as exp la ined  above.

Th is note su m m arises accounting  policy fo r  fa ir  va lu e . O th er fa ir  va lue  re la ted  d isc lo su re s a re  given in the  re le van t n o tes , ( re fe r  note 33)

1. D isc lo su res fo r  va lu atio n  m ethods, s ign ifican t e s tim a te s and assum p tio ns.

2 . Q u an tita tive  d isc lo su re s o f fa ir  va lue  m ea su rem ent h ie ra rchy .

3 . F in ancia l in strum en ts (includ ing  tho se  ca rried  a t am o rtised  co st).

3 .16 In ven to r ie s

Raw  m a te r ia ls , w o rk-in-p rog ress, fin ished  goods, packing m a te r ia ls , s to res , sp a re s , co m p on en ts, consum ab les and stock-in  trade a re  ca rried  a t the  lo w e r o f cost and net rea lizab le  

va lu e . H o w ever, m a te ria ls  and o th e r item s held fo r  use in p roduction  o f in ven to rie s  a re  not w ritte n  dow n be low  co st if  th e  fin ished  goods in w h ich  th e y  w ill be inco rp o rated  are 

expected  to  be so ld  a t o r above co st. The com parison  o f cost and net rea lizab le  va lue  is m ad e on an  item -by item  basis .

Item s o f in ven to ries  a re  m easured  a t lo w e r o f co st and net rea lisab le  va lue  a fte r  p rovid ing fo r o bso len ces, if any . Cost o f in ven to ries  co m p rise  o f co st o f p u rch ase , cost o f convers ion  

and o th e r co sts including m anufactu ring  o ve r heads net o f reco verab le  ta xe s incu rred  in bringing them  to th e ir  resp ective  p resent location  and cond ition .

Cost o f in ven to ries  a re  d eterm ind  on the  fo llo w ing  basis.

In ven to r ie s C ost Fo rm u la

Raw  M ate ria l A t cost on firs t  in f irs t  o u t basis .

W o rk  in P rocess Raw  m ate ria l co st p lus co nvers io n  co st, w h e re v e r app licab le .

Trad ed  Goods A t cost on firs t  in f irs t  o u t basis .

3 .17 Fore ign  C u rren cy  T ra n sa c tio n s

Fu n ctio n a l and  P re se n ta tio n  cu rre n cy

Item s included in th e  finan cia l sta tem en ts a re  m easured  using th e  cu rre n cy  o f th e  p rim ary  econom ic en v iro n m en t in w h ich  th e  C om pany o pe ra te s ( ’th e  fu nction a l cu rre n cy '). The 

finan cia l s ta tem en ts a re  p resented  in Indian rup ee (IN R), w h ich  is the  fu nction a l and p resentatio n  cu rre n cy  o f th e  Com pany.

T ra n sa c tio n s  and  b a lances

Foreign cu rre n cy  tra n sac tio n s a re  trans la ted  in to  the  fu nc tio n a l cu rre n cy  using the  exchange ra te s  a t th e  date  o f th e  tra n sac tio n s . Foreign exchange gains and lo sses resu lting  fro m  the 

se ttlem en t o f such  tran sac tio n s and fro m  th e  tran s la tio n  o f m o ne tary  asse ts  and liab ilit ie s  denom inated  in fo re ign  cu rre n c ie s a t th e  year-end  exchange ra te s a re  gen era lly  recognised  

in p ro fit o r  loss.

All fo re ign  exchange gains and lo sses a re  p resented  in the  sta tem en t o f p ro fit and loss on a net basis w ith in  o th er incom e o r o th er exp enses.

N on-m o netary item s th a t a re  m easured  in te rm s o f h isto rica l co st in a fo re ign  cu rre n cy  a re  tran s la ted  using the  exchange ra te s a t the  d ates o f th e  in itia l t ra n sac tio n s . N on-m onetary 

item s tha t a re  m easured  a t fa ir  va lue  in a fo re ign  cu rre n cy  a re  tran s la ted  using the  exchange ra te s a t the  date  w h en  th e  fa ir  va lu e  w a s d ete rm in ed . Tran sla tio n  d iffe ren ces on assets 

and liab ilit ie s  ca rried  a t  fa ir  va lu e  a re  rep orted  as part o f th e  fa ir  va lue  gain o r loss.

3.18 Em p lo yee  B e n e fits

D efined  C o ntrib u tio n  P lan

The C om pany recognizes co n trib u tion  payab le to  a defined co n trib u tion  p lan as an  exp ense  in th e  S ta tem e nt o f P ro fit and Loss w h en  th e  em p lo yees ren d er se rv ices to  th e  Com pany 

during th e  reporting  period .

D efined  B e n e fit  P lan s

The co m p any has not m ade p rovis ion  fo r g ra tu ity  liab ility  as p er req u irem en t o f ln d A S $ 4  " Em p loyee Bene fits" .



Sh ort Te rm  Em p lo yee  Be ne fits

The und iscoun ted  am o un t o f sh o rt te rm  em p lo yee b en efits expected  to  be paid in exchange fo r se rv ices rend ered  by em p lo yees is recognized  during th e  period  w h en  the  em p loyee 

ren d ers th e  se rv ice s . Short te rm  em p lo yee b en efits in cludes sa la ry  and w ag es , bonus, in cen tive  and ex-gratia and a lso  includes accrued  leave b en e fits , w h ich  a re  exp ected  to  be 

ava iled  o r en-cashed w ith in  12 m onths fro m  th e  end o f the  ye a r.

Leases

The d ete rm in a tio n  o f w h e th e r an a rran g em en t is (o r co nta in s) a lease is based on th e  substance  o f the  a rran g em en t a t the  incep tion  o f th e  lease . Th e  a rran g em en t is , o r  co n ta in s , a 

lease  if fu lfilm en t o f th e  a rran g em en t is d ep en d en t on th e  use o f a specific  a sse t o r asse ts  and th e  a rran g em en t co nveys a right to  use th e  a sset o r  a sse ts , even  if tha t right is not 

e xp lic it ly  sp ecified  in an a rran g em en t.

A s a le ssee  

O p eratin g  lease

Leases in w h ich  a s ign ifican t portion  o f th e  risks and rew ard s in c id en ta l to  o w ne rsh ip  is not tra n s fe rred  to  the  C om pany as le ssee  a re  classified  as operating  leases . Lease paym ents 

under an  operating  lease  a re  recognised  as an exp en ses on a stra ig h t-line  basis o ve r the  lease  te rm  u nless e ith e r:

• an o th e r sy stem atic  basis is m o re  rep re se n ta tive  o f the  t im e  p atte rn  o f the  u se r's  benefit even  if the  paym ents to  the  le sso rs a re  not on th a t b asis ; or

• the  p aym ents to  the  le sso r a re  stru ctu red  to  in crease  in line w ith  exp ected  genera l in fla tio n  to  co m p en sa te  fo r the  le sso r's  exp ected  in fla tio na ry  cost in crease s . If  p aym ents to  the 

le sso r v a ry  because o f fa c to rs  o th e r than  genera l in fla tio n , then  th is cond ition  is not m et.

T a xa tio n

Tax expenses is the  aggregate am o un t included in the  d ete rm in a tio n  o f p ro fit o r loss fo r  the  period  in resp ect o f cu rre n t ta x  (i.e . am o un t o f tax  fo r  th e  period  d ete rm in ed  in 

acco rd an ce w ith  th e  Incom e Tax Law ) and d e fe rre d  ta x  (re flectin g  th e  ta x  e ffe c ts  o f tim ing  d iffe ren ces b etw een  accounting  incom e and taxab le  incom e fo r th e  p erio d ). Incom e tax 

expenses a re  recognised  in sta tem en t o f p ro fit o r  loss except tax  exp en ses re la ted  to  item s recognised  d irectly  in re se rve s (includ ing  sta tem en t o f o th e r co m p rehens ive  inco m e) w h ich  

a re  recognised  w ith  the  underly ing  item s.

C u rren t Ta x

The cu rre n t tax  exp ense  o r c red it fo r  the  period  is th e  tax  p ayab le on the  cu rre n t period 's taxab le  incom e based on th e  ap p licab le  incom e ta x  ra te  fo r  each  ju risd ic tion  ad justed  by 

changes in d e fe rred  tax  a sse ts  and liab ilit ie s  a ttrib u tab le  to  te m p o ra ry  d iffe ren ces and to  unused tax  lo sses.

The cu rre n t incom e tax  charge is ca lcu la ted  on the  basis o f th e  ta x  la w s en acted  o r su b stan tive ly  en acted  a t th e  end o f th e  rep orting  period  i.e . as p er the  p rov is io ns o f th e  Incom e Tax 

A ct, 1961 , as am ended  fro m  tim e  to  t im e . M anag em ent p erio d ica lly  eva lu a te s p ositions taken  in ta x  re tu rn s w ith  resp ect to  s ituatio ns in w h ich  ap p licab le  ta x  regu lation  is su b ject to  

in te rp re ta tio n . It estab lish es p rov is ions w h e re  ap pro p ria te  on th e  basis o f am o unts expected  to  be paid to  the  ta x  au th o ritie s .

A dvance ta xe s and p rov is ions fo r  cu rre n t incom e ta xe s a re  p resented  in the  b a lance sh ee t a fte r  o ff-setting  advance tax  paid and incom e tax  p rov is ion  arising  in th e  sam e tax 

ju risd ic tio n  fo r re le van t tax  paying u n its and w h e re  th e  C om pany is ab le to  and in tends to  se ttle  the  a sse t and liab ility  on a net basis .

D e fe rred  Ta xes

D eferred  ta x  is p rovided in fu ll on te m p o ra ry  d iffe ren ce  arising  b e tw een  the  tax  b ases o f th e  asse ts  and liab ilities and th e ir  ca rry in g  am o unts in finan cia l s ta tem en ts a t th e  reporting  

d ate . D eferred  ta xe s a re  recognised  in resp ect o f deductib le  tem p o ra ry  d iffe ren ces being the  d iffe ren ce  b etw een  taxab le  incom e and accounting  inco m e th a t o rig inate  in one period 

and a re  capab le  o f re ve rsa l in one o r m o re  sub sequen t p e rio d s., th e  ca rry  fo rw ard  o f unused tax  lo sses and th e  ca rry  fo rw ard  o f unused tax  c red its .

D e ferred  incom e ta x  is d e te rm in ed  using tax  ra tes (and law s) th a t have been  en acted  o r su b stan tia lly  en acted  by th e  end o f th e  reporting  period  and are  exp ected  to  apply w h en  the 

re la ted  d e fe rred  incom e tax  a sse t is rea lised , o r the  d e fe rred  inco m e tax  liab ility  is se ttled .

D eferred  ta x  asse ts  a re  recognised  fo r a ll ded uctib le  te m p o ra ry  d iffe ren ces and unused ta x  lo sses on ly  if it is p robab le tha t fu tu re  taxab le  am o unts w ill be ava ilab le  to  u tilise  tho se  

tem p o ra ry  d iffe ren ces and lo sses. In case  o f tem p o ra ry  d iffe ren ces tha t a rise  fro m  in itia l recognition  o f asse ts  o r liab ilit ie s  in a tra n sac tio n  (o the r than  business co m b in ation ) tha t 

a ffe c t  n e ith e r th e  taxab le  p ro fit no r th e  accounting  p ro fit , d e fe rre d  tax  asse ts  a re  not recognised .

The carry in g  am o un t o f d efe rred  tax  asse ts  is rev iew ed  a t each  rep orting  d a te  and reduced to  th e  ex ten t th a t it is no longer p robab le  tha t su ff ic ie n t taxab le  p ro fit w ill be ava ilab le  to  

a llo w  all o r  p art o f the  d e fe rred  ta x  a sset to  be u tilised . U nrecogn ised  d e fe rred  ta x  a sse ts  a re  re-assessed  a t each  rep orting  d a te  and are  recognised  to  th e  e x ten t th a t it has becom e 

p robab le tha t fu tu re  taxab le  p ro fits  w ill a llo w  th e  d e fe rred  ta x  a sset to  be reco vered .

A ny tax  c red it ava ilab le  includ ing  M in im um  A lte rn a tive  Ta x  (M A T ) u nd er th e  p rovis ion  o f the  Incom e Ta x  A ct, 1961 is recognised  as d e fe rred  tax  to  the  ex ten t tha t it is p robab le tha t 

fu tu re  taxab le  p ro fit w ill be ava ilab le  against w h ich  th e  unused ta x  c red its  can be u tilised . Th e  said a sset is crea ted  by w a y  o f c red it to  th e  sta tem en t o f p ro fit and loss and show n  under 

th e  head d e fe rre d  tax  asse t.

D eferred  tax  asse ts  and liab ilit ie s  a re  o ffse t w h en  th e re  is a legally  en fo rceab le  right to  o ffse t cu rre n t tax  asse ts  and liab ilit ie s  and w h en  th e  d e fe rred  tax  b a lances re la te  to  th e  sam e 

taxa tio n  au th o rity . C u rren t ta x  a sse ts  and ta x  liab ilit ie s  a re  o ffset w h e re  th e  C om pany has a legally en fo rceab le  right to  o ffse t and in tends e ith e r to  se ttle  on a net b asis , o r  to  rea lise  

th e  a sset and se ttle  the  liab ility  s im u ltan eo us ly .

C u rren t and d efe rred  tax  is recognised  in p ro fit o r  loss, e xcep t to  th e  ex ten t th a t it re la tes to  item s recognised  in o th e r co m p rehens ive  incom e o r d ire c tly  in eq u ity . In th is case , th e  tax 

is a lso  recognised  in o th e r co m p rehens ive  incom e o r d ire c tly  in eq u ity , resp ective ly .

Earn in g s P e r Share

Basic earn ings p er share

Basic earn ings per sh are  is ca lcu la ted  by d ivid ing th e  p ro fit a ttrib u tab le  to  o w n e rs o f th e  C om pany by th e  w e ighted  averag e num b er o f eq u ity  shares outstand ing  during  th e  period . 

Earn ings co nsid ered  in a sce rta in in g  the  co m p any 's earn ings per sh are  is the  net p ro fit fo r  the  period  a fte r  deducting  p re fe re n ce  d iv id end s, if any , and any a ttrib u tab le  d istrib u tion  tax 

th e re to  fo r th e  period .

D ilu ted  ea rn in g s p e r sh are

D iluted  earn ings p er sh are  ad justs th e  figures used in th e  d e te rm in a tio n  o f basic earn ings per sh are  to  take  into acco unt th e  afte r- in co m e tax  e ffect o f in te re st and o th er financing  

co sts  assoc ia ted  w ith  d ilu tive  po tentia l eq u ity  sh a res and the  w e ig hted  average num b er o f ad d itional eq u ity  shares tha t w o u ld  have been  outstand ing  assum ing  the  co nvers io n  o f all 

d ilu tive  p o ten tia l eq u ity  sh a res.

Cash  Eq u iva le n ts

Cash and cash eq u iva len ts  co m p rise  cash  and deposits w ith  banks and co rp o ra tio n s . Th e  C om pany co ns id ers  a ll h ighly liquid investm ents w ith  o rig inal m atu rit ie s  o f th re e  m onths or 

less and tha t a re  read ily  co nve rtib le  to  know n am o unts o f cash to  be cash  eq u iva len ts .
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For the  purpose o f p resen ta tio n  in th e  sta tem en t o f cash flo w s , cash and cash eq u iva len ts  in cludes cash  on hand , deposits held a t  ca ll w ith  finan cia l in stitu tio ns and o th e r sh o rt te rm , 

highly liquid investm ents w ith  o rig ina l m atu rit ie s  o f th re e  m onths o r less tha t a re  read ily  co nve rtib le  to  know n  am o unts o f cash and w h ich  a re  su b ject to  an in sign ificant r isk  o f changes 

in va lu e .

3 .23 Seg m ent Rep orting

The C om pany p r im a rily  o pe ra te s in the  segm ent o f Te x tile  Engeering  and Trad ing  a c tiv it ie s . Th e  M anag ing D irec to r o f th e  C om pany a llo ca te  reso u rces and assess the  p erfo rm ance  of 

th e  C o m pany; thu s , th e y  a re  the  C h ie f O perating  D ecision M ake r (CO D M ). Th e  CODM  m o nito rs the  o perating  resu lts  o f the  business as a o ne , hence no sep ara te  segm ent need to  be 

d isclosed .

3 .24  S ta tem e n t o f Cash  F lo w s

Cash flo w s a re  rep orted  using the  in d irect m etho d , w h e reb y  p ro fit b efo re  tax  is ad ju sted  fo r the  e ffe cts  o f tra n sac tio n s o f a non-cash n a tu re , a ny  d e fe rra ls  o r  accru a ls  o f past o r fu tu re  

operating  cash  re ce ip ts  o r p aym ents and item  o f incom e o r exp en ses assoc ia ted  w ith  investing  o r financing  cash  flo w s . Th e  cash flo w s fro m  operating , investing  and financing  a ctiv it ie s  

o f the  C om pany a re  seg regated .

3 .25  D iv id end  to  E q u ity  S h a re h o ld e rs  o f th e  C o m pany

The C om pany recogn ises a liab ility  fo r  d iv idends to  equ ity  ho lders o f th e  C om pany w h en  the  d iv idend is au th o rised  and th e  d iv idend  is no longer a t th e  d iscre tion  o f the  Com pany. Final 

d iv idends on sh a re s a re  reco rded  as a liab ility  on the  date  o f approval by th e  Sh a reho ld ers  and in te rim  d iv idends a re  reco rded  as a liab ility  on the  date  o f d ec lara tio n  by the  C om pany's 

Board  o f D irecto rs .

3 .26 P ro v is io n s , C o ntig en t L ia b ilit ie s  and  C o ntin g en t A sse ts .

P rov is io ns a re  recognised  w h en  th e  C om pany has a p resent o bligation  (legal o r co nstru ctive ) as a re su lt o f a past e v e n t , it is p robab le tha t an  o u tflo w  o f re so u rce s em bodying 

econom ic b en efits w ill be req u ired  to  se ttle  th e  obligation  and a re liab le  e s tim ate  can be m ade o f the  am o un t o f th e  ob ligation . P rovis ion  fo r co ntractu a l obligation  is d isclo sed  based 

on m anag em ent's assessm en t o f th e  p robab le  o utco m e w ith  re fe re n ce  to  the  ava ilab le  in fo rm ation  supp lem ented  by exp erience  o f s im ila r tra n sac tio n s . W hen  th e  C om pany exp ects 

som e o r a ll o f a p rovis ion  to  be re im b u rsed , th e  re im b u rsem e n t is recognised  as a sep ara te  a sse t, but o n ly  w h en  the  re im b u rsem e n t is v ir tu a lly  ce rta in . Th e  expense  re la ting  to  a 

p rovis ion  is p resented  in th e  s ta tem en t o f p ro fit and loss net o f any re im b u rsem e nt.

P rov is ion  in resp ect o f lo ss conting encies re la ting  to  c la im s, litigation , assessm en t, fin e s , pen a ltie s e tc . a re  recognised  w h en  it  is p robab le tha t a liab ility  has been  incu rred  and the 

am ount can be estim ated  re liab ly .

P rov is io ns a re  not recognised  fo r fu tu re  operating  lo sses.

W h e re  th e re  a re  a num b er o f s im ila r  ob ligations, the  like lihood tha t an  o u tflo w  w ill be req u ired  in se ttlem en t is d eterm ined  by considering  th e  c lass o f ob ligations as a w h o le . A 

p rovis ion  is recognised  even  if th e  like lihood  o f an o u tflo w  w ith  resp ect to  a ny  one item  included in the  sam e class o f ob ligations m ay be sm all.

P rov is io ns a re  m easured  a t m an ag em en t's best estim ate  o f the  exp en d itu re  req u ired  to  se ttle  th e  p resent obligation  a t the  end o f th e  rep orting  period  and are  not d iscounted  to  

p resent va lu e . The e s tim a te s o f o utco m e and finan cia l e ffe c t a re  d e te rm in ed  by the  judgm ent o f the  m anag em ent, sup p lem ented  by exp erience  o f s im ila r  tran sac tio n s and , in som e 

cases , rep o rts  fro m  ind ep end ent e xp erts .

The m ea su rem ent o f p rovis ion  fo r restru ctu rin g  includes on ly d ire ct exp en d itu re s arising  from  th e  restru ctu rin g , w h ich  a re  both n ecessa rily  en ta iled  by the  restru ctu rin g  and not 

assoc ia ted  w ith  th e  ongoing a ctiv it ie s  o f th e  Com pany.

Contingent liab ility  is d isclo sed  in the  case  of;

1. A  p resent obligation  aris ing  fro m  th e  past e ven ts , w h en  it is not p robab le th a t an  o u tflo w  o f re so u rce s w ill be req u ired  to  se ttle  th e  obligation ;

2 . A  p resent obligation  aris ing  fro m  th e  past e ven ts , w h en  no re liab le  e s tim ate  is possib le ;

3 . A  possib le  obligation  arising  fro m  th e  past e ven ts , u n less the  p rob ab ility  o f o u tflo w  o f reso u rces is rem o te .

Contingent liab ilit ie s  a re  not provided fo r and if m a te r ia l, a re  d isclo sed  by w ay o f notes to  finan cia l sta tem ents .

A contingen t a sse t is a possib le  a sse t tha t a rise s fro m  past even ts  and w h o se  ex is ten ce  w ill be co nfirm ed  on ly by th e  o ccu rren ce  o r non-occurrence  o f one o r m ore unce rta in  fu tu re  

even ts not w h o lly  w ith in  th e  co n tro l o f th e  en tity .

Contingent asse ts  a re  not recognised  in finan cia l s ta tem en ts since  th is m ay re su lt in th e  recognition  o f in co m e tha t m ay n ever be rea lised . H o w ever, C ontingent asse ts  a re  assessed 

co ntin u a lly  and if it is v ir tu a lly  ce rta in  tha t an in flo w  o f eco nom ic b en efits w ill a r ise , th e  a sset and re la ted  incom e are  recognised  in the  period  in w h ich  th e  change occu rs .

A contingen t a sse t is d isclo sed  by w a y  o f no tes to  finan cia l s ta tem en ts , w h e re  an in flo w  o f econom ic b en efits is p robab le .

P rov is io ns , contingen t liab ilit ie s  and contingen t asse ts  a re  rev iew ed  a t each  b a lance sh ee t d ate .
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Note 4

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) as at 31st March 2019_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Gross Block Depreciation and Amortization Net Block
Particulars As at 1st April 2018 Addition during Disposal/ As at 31st March As at 1st April 2018 For the year Disposal/ As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 31st March 2018

the year Adjustment 2019 Adjustment 2019 2019

Freehold land (Refer Note 4.1) 5,75,67,480 6,50,00,000 - 12,25,67,480 - - - - 12,25,67,480 5,75,67,480

Build ing 3,12,06,076 17,61,581 2,94,44,495 23,55,663 20,80,709 3,31,755 41,04,617 2,53,39,878 2,88,50,413

Plant & Mach inery 2,59,19,357 14,22,946 - 2,73,42,303 26,78,924 25,71,853 52,50,777 2,20,91,526 2,32,40,433

Furniture and fixtures 28,06,334 - 28,06,334 3,18,967 2,77,113 5,96,080 22,10,254 24,87,367

Vehicles 2,99,75,705 39,23,834 2,65,18,287 73,81,252 62,97,015 29,02,643 25,94,208 66,05,450 7,75,802 2,36,78,690

Total PPE 14,74,74,952 7,03,46,780 2,82,79,868 18,95,41,864 1,16,50,569 78,32,318 29,25,963 1,65,56,924 17,29,84,940 13,58,24,384

Note 4.1

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on December 10,2018 has considered and approved a draft deed of reconstitution to be entered into between the existing partners of M/s Agartha Enterprises and the Company for retirement of the Company from the 
partnership with effect from December 31,2018.
Pursuant to the deed of reconstitution entered into on January 01,2019, the Company has retired from the Partnership Firm with effect from December 31, 2018 and received the Agricultural land admeasuirng approximately 23815 Square meter in lieu of the Company's Capital Account 
Balance in partnership firm. The Company will initiate the process of converting the said land from Agricutural into Non Agricultural Land and transfer of title deeds in the name of the Company. The said land is presently registered in the name of Mr. Sandeep Gandhi, Director of the 
Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) as at 31st March 2018_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
Deemed Cost Depreciation and Amortization Net Block

As at 1st April 2017 Addition during 

the year

Disposal/

Adjustment

As at 31st March 

2018

As at 1st April 2017 For the year Disposal/

Adjustment

As at 31st March 

2018

As at 31st March 

2018

As at 31st March 2017

Freehold land 5,75,67,480 - - 5,75,67,480 - - - - 5,75,67,480 5,75,67,480

Build ing 2,35,56,617 76,49,459 - 3,12,06,076 - 23,55,663 - 23,55,663 2,88,50,413 2,35,56,617

Plant & Mach inery 2,37,35,717 21,83,640 - 2,59,19,357 - 26,78,924 - 26,78,924 2,32,40,433 2,37,35,717

Furniture and fixtures 27,51,854 54,480 - 28,06,334 - 3,18,967 - 3,18,967 24,87,367 27,51,854

Vehicles 1,35,88,795 1,96,64,693 32,77,783 2,99,75,705 - 62,97,015 62,97,015 2,36,78,690 1,35,88,795

Total PPE 12,12,00,463 2,95,52,272 32,77,783 14,74,74,952 - 1,16,50,569 - 1,16,50,569 13,58,24,383 12,12,00,463

Note 4.1.1 - Impairment of Assets : There is no impairment of any assets in terms of Ind AS - 36 on "Impairment of Assets". Based on the review, the management is of the opinion that there are no impairment indicators that necessitate any adjustments to the carrying value of PPE. 

Note 4.1.2 - Security Pledge of Assets: Refer to Note 16 on borrowings for details In terms of pledge of assets as security.

Note 5

Capital work in progress as at 31st March 2019_______________________________________________ (Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
2018-19 2017-18

Opening Balance 2,92,71,625 2,89,14,044

Addition: 6,68,092 80,07,040

Less: Capitalised during the year - 76,49,459.00

Closing Balance 2,99,39,717 2,92,71,625

Note 5.1
The Company has Incurred capital expenditure of Rs. 2,99,39,717/ -on construction of Building on leasehold land for Nature Cure Project. The estimated total project cost Is Rs 8,00,00,000/-. 

Refer to Note No. 34 D (B) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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Note 14 
Share capital
Authorised, issued, subscribed, fully paid up share capital_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars
As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 As at 1st April 2017

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Authorised

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 30,00,000 3,00,00,000 30,00,000 3,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 33,36,000 3,33,60,000 24,00,000 2,40,00,000 5,00,000 50,00,000

Total 33,36,000 3,33,60,000 24,00,000 2,40,00,000 5,00,000 50,00,000

Note 14.1
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period_______________________________________________________________________________ (Amount in Rs.)

As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 As at 1st April 2017

Particulars Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period

Add: Shares issued during the period (Refer Note 

14.1.1)

24,00,000

9,36,000

2,40,00,000

93,60,000

5,00,000

19,00,000

50,00,000

1,90,00,000

5,00,000 50,00,000

Shares outstanding at the end of the period 33,36,000 3,33,60,000 24,00,000 2,40,00,000 5,00,000 50,00,000

Note 14.1.1
Pursuant to clause 5.2 of Part VI of the Scheme of Arrangement between Corporate Courier & Cargo Limited (the Transferor Company) and Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited 

(Now Harish Textile Engineers Limited - the transferee company No. 1) and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited - the transferee company No. 2) and 

their respective shareholders and credtiors, the Company issued 13 Equity Shares o f Rs 10 each of the Company for every 100 fully paid up equity share held in Corporate Courier 

Cargo Limited.

Note 14.2
Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
For all matters subm itted to vote in a shareholders' meeting o f the Company, every holder o f an equity share as reflected in the records of the Company on the date of the 

shareholders' meeting shall have one vote in respect o f each share held. Any dividend declared by the company shall be paid to  each holder o f Equity shares in proportion to the 

number of shares held to  total equity shares outstanding as on that date. In the event of liquidation o f the Company, all preferential amounts if any shall be discharged by the 

Company. The remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to  the holders o f equity shares in proportion to  the number of shares held to  the total equity shares outstanding as 

on that date.

Note 14.3
Shareholders holding more than 5 % of total share capital

Name of Shareholder

As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 As at 1st April 2017

No. of Shares 

held

% of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Sandeep K Gandhi 23,83,350 71.49% 23,83,350 99.31% 4,95,000 99.00%

Total 23,83,350 71.49% 23,83,350 99.31% 4,95,000 99.00%

Note 15 
OTHER EQUITY
Particulars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
As at

1st April, 2017

a. Retained Earnings

Opening balance
Add: Profit during the Period

4,58,59,275
94,86,899

5,10,99,220
57,60,055

1,27,15,609

Add: On account of Fair Value of land considered as Deemed Cost 
Less: Deferred Tax

■ ■ 5,37,27,380
(96,56,776)

Less : Issue of Shares - (1,10,00,000) -
Less : Expected credit loss
Less: Prior Period Expense
Less: Transfer on account of Demeger (Refer Note 34 C) (81,10,000)

(59,67,744)
(10,043)

2,90,794
Closing Balance (A) 4,72,36,174 4,58,59,275 5,10,99,220

b. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) _ _ _
Closing Balance (B) - - -
Total (A+B) 4,72,36,174 4,58,59,275 5,10,99,220
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Note 17
Deferred tax Liabilities
(a) Deferred tax balances and movement for FY 2018-19_________ ________________________ ______________________ ______________________  (Amounts in Rs.)
Particulars Net balance 

April 1, 2018
Recognised in 
profit or loss

Recognised 
in OCI

As at
31st March 

2019
Deferred tax Liabilities

Freehold Land 

Other PPE 
Income Tax43B

Trade Receivables - provision for doughtful debts

1,15,59,797.65

(2,47,589.34)
(30,210.00)

(3,60,870.55)

(33,212.40)

(67,119.17)
30,210.00

32,483.46

1,15,26,585.24

(3,14,708.51)

(3,28,387.09)

Net deferred tax Liabilities 1,09,21,127.76 (37,638.12) - 1,08,83,489.64

(a) Deferred tax balances and movement for FY 2017-18_________ ________________________ ______________________ ______________________  (Amounts in Rs.)
Particulars Net balance 

April 1, 2017
Recognised in 
profit or loss

Recognised 
in OCI

As at
31st March 

2018
Deferred tax Liabilities

1,15,93,010.31

4,43,911.19
(87,901.94)

(19,36,234.39)

(33,212.66)

(6,91,500.53)
57,691.94

15,75,363.84

- 1,15,59,797.65

(2,47,589.34)
(30,210.00)

(3,60,870.55)

Freehold Land 

Other PPE 
Income Tax43B

Trade Receivables - provision for doughtful debts

Net deferred tax Liabilities 1,00,12,785.17 9,08,342.58 - 1,09,21,127.76

The com pany o ffsets tax  assets and liabilities if and only if  it has a legally enforceable right to  set o ff cu rrent tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred 

tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to  incom e taxes levied by the sam e tax authority .

Significant management judgm ent is required in determ ining provision fo r income tax , deferred incom e tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of deferred 

incom e tax assets. The recoverability of deferred incom e tax assets is based on estim ates o f taxable income by each jurisd iction in which the relevant entity 

operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets w ill be recovered.
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Note 33 Financial instrument and Fair Value Measurement
(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars Amount as at March 31,2019
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total

Non Current Financial assets
Investments (Non-Current) -
Other Financial assets (Non - Current) - 6,49,43.341 6,49,43,341

Current Financial assets
Trade receivables - - 3,74,82.622 3.74,82,622
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than (ii) above

* 33,01,678 33,01,678

Total - - 10,57,27,640 | 10,57,27,640
Financial liabilities

Non current borrowings - 4,69,30.661 4,69,30,661
Current borrowings - 6,85,98.774 6,85,98,774
Trade payables - - 17.33,24,867 17,33,24,867

Total 28,88,54,303 | 28,88,54,303
(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars Amount as at March 31,2018
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total

Non Current Financial assets
Investments (Non-current) 6,46,79.225 6,46,79,225
Other Financial assets (Non-Current) 4,29,10.501 4,29,10,501

Current Financial assets
Trade receivables - 3,99,18,153 3,99,18,153
Cash and cash equivalents - 6,36,509 6,36,509
Bank balances other than (ii) above - -

. 14,81,44,388 14,81,44,388
Financial liabilities

Non current borrowings 1,73,58,136 1.73,58,136
Current borrowings - 7,08,79,596 7,08,79,596
Trade payables ■ 18,86,55,663 18,86,55,663

Total - 27,68,93,395 27,68,93,395
(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars Amount as at April 01,2017
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total

Non Current Financial assets
Investments (Non-current) - 6,23,41,987 6,23,41,987
Other Financial assets (Non - Current) 3,51.02,315 3,51,02,315

Current Financial assets
Trade receivables - 5,04,55,702 5,04,55,702
Cash and cash equivalents - 33,57,666 33,57.666
Bank balances other than (ii) above - 20,00,000 20,00,000

- - 15,32,57,671 15,32,57,671
Financial liabilities

Non current borrowings - 1,57,88,328 1,57,88,328
Current borrowings - - 7,11,55,628 7,11,55,628
Trade payables . 17,43.09.184 17,43,09,184

Total - - 26,12,53,140 26,12,53,140
Fair Value hierarchy

The below analyses financial Instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follow: 
Level 1 : Quoted prices In active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 : Inputs other than Quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observabe for the asset or liability, either directly (l .e . as prices) or indirectly (l.e. 

derived from prices).

Level 3 : Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data Unobservable Inputs).

Financial risk manacement objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of trade and other payables. The Company's financial assets include trade and other recervables. 
and cash & cash equivalents that It derives directly from its operations.

The Company Is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The 

Company's senior management Is supported by the Board of Directors that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance 

framework for the Company, rhss provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by 

appropriate policies and procedure and thot financial risks are identified, measured and managed In accordance with the Company”s policies and risk 

objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:
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Note 33 Financial instruments -  Fair values and risk management (continued)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 

obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers, investments, and loans given. The Company is having majority 

of the receivables from private sectors. The Company does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty. Concentration of 

credit risk to any counterparty did not exceed 5% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:
Cash and Cash equivalent and Other Bank Balances
The company maintains its Cash and cash equivalents and Bank deposits with banks having good reputation, good past track record and high 

quality credit rating and also reviews their credit-worthiness on an on-going basis.

Trade and other receivables
The Company's exposure to credit Risk is the exposure that Company has on account of goods sold or services rendered to a contractual

counterparty or counterparties, whether with collateral or otherwise for which the contracted consideration is yet to be received.

The Company provides for allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

For trade receivables, as a practical expedient, the Company computes credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix is 

prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

Assets are written off when there are no reasonable expectation of recovery such as debtor declaring bankruptcy or failing to engage in a 

repayment plan with group. Where receivables have been written off the company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to 

recover the receivables, where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit and loss.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date from Trade Receivable is as amounts mentioned in Note No. 10.

Movement in Allowance for bad and doubtful Trade receivable (Amount In Rs.)

Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Opening Allowance for bad and doubtful Trade receivable

Recovery/Adjustment during the year

Closing Allowance for bad and doubtful Trade receivable

14,01,439

(2,21,040)

11,80,399

59,67,744

(45,66,305)

14,01,439

The impairment provisions above are based on management judgment /  assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company 

uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the company's past history as well as 

forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

In v iew  of the management based on the company's past history as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period, 

receivables are good and fully recoverable.

Deposits
(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars Year ended March 
31, 2019

Year ended March 
31, 2018

As at April 01, 
2017

Rent Deposit 6,49,43,341 4,29,10,501 3,51,02,315
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Note 33 Financial instruments -  Fair values and risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk
L iqu id ity r isk  is the  risk that the Com pany w ill encounter d iff icu lty  in m eeting  the  obligations associated  w ith  its financia l liab ilities tha t a re  settled  by 

delivering  cash or ano ther financia l asse t. The Com pany m onito rs its r isk  o f a shortage o f funds by estim ating  the  fu tu re  cash flow s. The Com pany's 

o b jective is to  m ain ta in  a balance betw een  working  capital o f the  com pany. The Com pany generates su ffic ient cash flow  from  operations to  m ain ta in  a 

Th e  Com pany m ain ta ins the fo llow ing lines o f cred it outstand ing:

Notes to financial statements for the year edned 31st March 2019

(A m o u n ts in R s.)

Particulars Outstanding amount as at March 31, 

2019

Security and Rate of Interest

Secured
Term Loan from Banks 40,97,336 Refer Note No.16.1

Vehicle Loans 16,80,396 Refer Note No. 16.2

Overdraft Loan 6,03,18,912 Refer Note 18.1

Unsecured

From Bank and NBFC 92,55,492 Refer Note No. 16.3

Unsecured from Related Party

From Director Interest free 3,65,77,300

Inter Corporate Loan interest free 36,00,000

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.
(A m o u n ts in  R s .)

Particulars
Within 1 Year 1 to 5 Year

More than 5 
Year

Carrying
Amount

As at March 31, 2019
Non current borrowings - 4,69,30,661 - 4,69,30,661

Current borrowings 6,85,98,774 - - 6,85,98,774

Trade payables 17,33,24,867 - - 17,33,24,867

As at March 31, 2018
Non current borrowings - 1,73,58,136 - 1,73,58,136

Current borrowings 7,08,79,596 - - 7,08,79,596

Trade payables 18,86,55,663 - - 18,86,55,663

As at April 01, 2017

Non current borrowings - 1,57,88,328 - 1,57,88,328

Current borrowings 7,11,55,628 - - 7,11,55,628

Trade payables 17,43,09,184 - - 17,43,09,184
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Note 33 Financial instruments -  Fair values and risk management (continued)

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk, currency 

risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market nsk include loans and borrowings, deposits and FVTOCI investments.

Foreign Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's foreign currency risk arises 

out of various imports of raw materials and trading goods and exports of its finished goods. The Company follows netting principle for managing the foreign exchange exposure. The 

Carrying Amounts of the Company’s Foreign Currency Denominated Monetary Assets and Liabilities based on Gross Exposure at the end of the Reporting Period is as under.
Net Open Exposures Outstanding as at the Balance Sheet Date (Amounts in

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019

Rs.)
Year ended March 31,2019 Year ended March 31,2018

Particulars
Foreign Currency 
Denomina-tion

Foreign Currency 
Amount

Amount in Rs. Foreign Currency 
Amount

Amount in 
Rs.

Trade Payables USD 88,725 61,61,064 - 0
Trade Receivables USD 1,07,525 74,66,536 55,000.00 3564965

Sensitivity analysis
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower Exchange rate of currency. A possible 3% change in exchange rate would affect profit/loss at the reporting date by amount

shown below:

Particulars Profit or (Loss) Equity net of tax)
3% Increase 3% decrease 3% Increase 336 decrease

31st March 2019
Trade Payables 1,84,832 (1,84,832) 1,33,412 (1,33,412)
Trade Receivables 3,22,575 (2,23,996) 2,32,835 (1,61,680)
Total (1,37,743) 39,164 (99,423) 28,269
31st March 2018
Trade Payables - - - -
Trade Receivables 1,06,949 (1,06,949) 79,410 (79,410)
Total 1.06,949 (1.06,949) 79,410 (79.410)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risks is measured by using 
the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movement in the reference rates could have an impact on the Company's cash flows as well as costs. The Company's 
interest rate exposure is mainly related to debt obligation. On period under review the Company do not have any term loans at fixed rate and has not entered into interest rate swaps for its 
exposure to long term borrowings at floating rate.______________________________________________________________________________________________
Particulars Year ended 

March 31,2019
Year ended 

March 31,2018
As at April 01,2017

Non-current - Borrowings 67,53,361 1,52,08,136 1,14,82,528
Current - Borrowings 6,85,98,774 7,08,79,596 7,11,55,628
Total 7,53,52,136 8,60,87,732 8,26,38,156

Sensitivity analysis
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interest rates
Based on the composition of debt a reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) Equity and Profit or Loss by the 
amount shown below:

(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars Profit or (Loss) Equity net of tax)
100 bp Decrease 100 bp Increase 100 bp Decrease 100 bp Increase

31st March 2019
Non current - Borrowings 67,534 (67,534) 48,746 (48,746)
Current portion of Long term borrowings 6,85,988 (6,85,988) 4,95,146 (4,95,146)
Total 7,53,521 (7,53,521) 5,43,892 (5,43,892)
31st March 2018
Non current - Borrowings 1,52,081 (1,52,081) 1,12,920 (1,12,920)
Current portion of Long term borrowings 7,08,796 (7.08,796) 5.26,281 (5,26,281)
Total 8,60,877 (8,60,877) 6,39,201 (6,39.201)

c) Commodity Price Risk

The Company is affected by price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the on-going purchase or continuous supply of such commodities. Therefore the Company 
monitors its purchases closely to optimise the prices.

d) Equity Price Risk

The Company do not have any investment in quoted equity shares hence not expose to equity price risk.
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Note 33
Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to

- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to  provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, 

and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost o f capital.

The Company determ ines the amount of capital required on the basis of the annual business plan coupled with long term  and short term  strategic 

investments and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from  operations, long terms and short term  bank borrowings.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio o f 'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, 

comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components o f equity.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows.
(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars
As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 31st March

2019 2018 2017
Borrowings 11,55,29,436 8,82,37,732 8,69,43,956
Less: Current Investment - - -
Less : Cash and bank balances 33,01,678 6,36,509 33,57,666
Adjusted net debt 11,22,27,758 8,76,01,223 8,35,86,290
Borrowings 11,55,29,436 8,82,37,732 8,69,43,956
Total equity 8,05,96,174 6,98,59,275 5,60,99,220
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 1.39 1.25 1.49
Debt equity ratio 1.43 1.26 1.55
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Note 34

Note 34 a Related party disclosure:

a Related party disclosure as required by AS-18/'Related Party D isclosure", is given below:

Key Management Personnel: 

Name

M r. Sandeep K Gandhi 

M r. H itendra Desai 

M r. Pinkesh Upadhyay 

M rs. Khusboo N. Desai 

M r. Sachin M ishra

Designation

(with effect from  December 30, 2018) Managing D irector

(with effect from  December 30, 2018)* W hole Time D irector

(with effect from  December 30, 2018) Chief Financial O fficer

(from December 10, 2018 till April 11, 201S Com pany Secretary 

(from May 27, 2019 till June 17, 2019) Com pany Secretary

Non-Executive Directors 

Name

Mr. K irtikum ar S Gandhi 

M r. Rajesh Kumar Sahu 

M r. Sunil Bhirud

(upto June 21, 2019) 
(upto February 05, 2019) 
(upto February 05, 2019)

Independent Director 

Name

M r. Abh inav Anand (with effect from  December 10, 2018)
Mrs. Ratna V ikram  Jhaveri (with effect from  December 10, 2018)
M r. Darshith Parikh (from December 10, 2018 till June 06, 2019)

Relative of Directors

Mrs. Vaishali Bhirud 

M rs. Anshu Sahu 

Shri. Shovan S Gandhi

Entities where Directors/Close family members of Directors having control/significant influence

Harish Enterprise Private Lim ited.

Pacific Harish Industries Lim ited.

Everys Health Care Private Lim ited.

Technofie ld Marketing Private Lim ited.

Sanish Investment & Trading Co P Lim ited.

Agratha Enterprise-Partnership Firm
*He was appointed as D irector on February 12, 2013 and During the year, he has been 

appointed as W hole Time D irector w.e.f. Decem ber 30, 2018)

b Transactions with Related Parties
During the year, the fo llow ing transactions were carried out w ith Related Parties:

(Amounts in Rs.)

Sr.

No.
Name of Related Party and nature of transactions Relationship

For the year ended 

31st March, 2019

For the year ended 

31st March, 2018

For the year ended 

April 01, 2017

1 Harish Enterprise Private Limited.

Rent Expense 12,00,000 12,00,000

Rent Deposit given -Closing Balance 7,95,00,000 5,55,00,000

Balance Receivable (Escrow AccountJ-Closing Balat - 1,43,01,056 19,01,511

2 Pacific Harish Industries Limited.
Entities

Loan Given Closing Balance where 24,06,500

Trade Receivable-Closing Balance
Directors/

7,27,901 42,42,191 59,12,115

3 Everys Health Care Private Limited.
Close

Interest Income family 6,37,888 5,44,246

Advance given-Closing Balance
members

53,15,736 52,33,002 29,65,720

4 Technofield Marketing Private Limited. of

In te rco rpo ra te  Loan Received Balance
Directors

21,00,000 21,00,000 21,00,000

5 Sanish Investment & Trading Co P Limited.
having

In te rco rpo ra te  Loan Received Balance control/sig 15,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000

6 Agratha Enterprise-Partnership Firm
nificant

Receipt of Land in lieu o f Capital Account Balance

(Refer Note 4.1) 6,50,00,000

Investment Closing - 6,46,79,225 -

Payable -Closing Balance 30,398 -

7 Mr. Sandeep K Gandhi

Professional Fees 39,15,000 52,20,000

D irector Remuneration 13,05,000

Interest Free Loan Received -Balance as period

end 3,23,01,000 50,000
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8

9

10

Issue o f Equity Share Capital 

Mr. Hitendra Desai 

Professional Fees 

D irector Remuneration 

Deposit Received 

Com m ission Paid 

Balance as period end 

Mr. Pinkesh Upadhyay 

Remuneration 

Mrs. Khusboo N. Desai 

Remuneration Paid

Director 
and Key 

manageme 
nt

Personnel

14,85,000

4.95.000

1.50.000 

25,000

1,88,83,500

14,00,000

11 Mr. Sunil Bhirud

Professional Fees 13,20,000 11,40,000

12 Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sahu

Professional Fees 17,60,000 12,48,000

13 Mr. Kirtikumar S Gandhi Directors
Professional Fees 51,00,000 51,00,000

Interest Free Loan Received -Balance as period

end 42,76,300

Issue o f Equity Share Capital 1,16,500

14 Mrs. Vaishali Bhirud

Professional Fees 6,60,000 7,20,000

15 Shri. Shovan S Gandhi Relative of
Professional Fees Director 7,65,000 6,00,000

16 Mrs. Anshu Sahu

Professional Fees 11,00,000 9,00,000
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Segment Reporting 
Primary Segment:

Part I (Amounts in Rs.)

Engineering Non Ferrous Metal Total

Particulars
For the Year ended 31st 
March 2019

For the Year ended 
31st March 2018

Forthe Year ended 
31st March 2019

For the Year ended 
31st March 2018

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

For the Year ended 
31st March 2018

Segment Revenue
Revenue from Operations 
Other Operating Income

29,33,18,853.00
1,61,09,691.56

36,70,09,632.00
2,06,21,122.74

8,38,45,068.00 58,04,699.00 37,71,63,921.00
1,61,09,691.56

37,28,14,331.00
2,06,21,122.74

Total Revenue from Operations 30,94,28,544.56 38,76,30,754.74 8,38,45,068.00 58,04,699.00 39,32,73,612.56 39,34,35,453.74

Segment Result

Profit /  (Loss) before exceptional Items and ta 

LessiFinance Cost

2,28,22,139.97
1,03,21,040.61

1,97,23,861.50
1,14,80,307.74

9.95.965.00
1.91.007.00

-25,156.00 2,38,18,104.97
1,05,12,047.61

1,96,98,705.50
1,14,80,307.74

Profit before tax 

Add:Unallocated Income 

Less: Unallocated Expense 

Less:Tax Expense

1,25,01,099.36 82,43,553.76 8,04,958.00 (25,156.00) 1,33,06,057.36

38,19,157.88

82,18,397.76

24,58,342.58
Net Profit after tax

Other Comprehensive Income

94,86,899.48 57,60,055.18

Total Comprehensive Income fo r the period 94,86,899.48 57,60,055.18

Part II Rs in Lacs

Particulars

Engineering Non Ferrous Metal Total

For the Year ended 31st 
March 2019

For the Year ended 
31st March 2018

Forthe Year ended 
31st March 2019

For the Year ended 
31st March 2018

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

For the Year ended 
31st March 2018

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment Assets 
Segment Liabilities 
Add:Unallocable Assets 

Less:Unallocable Liabilities

40,84,64,387.93
34,58,25,683.83

43,42,96,287.77
38,35,48,762.95

24,24,081.00
6,69,293.00

27,632.19
19,061.31

41,08,88,468.93
34,64,94,976.83

2,99,39,717.00
1,37,37,034.64

43,43,23,919.96
38,35,67,824.26

2,92,71,625.00
1,01,68,445.76

Capital Employed 6,26,38,704.10 5,07,47,524.82 17,54,788.00 8,570.88 8,05,96,174.46 6,98,59,274.95

Information about secondary business segments

The Company uses same set of assets for the sales made In the India and outside India. The expenses Incurred fo r sales to be made In India and outside are Common. Hence, the only the 

details related to Revenue related to the geographical segments are presented to theCO DM .

Secondary Segment informaiton

Sales revenue is based on the location of sales :

Segment Revenue
For the Year ended 

31st March 2019
For the Year ended 

31st March 2018

International 4,52,92,730 1,97,86,861
Domestic 33,18,71,191 35,30,27,470
Total 37,71,63,921 37,28,14,331
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Note 34 C Scheme of Arrangement between Corporate Courier & Cargo Limited, The Transferor Company and Harish Textile Engineers Private Limited (Now Harish
Textile Engineers Limited), The transferee Company N o.l and Mahesh Developers Private Limited (Now Mahesh Developers Limited) The Transferee Company 
No.2 and their respective shareholders and creditors :

The aforesaid Scheme was sanctioned by the National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT') vide Order dated August 09, 2018. The Scheme became effective on October

06, 2018 on filing with the Registrar of Companies (RoC) with effect from April 01, 2017 i.e. Appointed Date. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Engineering Service

Business of Corporate Courier Cargo Limited has been transferred to Harish Textile Engineers Limited (the Company). Hence, in accordance with the Scheme: 
a On Scheme becoming effective with effect from Appointed Date, the Company has recorded all the assets aggregating to Rs. 12,50,000/- as appearing in

the books of Corporate Courier & Cargo Limited related to Engineering Service Business at their respective book value as on Appointed Date, 
b The difference between value of assets and liabilities of Corporate Courier & Cargo Limited's Engineering Service business and the value of the shares

allotted to the shareholders of Corporate Courier & Cargo Limited, amounting to Rs. 81,10,000/- has been transferred to Retained Earnings, 
c There are no inter-company balances and transactions between the Company and Corporate Courier &. Cargo Limited on appointed date.

d As the financial statements for previous year ended March 31, 2018 have been already approved by the shareholders of the Company, the previous year
accounts have not been reopened and all the relevant accounting entries with respect to the Scheme have been accounted during the current financial

e The appointed date of the scheme is April 01, 2017 as approved by the NCLT, though it has become effective on October 06, 2018. Therefore, all

transactions from April 01, 2017 to October 06, 2018 of the Engineering Service Business were carried on behalf of Harish Textile Engineers Limited and

the same are recorded as receivable or payable on account of demerger from the Corporate Courier Cargo Limited as at October 06, 2018.

Note 34 d

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
A) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:
Particulars As at 31st M arch 

2019

As at 31st March 

2018

As at April 01 , 2017

Contingent Liabilities Nil Nil Nil
The Honourable Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 28th February, 2019 held that 'Basic Wages' for the contribution towards Provident Fund (PF) should only exclude 

[in addition to specific exclusions under Section 2(b)(ii) of the Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952]:

a) amounts that are payable to the employee for undertaking work beyond the normal work which he/she is otherwise required to put in and;

b) allowances which are either variable or linked to any incentive for production resulting in greater output by an employee and that the allowances are not paid across the 

board to all employees in a particular category or were being paid especially to those who avail the opportunity.

With reference to the above mentioned judgment, The Company's management is of the view that there is considerable uncertainty around the timing, manner and extent in 

which the judgment will be interpreted and applied by the regulatory authorities. Further, a review petition has been filed with the Honourable Supreme Court with reference 

to the aforementioned judgement and the same is pending disposal. Management is of the view that any incremental outflow in this regard can only be determined once the 

position being taken by the regulatory authorities in this regard is known and the Management is able to evaluate all possible courses of action available. Accordingly, no 

provision has been currently recognized in Financial Statements in this regard.

B) Comm itm ents
(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars As at 31st M arch 

2019

As at 31st March 

2018

As at April 01 , 2017

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for.

5,00,60,283 5,07,28,375 5,87,35,415

Total 5,00,60,283 5,07,28,375 5,87,35,415
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Note 34 e
Transition to Ind AS:
These financial statem ents , fo r the  ye a r ended 31 M arch 2019, a re  the  first the  com pany has prepared in accordance w ith  Ind AS. For periods up to  and including the  ye a r ended 31 M arch 2018, 

the  com pany prepared its financial sta tem ents in accordance w ith  IGAAP, including accounting standards notified under the  Com panies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as am ended).

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the  financial sta tem ents fo r the  year ended 31 M arch 2019, the  com parative inform ation presented in these  financial 

sta tem ents fo r the ye a r ended 31 M arch 2018 and in the preparation o f an opening Ind AS balance sheet a t 01 April 2017 (the "transition  d ate").

In preparing the opening Ind AS balance sheet, the com pany has adjusted am ounts reported in financial sta tem ents prepared in accordance w ith  IGAAP. An explanation o f how the transition 

from  IGAAP to  Ind AS has affected  financial perfo rm ance, cash flow s and financial position is set out in the fo llow ing tab les and the notes that accom pany the  tab les. On transition , the  Com pany 

did not revise estim ates previously m ade under IGAAP except w here  required by Ind AS.

Ind AS 101 provides exem ption to  certa in  classification and m easurem ent requ irem ent o f financial assets under Ind AS 109, w here  these  are im practicable to  im plem ent. C lassification and 

m easurem ent is done on the basis o f facts and c ircum stances existing on the transition  date.

Accordingly the  Com pany has determ ined classification o f financial asset based on facts and circum stances existing on the  transition  date.

A Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

B .l Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2018_________________________________________________________________________________(Amounts in Rs.)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

Footnote
ref.

Amount as per 
IGAAP*

Effects of 
transition to Ind 

AS

Amount as per 
Ind AS

Amount as per 
IGAAP*

Effects of 
transition to 

Ind AS

Amount as per 
Ind AS

ASSETS

1 Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 8,20,97,003 5,37,27,380 13,58,24,383 6,74,73,083 5,37,27,380 12,12,00,463

Capital work in progress 2,92,71,625 - 2,92,71,625 2,89,14,044 - 2,89,14,044

Financial assets - - - -
i. Investments 6,46,79,225 - 6,46,79,225 6,23,41,987 - 6,23,41,987

ii. Other Fianncial Assets 2 2,80,00,000 1,49,10,501 4,29,10,501 2,80,00,000 71,02,315 3,51,02,315

Other Non Current Assets 2 3,31,44,356 (1,80,01,047) 1,51,43,309 2,89,19,920 (99,32,546) 1,89,87,374

Deferred tax Assets 2,39,824 (2,39,824) - - -
Total Non-Current Assets 23,74,32,033 5,03,97,010 28,78,29,043 21,56,49,034 5,08,97,150 26,65,46,184

2 Current assets

Inventories 8,84,71,057 - 8,84,71,057 5,35,37,248 - 5,35,37,248

Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 3 5,56,21,592 (1,57,03,439) 3,99,18,153 5,83,24,957 (78,69,255) 5,04,55,702

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4 6,36,509 - 6,36,509 53,57,666 (20,00,000) 33,57,666

(iii) Bank balances other than (il) above 4 - - - - 20,00,000 20,00,000

Other current assets 2,93,48,237 1,73,92,546 4,67,40,783 3,04,02,418 47,31,741 3,51,34,159

Total Current Assets 17,40,77,395 16,89,107 17,57,66,502 14,76,22,289 (31,37,513) 14,44,84,776
TOTAL ASSETS 41,15,09,428 5,20,86,117 46,35,95,545 36,32,71,323 4,77,59,636 41,10,30,959

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity

Equity share capital 2,40,00,000 - 2,40,00,000 50,00,000 - 50,00,000

Other Equity 45,48,889 4,13,10,386 4,58,59,275 1,27,15,609 3,83,83,611 5,10,99,220

Total equity 2,85,48,889 4,13,10,386 6,98,59,275 1,77,15,609 3,83,83,611 5,60,99,220

2 Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 5 7,79,17,839 (6,05,59,703) 1,73,58,136 7,52,49,071 (5,94,60,743) 1,57,88,328

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 8 - 1,09,21,128 1,09,21,128 3,56,009 96,56,776 1,00,12,785

Total Non-Current Liabilities 7,79,17,839 (4,96,38,575) 2,82,79,264 7,56,05,080 (4,98,03,967) 2,58,01,113

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 5 1,04,65,290 6,04,14,306 7,08,79,596 1,19,85,679 5,91,69,949 7,11,55,628

Trade payables 18,86,55,663 - 18,86,55,663 17,42,99,141 10,043 17,43,09,184

Other current liabilities 10,41,05,345 - 10,41,05,345 7,84,47,875 - 7,84,47,875

Provisions 25,69,084 - 25,69,084 27,25,768 - 27,25,768

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) (7,52,682) (7,52,682) 24,92,171 24,92,171

Total Current Liabilities 30,50,42,700 6,04,14,306 36,54,57,006 26,99,50,634 5,91,79,992 32,91,30,626
Total liabilities 38,29,60,539 1,07,75,731 39,37,36,270 34,55,55,714 93,76,026 35,49,31,740

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 41,15,09,428 5,20,86,117 46,35,95,545 36,32,71,323 4,77,59,636 41,10,30,959
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B.2 Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018
Particulars

Footnote
ref.

Amount as per 
IGAAP*

Effects of 
transition to Ind 

AS

Amount as per 
Ind AS

Revenue
Revenue from Operations 6 36,36,61,836 91,52,495 37,28,14,331

Other income 7 1,28,84,201 77,36,922 2,06,21,123

Total Income 37,65,46,037 1,68,89,417 39,34,35,454
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 24,55,40,013 - 24,55,40,013

Changes in inventories of Finished Goods 

Cost of Sales for Trading Activity

(3,57,72,705)

58,29,884
- (3,57,72,705)

58,29,884
Employee Benefits Expenses 2,60,99,801 - 2,60,99,801

Finance Costs 5 1,13,34,911 1,45,397 1,14,80,308

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1,16,50,569 - 1,16,50,569

Other Expenses 6 & 7 10,80,66,074

37,27,48,547
1,23,23,112

1,24,68,509
12,03,89,186

38,52,17,056
Total Expenses
Profit Before Tax 37,97,490 44,20,908 82,18,398
Prior period items 10,043

37,87,447

(10,043)

44,10,865 82,18,398

Tax expense:
Current Tax 15,50,000 - 15,50,000

Adjustment for earlier tax expense - - -
Differed Tax (5,95,833) 15,04,176 9,08,343

Profit for the year 28,33,280 29,06,689 57,60,055

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income for the period 28,33,280 29,06,689 57,60,055

B.3 Statement of Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2018 and April 01, 2017 between Ind AS and previous GAAP:
Ind AS 101 requ ires an en tity  to  reconcile equ ity fo r p rior periods. The fo llowing tab les represent the  reconciliations from  previous GAAP to  Ind AS standalone Financial Statem ent.

(A m ounts in Rs.)

Particulars 31-Mar-18 Ol-Apr-17
IGAAP Equity 45,48,889 1,27,15,609
Ind AS adjustments

Fair valuation as deemed cost of land 5,37,27,380 5,37,27,380

Provision for doubtful debts (14,01,439) (59,67,744)

Amortisation of transaction costs of Interest bearing 1,45,397 2,90,794

Interest income on Rent Deposit 28,08,185

Rent Expense (28,08,185)

Deferred Tax (1,11,60,952) (96,56,776)

Restatement of Prior Period Expense (10,043)

Total Adjustments accounted through P&L 4,13,10,386 3,83,83,611

Total impact on account of Ind AS adjustments 4,13,10,386 3,83,83,611

Equity after Ind AS adjustments 4,58,59,275 5,10,99,220

*IG A A P  figures have been reclassified  to  confirm  to  Ind AS p resentatio n  req u irem ents fo r  th e  purposes o f th is  note .

Footnotes to the above reconciliation are as under:

1 Property, Plant and Equipment
As perm itted  by Ind AS 101, the  Com pany has elected  to  continue w ith  the  carrying values under previous GAAP as 'deem ed cost' fo r all the item s o f p roperty, p lant and equipm ent and 

intangible assets.

The com pany has availed option o f considering fa ir value as deem ed cost as on transition  date fo r freeho ld  lands. Accordingly the said lands have been revalued as on 01 .04 .2017  and gain arising 

due to  fa ir value am ounting to  Rs. 5 ,37 ,27 ,380/- is added to  opening Profit and Loss account.

2 Non Current Financial Assets
N on-Current Financial Assets includes in terest free  rent deposit w h ich  have been stated a t fa ir va lue as a t April 01 , 2017 and difference b etw een  the fa ir va lue and carrying am ount has been 

transferred  to  pre paid rent as at April 01 , 2017.

Non Current Financial assets have been reclassified  to  confirm  to Ind AS presentation requ irem ent.

3 Trade Receivable
U nder the  previous GAAP, provision fo r doubtful debts on trade rece ivables w e re  carried  on the basis o f an incurred  loss m odel. As per Ind AS, the  Com pany is required to  apply expected cred it 

loss model fo r recognising the allow ance fo r doubtful debts. As a resu lt the re is an increase in the  am ount o f a llow ance fo r doubtful debts and corresponding deferred  tax has also been 

recognised. The net e ffect o f th is change is a decrease in total equ ity as a t M arch 31, 2018 o f Rs. 54 .47 Lacs (Rs. 59 .68  Lacs as a t April 1, 2017) and decrease in total profit fo r the year ended 

M arch 31, 2018 o f Rs. 54 .47  Lacs.

4 Reclassification of Bank Balance
Cash and cash equivalents am ounting to  Rs. 20 .00 Lacs fo r the  ye a r ended M arch 31 ,2018 has been reclassified  to  Bank balances o ther than  (ii) above.

5 Loan processing fees /  transaction cost:
U nder Ind AS such expenditure a re  considered fo r calculating effective in terest rate . The im pact fo r the periods subsequent to  the  date o f transition  is reflected  in the Statem ent o f Profit and 

Loss.

Reclassification of Borrowing in to  Current and Non Current L iab lities: Borrowing repayable w ith in  tw e lve  m onths have been reclasssified into cu rrent liab ilities.

6 Interest Income and Other Expense
U nder Ind A s, O ther F inancial Assets com prising o f rent deposit given have been in itia lly recognised at fa ir va lue as at 01 .04 .2017  and d ifferencial am ount between carrying b lance and fa ir va lue 

has been transferred  to  prepaid expense . The im pact fo r the subsequent to  the date o f transition  is reflected  under Interest Incom e and Rent Expense in the  Statem ent o f Profit and Loss 

In terest incom e.
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7 Accounting for excise duty on sale of goods
U nder IGAAP, sale o f goods w as presented as net o f excise duty. H ow ever, under Ind AS, sa le  o f goods includes excise d uty which is considered as an expense . Th is ad justm ent has no im pact on 

the  total equ ity on the transition  date as w e ll as 31 M arch 2018.

8 Deferred tax assets (ne t):
IGAAP requires deferred  tax accounting using the  incom e statem ent approach, w h ich  focuses on d ifferences b etw een  taxable profits and accounting profits fo r the  period. Ind AS 12 requires 

entities to  account fo r deferred  taxes using the  balance sheet approach, which focuses on tem porary d ifferences b etw een  the  carrying am ount o f an asset o r liab ility in the  balance sheet and its 

tax  base. The application o f Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition o f deferred  tax  on certa in  tem porary d ifferences w h ich  w as not required under IGAAP.

Cash flow statement
There  w e re  no significant reconciliation item s between cash flow s prepared under Indian GAAP and those prepared under Ind AS.

101



HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED

Notes to  financia l statem ents fo r the year ended 31st M arch 2019

Note 34 f  Lease

Expense
The company has obtained part of building and Factory for its business operations under leave and license 

agreement. These are generally not non-cancellable lease and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually 
agreeable term s. The Company has given refundable interest free security deposits in accordance with the 

agreed term s.

Lease payments are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as “Rent Expenses" amounting Rs. 
1,00,000 p.m. (Previous Year Rs. 1,00,000 p.m.)

Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to the current 

period's presentation.

Note 34g Previous year figures

For K M  Swadia &  Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN - 110740W

For Harish Textile Engineers Lim ited

M r.Sandeep Gandhi 

DIN : 00941665 

Managing D irector

M r. H itendra Desai 

DIN :00452481 

W hole Time D irector

A rch it D Antan i

Partner

M . No. 149221

M r. Pinkesh Upadhyay 

Chief Finanical O fficer

Place : M um bai

Date : 5th September, 2019

Place : M um ba i

Date : 5th September, 2019

1 0 2



HARISH TEXTILE ENGINEERS LIMITED
CIN: U29119MH2010PLC201521

2nd Floor, 19 Parsi Panchayat Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400069.
Tel: 91-22-40373000, E-mail: skg2664@gmail.com, Website: www.harishtextile.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
9th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON MONDAY, 30thSEPTEMBER, 2019 at 9.30 A.M.

(To be presented at the entrance)

Mr./Mrs./Miss. 
Address.......

Folio No. (Physical holding)).........................................DP ID (Demat holding).......................................

Client ID.........................................No. of shares held..........................................................................

I/We certify that l/We am/are registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 9th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 
Monday, 30th September, 2019, at 09:30 A.M. at 2nd Floor, 19 Parsi Panchayat Road, Andheri (East), 
Mumbai - 400069, India or any adjournment thereof.

[Signature of Shareholders/Proxy(s)].........................................................

Notes:

1. Shareholder/proxyholder(s) are requested to bring the attendance slips with them when they come to 
the meeting and hand over the same at the entrance after filling and affixing their signatures on them.

2. If it is intended to appoint a proxy, the proxy form should be completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company atleast 48 hours before the Meeting.
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PROXY FORM 
(Form No. MGT-11)

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014]

9th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON MONDAY, 30th SEPTEMBER, 2019 at 9.30 A.M.

CIN : U29119MH2010PLC201521
Name of the Company : Harish Textile Engineers Limited
Registered Office : 2nd Floor, 19 Parsi Panchayat Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400069
Name of the member (s) :
Registered address 
Folio No. / Client Id 
DP ID 
E-mail Id

l/We, being the member (s) o f ............. shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

1. Name : .............................................E-mail Id:..........................................................................
Address:.......................................................................................................................................
Signature:............................................................................................................. or failing him/her

2. Name : ..............................................E-mail Id:.......................................................................
Address : ....................................................................................................................................
Signature:............................................................................................................. or failing him/her

3. Name : ..............................................E-mail Id:.......................................................................
Address : ....................................................................................................................................
Signature:............................................................................................................. or failing him/her

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 9th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 30th September, 2019 at 09:30 A.M. at 2nd Floor, 19 
Parsi Panchayat Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai -  400069 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of 
such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution
number

Description of Resolutions Assent Dissent

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet and Profit 
& Loss Account for the financial year ended as at March 31,2019, 
the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the said financial 
year and the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Flitendra Desai (Din: 00452481), 
who retires from the office of whole -time director by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:

3. To appoint Mr. Sandeep Gandhi (DIN No. : 00941665) as Managing 
Director

4. To appoint Mr. Flitendra Desai (Din no.: 00452481) as Whole-time 
Director

5. To appoint Ms. Ratna Jhaveri (Din no.: 07732263) as an 
Independent Director
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6. To appoint Mr. Abhinav Anand (Din no.: 07732241) as an 
Independent Director

7. Borrowing Powers

Signed this____________ day o f___________________ 2019

Signature of shareholder.........................

Signature of Proxy holder(s)..............................................

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting.

2. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the 
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. A member holding more 
than 10%, of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 
person as a proxy. However, such person shall not act as proxy for any other shareholders.

3. The proxy need not be a member of the Company and shall provide his/her identity proof such as 
PAN Card, Aadhar Card at the time of attending AGM.

4. In the case of Jointholders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all 
jointholders should be stated.

5. If Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is 
dated last will be considered valid; if they are not dated or bear the same date without specific 
mention of time, all such multiple proxies will be treated as invalid.
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